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PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE (DR. RUBY S. Y. LEE) 

This is our College‟s first paperless annual report and also my first one as President of our College. 

 

2011 has marked our new 2011-2013 CME/CPD triennium cycle. For this cycle, we have changed from 

an annual to a triennium requirement. This change will allow participants to better plan and organize 

their lives in the coming three years. Dr. Billy Chiu, Chairman of the Quality Assurance & Accreditation 

Committee and his committee members have been working hard to monitor the impact of the change to 

our QA program. 

 

The Board of Vocational Training & Standards under Dr. Quincy Yuen and his board members have 

revised the training requirements and contents of our current four years basic training program which 

will comprise of more community-based training rather than a strict two years rotation of hospital-based 

training. The new program is now in the fine tuning stage. 

 

The Specialty Board under Dr. Wendy Tsui and her board members have developed changes in the 

Clinical Audit and Consultation Skill Assessment segments of the Exit Examination. Trainees can submit 

either a clinical audit or a research paper from 2013. The purpose is to encourage our future fellows to 

develop skills and interest in research. The on-site Consultation Skill Assessment will be changed into 

video-tape assessment in 2012. The change aims for better assessment of the actual daily practice of 

candidates.  

 

This is the 25
th
 year of our Conjoint Fellowship Examination with the Royal Australia College of General 

Practitioners. I would like to thank the RACGP for the continued advice and support. I would also like to 

congratulate the Board of Conjoint Examination under Dr. Peter Chan and his board members to have 

run the Examination flawlessly with their hard work, experience and wisdom. On the day of the OSCE 

Examination, examiners, candidates and staff worked together as a team whole-heartedly to this very 

important event which allows no mistake.  

 

The Board of Education led by Dr. Mary Kwong and her board members has organized a great number 

of educational activities with good varieties. I would like to express my most sincere gratitude for their 

excellent work which represented the good tradition of our College. 

 

A new board, the Board of Professional Development and Services, was established last year to 

organize and develop educational activities for medical and health professionals outside Hong Kong in 

relation to family medicine as well as liaise and coordinate with other boards of the College for activities 

of the Board. There is evidence that countries with more trained generalist family doctors are more likely 

to have better health outcomes, lower costs and greater satisfaction. Not only will financial resources be 

saved but also effective efficient use of high technology. Primary health care is the best route to 

universal access, the best way to ensure sustainable improvements in health outcomes, and the best 

guarantee that access to care will be fair. Dr. Lau Ho Lim, Deputy Chairman of the Board and the board 

members have worked hard to organize and provide educational activities for colleagues in various 

parts of China. The growing demand for our Family Medicine education indicated an increasing 

emphasis on Family Medicine in our country. With increasing common values among us, we should 

strive to improve the status of Family Medicine to thrive together.  

 

The Board of Diploma in Family Medicine under Dr. Simon Au and his board members have worked 

hard not only to provide an intermediate step to fellowship qualifications in Family Medicine so as 

improve standards and quality in the practice of Family Medicine, but have also extended their services 
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to Macau Health Department for the practicing primary care doctors there this year. 

 

The Public Education Committee led by Dr. Edmund Lam and his committee members have continued 

to deliver health education to the public through various channels including regular publications in 

various newspapers. Dr. Lam has also led publicity campaign to promote the concept of family doctor in 

collaboration with Primary Care Office of Department of Health. 

 

The External Affairs Committee under Dr. Gene Tsoi has organized a series of radio programs cohosting 

with specialists of other specialties to illustrate the professional relationship of Family Medicine 

specialists to other specialties in this summer. To promote Family Medicine, censors and council 

members including Drs. Stephen Foo, Donald Li, Angus Chan, Edmund Lam, Billy Chiu and Quincy 

Yuen have represented College in various media interview. I would like to thank all of them for their 

good work. 

 

Primary care is the work of health care professionals who act as a first point of consultation for all 

patients. We family physicians provide not only primary care, but are also coordinators of our patients‟ 

overall health care. We have therefore widened the scope of our previous annual scientific meeting to 

enhance collaboration and experience sharing among all providers. The first Hong Kong Primary Care 

Conference (HKPCC) “A New Frontier” organized by our College had been held on 28 – 29 May 2011. 

The organizing committee under Dr. Cheung Man Kuen and her committee members has worked hard 

to make this event a success with over 400 participants.  

 

I am most delighted to find that many of our trainees are interested in research. Primary care is now a 

WHO priority with tremendous potential in research and publications. Besides our unique experience in 

health care, we are also part of China, a nation with an important role in world's health with emerging 

primary care. Hong Kong is also part of Southeast Asia, a global microsome with huge diversity. Primary 

care research can provide answers to many common clinical questions. The Research Committee 

under Prof. Samuel Wong and his committee members will continue to promote primary care research.  

 

The Editorial Board under Prof. Samuel Wong and his board members, and the FP Links Committee 

under the Chairlady Dr. Wendy Tsui and Chief Editor Dr. Catherine Ng have worked hard to enable the 

quarterly publications of our journal the Hong Kong Practitioners and the monthly publications of our FP 

Links respectively.  

 

The hard work of our secretarial staff led by Miss Erica So, House Management Committee under Dr. 

Dorothy Law, Business Manager Dr. Mary Kwong, Finance Committee under Dr. Lau Ho Lim, Council 

Member on Duty System under Dr. Tony Lee, Web & Computer Committee under Dr. Mark Chan, and 

Internal Affairs Committee under Dr. Billy Chiu has enabled the daily operation of our College.  

 

Many council members have also contributed through representation of our College in various 

professional committees including Dr. Angus Chan in the Education Committee of the Hong Kong 

Academy of Medicine; Dr. Gene Tsoi in three Task Forces on Conceptual Model and Preventive 

Protocols, Primary Care Directory, Task Force on Primary Care, and Delivery Models, Working Group 

on Primary Care;  Dr. Daniel Chu & Dr. Mark Chan in the Medical Manpower Planning Committee of the 

Hong Kong Academy of Medicine, Dr. Peter Chan in Working Group on Alcohol and Health, Steering 

Committee on Prevention and Control of Non-communicable Diseases, Dr. Lau Ho Lim in Task Force on 

Hong Kong Code of Marketing of Breastmilk Substitutes, Self Learning Kit on Breastfeeding for Medical 

Professionals, Project Planning Committee, CAG of Hong Kong Reference Framework for Preventive 

Care for Older Adults in Primary Care Settings, and University of Hong Kong Health Services 



6 

Committee; Dr. Angus Chan in CAG of Hong Kong Reference Framework for Preventive Care for 

Children in Primary Care Settings; Dr. Tony Lee in Working Group for Revision of Teaching Kit for the 

Exercise Prescription Project; Dr. Liang Jun in the Scientific Committee of Hong Kong International 

Cancer Congress etc  

  

In the Medical Faculty Graduation and Prize Presentation Ceremony of the University of Hong Kong on 

January 15, 2011, Professor Sir David Todd said in his speech, “I hope many of the new graduates will 

become generalists. The generalist has a holistic approach. More Family Physicians are needed. Family 

Medicine is now a specialty in its own right and higher education and training is organized by the Hong 

Kong College of Family Physicians. A core of facts required to practice medicine together with 

communication skills and an understanding of social and ethical issues can be taught and continued into 

postgraduate training. Understanding and caring come from the experience of life. Role models are 

important.”  

 

To deliver holistic care requires good understanding and integration of a wide spectrum of updated 

evidence based medical sciences, social, ethical and human issues, communication skills and kindness. 

Our College is indeed honoured to serve the postgraduate education and training in Family Medicine. 

Hong Kong‟s primary care needs strengthening in its role. I hope we will continue to be role models for 

our next generation.  

 

Last but not least, I must thank my Chief Censor Prof. Cindy LK Lam, Censors Dr. Stephen KS Foo and 

Prof. Donald KT Li, and Immediate Past President Dr. Gene Tsoi for their valuable advice and guidance; 

my Executives Drs. Angus Chan, Mary Kwong, Dorothy Law, Lau Ho Lim and all council members who 

shared a lot of the duties and assignments. I have to thank all the secretariat staffs under Ms. Erica So 

for their dedication and hard work. As always, my heart is with our College. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

President 
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HONORARY SECRETARY’S MESSAGE (DR. LAW TUNG CHI) 

 

There are 11 council meetings conducted in October 2010 to October 2011 and the regular activities of college run 

smoothly in 2011. This year we have 32 successful exit examination candidates and 42 successful candidates 

passed conjoint examination Part I Written and 28 passed Part II OSCE. Although the demand in Diploma of family 

medicine (DFM) has drop over the past years, college serves the purpose of promoting family medicine education 

and continues to conduct DFM for 9 candidates this year. We have 28 new basic trainees. There are 71 colleagues 

enrolled into higher training. 

 

In order to promote primary health care, we co-organized with Primary Care Office, Department of Health and 

Nursing school of University of Hong Kong the first Hong Kong Primary Care Conference on 28-29 May 2011. It is 

the first conference that involve multi-disciplinary of primary health care and it gave a good start for future 

conferences.  

 

In 2010, we have introduced research as alternative examination component to clinical audit in exit examination. 

This year in order to keep up our standard in exit examination and improve the validity of consultation skill 

assessment of exit examination, a new format of video recorded consultation assessment will replace the old 

formation of sit-in consultation examination.  

 

The demand of development of family medicine has grown not only within Hong Kong but also over our 

neighborhood Macau. Our college has the delight to share our training and education with doctors of Macau by 

experienced doctors of the newly formed broad of Professional development and Service and broad of DFM. 

 

Back to contribution to Hong Kong people, in order to reflect our role of health promotion and disease prevention, 

this year we have held a flu vaccination campaign. The message on reminding people of Hong Kong to seek 

medical advice from their family doctors for annual flu vaccine was passed through the media. 

 

Last but not least, the smooth running of our college depends on numerous diligent member and staff of college. I 

would like to thank all of them. 

 

 

 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Honorary Secretary 
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BOARD OF CONJOINT EXAMINATION 

 

Chairman               :  Dr. Chan Hung Chiu  

Members                :      Dr. Ip Pang Fei         (Chief Examiner & OSCE Case Writing Group Co-ordinator) 

 Dr. Lau Ho Lim         (KFP Co-ordinator) 

 Dr. Kung Kenny         (MCQ Co-ordinator) 

 Dr. Billy S. H. Chui         (OSCE Co-ordinator) 

 Dr. Barry T. F. Bien 

 Dr. Chan Laam  

 Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan  

 Dr. Dickson Y. S. Chan        (to March 2011) 

Ex-officio               : Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee         (from December 2010 onwards) 

 Dr. Angus M.W. Chan         (from December 2010 onwards) 

 Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong  

 Dr. Law Tung Chi  

 Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi         (to December 2010) 

 

Board of Censors  : Prof. Cindy L. K. Lam         (Chief Censor) 

Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo         (Censor) 

 Prof. Donald K. T. Li          (Censor) 

 

Staff                      :      Ms. Crystal W. Y. Yung         (Executive Officer) 

Ms. Teresa D. F. Liu         (Administrative Executive) 

              Mr. Patrick M. H. Wu         (Administrative Executive, to December 2010) 

 

Panel of Examiners: 

(A) Active Examiners 

Dr. Dawn H. F. T. Ai 

Dr. Au Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr. Barry T. F. Bien 

Dr. Alvin C. Y. Chan  

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu 

Dr. Patrick H. W. Chan 

Dr. Kitty K. C. Chan 

Dr. Chan King Hong 

Dr. Carroll K. L. Chan 

Dr. Chan Kin Ling 

Dr. Chan Kwok Wai 

Dr. Chan Laam 

Dr. Chan Man Li 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

Dr. David S. L. Chan 

Dr. Eddie T. Chan  

Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan 

Dr. Andrew Y. H. Chan 

Dr. Edwin Y. H. Chan 

Dr. Thomas Y. L. Chan 

Dr. Dickson Y. S. Chan 

Dr. Angela Y. Y. Chan  

Dr. Cheng Michael 

Dr. Cheung Hard King 

Dr. Cheung Kwok Leung 

Dr. Cindy P. S. Cheung 

Dr. Paul W. K. Cheung 

Dr. Florence Y. L. Cheung 

Dr. Cheung Ying Man 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu 

Dr. Choy Lai Chun 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 

Dr. Billy S. H. Chui 

Dr. John T. N. Chung 

Dr. Cecilia Y. M. Fan 

Dr. Elsie O. S. Fang 

Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo  

Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

Dr. Fung Yuk Kwan 

Dr. Ho Kam Wai 

Dr. Ho Kin Sang 

Dr. Steven Y. K. Ho 

Dr. Eric M. T. Hui 

Dr. Hung Wai Yin 

Dr. Andrew K. K. Ip 

Dr. Ip Pang Fei 

Dr. Silvia S. M. Kam 

Dr. Kan Chi Ho 

Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

Dr. Kong Che Wan 

Dr. Albert Y. F. Kong 

Dr. Hilary C. S. Ku 

Dr. Kung Kenny 

Dr. Betty K. M. Kwan 

Dr. Michael C. H. Kwok 

Dr. Kwok Chi Sum 

Dr. Kwok Pik Ki 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

Dr. Douglas T. C. Lai 

Dr. Lam Hon Man 

Dr. Stanley K. H. Lam 

Dr. Lam Paul 

Dr. Lam Pui 

Dr. Augustine T. Lam 

Dr. Catherine T. M. Lam 

Dr. Lam Wing Kwun 

Dr. Lam Wing Wo 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Kinson K. S. Lau 

Dr. Lau Kam Tong 

Dr. Lau Po Shan 

Dr. Lau Tai Wai 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Dr. Tony C. K. Lee 

Dr. Glenn K. L. Lee 

Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee 

Dr. Lee Wang Yat 

Dr. Daniel C. Y. Leung 

Dr. Leung Gin Pang 

Dr. Maria K. W. Leung 

Dr. Sandy M. H. Leung 

Dr. Violet T. M. Leung 

Dr. Li Heung Wing 

Prof. Donald K. T. Li 

Dr. Liang Jun 

Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo 

Dr. Benny L. P. Lui 

Dr. Luk Wan 

Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

Dr. Ng Chun Bor 

Dr. Ng Mei Yee 

Dr. Lorna V. Ng 

Dr. Ngai Bernard 

Dr. Ngan Sze Yuen 

Dr. Pang Siu Leung 

Dr. Shek Chun Chiu 

Dr. Shek Hon Wing 

Dr. Monica P. S. Shum 

Dr. Paul C. H. Siu 
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Dr. So Kon Ping 

Dr. Roger P. So 

Dr. Tammy K. W. Tam  

Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To 

Dr. Leon G. Tong 

Dr. Tong Po Hei 

Dr. Keith K.K. Tse 

Dr. Tsim Koon Lan 

Dr. Sammy L. T. Tsoi 

Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi 

Dr. Tsui Kwok Biu 

Dr. Tsui Pun Nang 

Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui 

Dr. Wai Heung Wah 

Dr. Roger C. K. Wong 

Dr. Wong Chak Tong 

Dr. Wong Chuen Ho 

Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr. Wong Kwok Ho 

Dr. Marcus M. S. Wong 

Dr. Wong Nai Ming 

Dr. Amy O. Y. Wong 

Dr. Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

Dr. Yeung Sau Ying 

Dr. Solomon T. L. Yeung 

Dr. Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr. Yuen Shiu Man

 

(B) Examiners 

 

Dr. Cynthia S. Y. Chan 

Dr. Chan Suk Yin 

Dr. David V. K. Chao 

Dr. Andy K. Y. Cheung 

Dr. Cheung Yu 

Dr. Choi Kin 

Dr. Chow Shun Wai 

Dr. Antonio A. T. Chuh 

Dr. Ho Wang Fung 

Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui 

Dr. Steven W. Y. Lai 

Prof. Cindy L. K. Lam 

Prof. Lam Tai Pong 

Dr. Angela K. M. Lau 

Dr. Dominic M. W. Lau 

Prof. Lee Albert 

Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

Dr. Luk Kam Hung 

Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau 

Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang 

Dr. Charmaine C. W. Tse 

Dr. Wan King Tung 

Dr. Wong Hung Wai 

Dr. Patrick W. K. Yeung 

Dr. Natalis C. L. Yuen 

 

 

(C) Trainee Examiners 

 

Dr. Chan Wan Wai 

Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan 

Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr. Cheung Man Ha 

Dr. Cecilia S. M. Cheung 

Dr. Anita W. M. Fan 

Dr. Ho Ka Ming 

Dr. Hui King Wai 

Dr. Lai Wai Wah 

Dr. Johnny C. Y. Lam 

Dr. Lam Hiu Lam 

Dr. Lee Man Kei 

Dr. Leung Wai Man 

Dr. Li Yim Chu 

Dr. Ng Mei Po 

Dr. Catherine S. W. Ng 

Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr. Poon Shun Bong 

Dr. Sin Ka Ling 

Dr. Tam Ho Shan 

Dr. Tam Kit Ping 

Dr. Tsui Hoi Yee 

Dr. Wan Wing Fai 

Dr. Wong Chi Lung 

Dr. Nerrissa S. C. Wu 

Dr. Frances S. K. Yu 

 

Case-Writers: 

 

Dr. Barry T. F. Bien 

Dr. Chan Laam 

Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan 

Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan 

Dr. Edwin Y. H. Chan 

Dr. Thomas Y. L. Chan 

Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr. Cheung Kwok Leung 

Dr. Cecilia S. M. Cheung 

Dr. Paul W. K. Cheung 

Dr. Choy Lai Chun 

Dr. Billy S. H. Chui 

 

Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

Dr. Ho Kin Sang 

Dr. Eric M. T. Hui 

Dr. Ip Pang Fei 

Dr. Silvia S. M. Kam 

Dr. Kung Kenny  

Dr. Catherine T. M. Lam 

Dr. Lam Wing Kwun 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Kinson K. S. Lau 

Dr. Lau Po Shan 

Dr. Lee Man Kei   

 

Dr. Maria K. W. Leung 

Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

Dr. Shek Hon Wing 

Dr. Tam Kit Ping 

Dr. Sammy L. T. Tsoi 

Dr. Roger C. K. Wong 

Dr. Wong Chak Tong 

Dr. Wong Nai Ming 

Dr. Amy O. Y. Wong 

Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr. Yiu Ming Pong

THE EXAMINATION 

 

The format of the 24
th
 Conjoint Examination 2010 was the same as last year, consisting of both Written and Clinical Examinations.  

 

Preparatory works for both segments started early from the beginning of the year. Thanks to the tremendous contributions of our 

Board members, our Case Writers and all our examiners. 

 

Workshops for Examiners 

 

 Trainee Examiner Meeting  24 April 2010  (Saturday) 
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1
st 

Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE  4 July 2010   (Sunday) 

 2
nd

 Examiner Training Workshop for OSCE  8 August 2010 (Sunday)  

 Workshop on Standard Setting for KFP exam paper  12 September 2010  (Sunday) 

 Workshops on Standard Setting for MCQ exam paper 

 

 19 & 20 September 2010 

(Sunday & Monday)  

 KFP Marking Sessions  17, 18 & 19 September 2010 

(Friday, Saturday & Sunday) 

 Case-writing Group Meetings for OSCE  20 April, 11 May 2010 and 

August - September 2010 

 3
rd
 Examiner Training Workshop and On-site Examiners‟ Rehearsal for OSCE  17 October 2010  (Sunday) 

Candidates Information Seminar 

 

An information seminar for candidates sitting the clinical segment was organized on 20 June 2010. 31 candidates attended. The 

purpose was to provide first-hand information on the various aspects of the examination (including the logistics, expectations, 

marking and standard setting methods, and so on), in order to help our candidates to better prepare for the examination and to 

minimize their anxiety and misunderstandings. Interactive sessions with video-taped scenarios were also conducted. 

 

The Conjoint Fellowship Examination 

Written Segments: 

KFP 12 September 2010 (Sunday) HKAM Jockey Club Bldg 

MCQ 19 September 2010 (Sunday) HKAM Jockey Club Bldg 

 

Clinical Segment: 

OSCE 31 October 2010 (Sunday) Princess Margaret Hospital 

 

External Examiners from RACGP 

 

Dr. Jennie Kendrick (Censor in Chief) and Dr. Mark Overton (Censor) were the visiting External Examiners from RACGP this year 

for the OSCE Examination on 31 October 2010. 

 

Number of candidates 

 

There were altogether a total of 109 candidates sitting for this year‟s examination, with 90 and 19 candidates of Category I and 

Category II respectively.  

 

72 candidates sat for the Written Segments (57 Cat I and 15 Cat II candidates), while 53 candidates sat for the Clinical Examination 

(40 Cat I and 13 Cat II candidates). 

Security  

 

Strong emphasis was put on the security measures as in previous years. All preparatory procedures were carried out according to 

our security protocols, including: 

 

1. Strict adherence to the Working Protocol by staff handling all the Examination Materials. 

2. Use of designated Case-Writing Group, consisting of Examiners, led by our Chief Examiner, to be responsible for all the OSCE 

cases. 

3. A centralized process for development of examination cases and marking schemes, with examination materials exposed to the 

minimal number of persons. 

4. Strict adherence to the security protocol for the OSCE exam by all examiners (including strict prohibition of electronic 

transference of exam materials). 

5. Sharing cases with RACGP to widen our exam case bank. 

6. Presentation of OSCE exam materials to examiners only on the day of exam. 

7. Continual appeal to the professional integrity of all involved in running the exam. 

8. Proper “quarantine” of candidates of the morning and afternoon sessions respectively on the days of exam. 

9. Forbiddance of use of any electronic devices by candidate inside exam venue. 

10. Prompt data entry of candidates‟ scores on the same day of exam. 

 

All these measures, among many others, were well adhered to throughout the whole examination period. 
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Quality Assurance 

 

Quality assurance of our examination was maintained by the large number of experienced local examiners in our panel. Pairing up 

experienced examiners with less experience examiners also helped to improve its validity. Our QA Examiners and External 

Examiners continued to assess and monitor the standards of our local examiners as well as the role players. 

To facilitate better understanding for our External Examiners in our two Cantonese speaking stations, instant translation (in writing) 

had been arranged this year. 

Comments on individual examiner by various QA Examiners had been grouped and sent to each examiner for reference. 

 

Successful candidates in Part I Written Examination 2010 

1. Dr. Chan Hoi Ying Linda 

2. Dr. Chan Mei Tak 

3. Dr. Chan Ngai Ping 

4. Dr. Cheuk Tat Sang 

5. Dr. Cheung Chi Hong David 

6. Dr. Cheung Kin Wan Kelvin 

7. Dr. Chiang Lap Kin 

8. Dr. Chim Shiu Cheung Michael 

9. Dr. Foo Bong Yin Kevin 

10. Dr. Ho Wing Man 

11. Dr. Hsu Kwok Fai David 

12. Dr. Hui Ka Fung 

13. Dr. Kwan Chun Man 

14. Dr. Kwok Tsz Tik 

15. Dr. Lai Pui Yan 

16. Dr. Lee Kam Pui 

17. Dr. Lee Wing Po 

18. Dr. Leung Hoi Lik Eric 

19. Dr. Leung Wing Mun 

20. Dr. Li Ming Yin 

21. Dr. Li Shun Hoi 

22. Dr. Man Fung Yi 

23. Dr. Poon Yung Yin 

24. Dr. Sakhrani Ponam 

25. Dr. Sit Pui Ki Lolita 

26. Dr. Sze Siu Lam Jason 

27. Dr. Tam Yick Sin 

28. Dr. Tang Man Leung Thomas 

29. Dr. Tsang Ming Lam 

30. Dr. Tsui Ka Chun 

31. Dr. Wong Chun Fai 

32. Dr. Wong Chun Pong 

33. Dr. Wong Ka Ki David 

34. Dr. Wong Sum Lok 

35. Dr. Wong Wai On 

36. Dr. Wu Xiao Qing 

37. Dr. Yau Chi Fai 

38. Dr. Yeung Hoi Pun 

39. Dr. Yeung Sze Wai 

40. Dr. Yiu Yee Ki 

41. Dr. Yu Yee Tak Esther 

42. Dr. Yuen Yeuk Ying 

Successful candidates in Part II Clinical Examination 2010 

1. Dr. Chan Shuk Yan Angela 

2. Dr. Chan Man Hung 

3. Dr. Cheng Chun Sing David 

4. Dr. Cheuk Christina 

5. Dr. Cheung Kin Wan Kelvin 

6. Dr. Chim Shiu Cheung Michael 

7. Dr. Choi Chuen Ming Clarence 

8. Dr. Chu Lai Shan 

9. Dr. Hsu Kwok Fai David 

10. Dr. Hui Ka Fung 

11. Dr. Hung Lok Lam Susanna 

12. Dr. Kwok Chi Ming 

13. Dr. Lee Chi Leung 

14. Dr. Leung Man Yin 

15. Dr. Li Hei Lim 

16. Dr. Lo Tsz Yan 

17. Dr. Pon Wai Pi 

18. Dr. Siu Lok Man 

19. Dr. Tang Man Leung Thomas 

20. Dr. Tsang Ming Lam 

21. Dr. Tsui Ka Chun 

22. Dr. Wong Hing Lam 

23. Dr. Wong Ka Ki David 

24. Dr. Wong Pak Kin 

25. Dr. Yau Kin Chung 

26. Dr. Yeung Hoi Pun 

27. Dr. Yuen Yeuk Ying 

28. Dr. Yuen Yuk Kwun Natalie

 

Examination Prize: "The Best Candidate Award 2010" 

It was the seventh year that the College offered this prize. This year The Best Candidate Award was given to Dr. Kwok Chi Ming, 

who had passed the Conjoint Examination at one setting and achieved the best performance in the Examination. 

 

Acknowledgement 

The Board of Conjoint Exam would like to thank our Chief Examiner and segment Coordinators for contributing so much of their time 

and effort throughout the entire examination, all the Board members for their active participation, the External Examiners for their 

advice and support, all our QA Examiners, Case-Writing and Marking Examiners, Trainee Examiners, and Role Players for their time 

and contributions before and during the examination, and all our College secretarial staff and helpers for their excellent 

administrative and supportive works. 
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BOARD OF DIPLOMA IN FAMILY MEDICINE 

Chairman :    Dr. Simon C. L. Au 

Board Members :     Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo   Course Director 

(2010 - 2011)    Professor Cindy L. K. Lam   Course Advisor   

 Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo   Course Advisor 

Professor Donald K. T. Li     Course Co-ordinator 

Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee Course Co-ordinator 

Dr. Chan Chi Wai  Deputy Chairman and Chairman, DFM Assessment & Examination 

Subcommittee 

Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan   Module I & II Co-ordinator 

Dr. Au-yeung Shiu Hing    Module III Co-ordinator  

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong   Module IV Co-ordinator 

Dr. Wong Pak Hoi   Module V Co-ordinator 

Dr. Chan Man Li       

 

Ex-officio              :    Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

 

Staff                       :    Ms. Winniea W. Y. Lee 

Ms. Crystal W. Y. Yung 

Ms. Charlotte H. F. Sham  (to November 2010) 

 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE  

The DFM course entered her ninth year in 2011. This was another fruitful year as nine candidates fulfilled all the requirements of 

DFM Course and passed all the assessments and the Final Examination in 2011. The Board praised the candidates for their effort 

and devotion in acquiring new knowledge and skill in Family Medicine and congratulated them on their wonderful achievement.   

 

This year has been a very meaningful year to the DFM board. Our Board has successfully extended our service to our neighbor, 

Macau Health Department. The Board has organized a series of DFM seminars and workshops to cater the needs of our Macau 

colleagues. The response was encouraging and rewarding after the first training session. Both the students and teachers have 

found this experience enjoyable and valuable. In future, it is our hope to promote DFM course to the doctors in Mainland China. 

 

On behalf of the College and the Board, I would like to express our deepest appreciation to Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan for his volunteer work 

and tremendous support to us. Without his advice and assistance, the Macau training programme would not be possible and 

successful.  

 

Lastly, I would like to take this opportunity to thank Professor Lam Tai Pong for being our External Examiner in keep our examination 

standard and his generous donation to the Board over the years. I wished to thank Professor Cindy Lam, Professor Donald Li, Dr. 

Stephen Foo and our new President, Dr. Ruby Lee for their continuous advice and guidance, Dr. Chan Chi Wai for being our 

Chairman of assessment and examination subcommittee in organizing a very successful examination, and all the hardworking 

Board members, teachers, examiners, and mentors for their unfailing support and selfless contribution. I also wished to thank our 

secretarial staff Ms. Charlotte Sham who resigned last year and Ms. Winniea Lee for their diligent work. 

 

Mentors List (2010 - 2011) 

Dr. Hung Wai Shan, Sandra 

Dr. Luk Wing Kun, Leona 

Dr. Yau Chi Fai 

 

Graduation Ceremony 2010 - 2011 

The Graduation Ceremony of the 8
th
 DFM Course of the College was held jointly with Conferment Ceremony on 29

th
 May 2011.  

 

The DFM 2010-2011 Successful candidates were: 

Dr. Cheng Ying Wai Dr. Lau Wign Sze 

Dr. Johnny C. Y. Cheung Dr. Lo Kwok Man* 

Dr. Cheung San Dr. So Chun Kit 

Dr. Choi Kwok Kam Dr. Cellina C. K. Yu 
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Dr. Lau Wai Hung  

(*Passed with Distinction) 

Nine candidates completed the 8
th
 DFM Course and were awarded The Certificate of Diploma in Family Medicine in 2011. 

DFM Course 2010 - 2011 

The DFM Course consisted of five Modules: Introduction to General Practice/ Family Medicine (Distance Learning), Clinical General 

Practice (Distance Learning), Essentials of Family Medicine (Structured Lectures & Seminars), Clinical Updates (Seminars and 

Clinical Attachment) and Practical Family Medicine (Practical Workshops). The timetable of the Course was as follows: 

 

Date  Topic Speaker(s) 

Jun 25, 10 (Fri) Introduction Session Course & Module Co-ordinators 

Jun 26, 10 - Sept 17, 10 Module I – Principles of Family Medicine Distance Learning Module I 

Jul  17, 10 (Sat) Module III Practice Management Professor Donald K. T. Li  

Aug 21, 10 (Sat) Module V Consultation Skill Workshop I Dr. Ho Kam Wai & Dr. Anthony K. Y. Ho 

Aug 28, 10 (Sat) Module V Consultation Skill Workshop II Dr. Ho Kam Wai & Dr. Anthony K. Y. Ho 

Sept  4, 10 (Sat) Module V Orthopaedic Injection Workshop Dr. Lau Hoi Kuen 

Nov 13, 10 (Sat) Module III Care for the Elderly & Chronic Illness Professor Daniel T. P. Lam 

Nov 27, 10 (Sat) Module III Anticipatory Care Dr. David V. K. Chao 

Nov 13, 10 - Jan 29, 11 Module II – Common Problems in Chronic Disease Distance Learning Module II 

Dec  4, 10 (Sat) Module III Introduction to Family Therapy Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 

Dec 11, 10 (Sat) Module V Musculoskeletal Workshop Mr. Luck Li 

Jan   8, 11 (Sat) Module V Counselling Workshop I Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 

Jan 15, 11 (Sat) Module V Counselling Workshop II Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 

Jan 22, 11 (Sat) Module V Women's Health Workshop Dr. Clement L. K. Chan 

Jan 29, 11 (Sat) Module III Clinical Audit & Quality Assurance Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui 

Feb 19, 11 (Sat) Module III Research & Teaching in Family Medicine Professor Cindy L. K. Lam 

Feb 26, 11 (Sat) Module V CPR Training Workshop CPR instructors, HKCFP 

Feb 27, 11 (Sun) Module V CPR Examination CPR instructors, HKCFP 

Mar   5, 11 (Sat) Module III Evidence-based Medicine Dr. Roger C. K. Wong 

Mar 12, 11 (Sat) Module III Critical Appraisal Dr. Kinson K. S. Lau 

 

DFM Assessment and Examination Subcommittee 

Chairman   :   Dr. Chan Chi Wai 

Subcommittee Members  :    Dr. Chan Man Li  Clinical Examination Co-ordinator 

Dr. Tsui Hoi Yee   Written Examination Co-ordinator 

Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan Case Leader 

Dr. Chan Yin Hang Case Leader 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee Case Leader 

Dr. Paco W. Y. Lee Case Leader 

Dr. Ng Ming Shing Case Leader 

Dr. Janet C. Y. Tam  Case Leader 

Dr. Simon C. L. Au 

 

Panel of Examiners        : 

External Examiner                :     Professor Lam Tai Pong 

Professor, Faculty of Medicine, the University of Hong Kong 

QA Examiners                : 

 

 

 

Examiners               :  

 

 

 

Pre-examination Workshop: 

The simulated OSCE workshop was organized on 16 April 2011 (Sat) for DFM candidates before the final examination. Those who 

were not familiar with the examination format would have a chance to practice through a simulated one. 

 

Dr. Au-yeung Shiu Hing Professor Cindy L. K. Lam 

Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong  

Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan Dr. Paco W. Y. Lee 

Dr. Chan Yin Hang Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

Dr. Angela Y. Y. Chan Dr. Janet C. Y. Tam 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee  
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Written and Clinical Examination: 

The written examination and the clinical examination were held on 15 May 2011 (Sunday). 

The successful candidates of the year 2010-2011 were: 

Dr. Cheng Ying Wai Dr. Lau Wign Sze 

Dr. Johnny C. Y. Cheung Dr. Lo Kwok Man* 

Dr. Cheung San Dr. So Chun Kit 

Dr. Choi Kwok Kam Dr. Cellina C. K. Yu 

Dr. Lau Wai Hung  
 

(*Passed with Distinction) 

 

Nine candidates fulfilled all the requirements of DFM Course and passed the final examination in 2011. 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Chairlady :     Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong  

 

Board Members            : 

Dr. Solomon T. L. Yeung (Deputy Chairman, Board) 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee (Deputy Chairman, Board; Co-ordinator, Interest Group in Clinical Family Medicine from January 

2011 onwards) 

Dr. Edmond C. W. Chan (Secretary, Board) 

Dr. Simon C. L. Au  (Co-ordinator, Neuro-MusculoSkeletal Interest Group) 

Dr. Au-yeung Shiu Hing (Chairman, Moderator Subcommittee) 

Dr. Mark S. H. Chan (Co-ordinator, Interest Group in Mental Health & Psychiatry in Primary Care) 

Dr. David S. L. Chan   (Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee) 

Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan (Co-ordinator, Interest Group in Clinical Family Medicine)  

Dr. Cheung Ying Man (Deputy Chairman, Video Viewing & Video Library Subcommittee) 

Dr. Wilson W. Y. Hung (Chairman, Annual Refresher Course until December 2010; Chairman, Annual Update & Certificate 

Course Subcommittee from January 2011 onwards; Liaison Person with QA&A Committee) 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong (Chairlady, Clinical Attachment Subcommittee) 

Dr. Lee Cheuk Pong   (Chairman, Annual Refresher Course from January 2011 onwards) 

Dr. Peter K. Y. Lee (Co-ordinator, Post AEC from January 2011; Liaison Person with Web Committee) 

Dr. Danny P. K. Ma  (Co-ordinator, Interest Group in Chronic Disease & Geriatrics from January 2011 onwards) 

Dr. Mo Kam Chuen (Chairman, Video Viewing & Video Library Subcommittee) 

Dr. Janet C. Y. Tam (Chairman, Assessment Enhancement Subcommittee from January 2011 onwards) 

Dr. Leon George Tong (Co-ordinator, Interest Group in Medical-legal Alert) 

Dr. Tong Siu Man (Chairman, Small Discussion Group Subcommittee) 

Dr. Wong Ka Wah  (Supervisor, Assessment Enhancement Subcommittee; Liaison Person with Editorial Board) 

Dr. Wong Nai Ming (Co-ordinator, Interest Group in Dermatology) 

Dr. Wong Pak Hoi (Deputy Chairman, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Subcommittee) 

Dr. Edmond C. H. Chan 

Dr. Dickson Y. S. Chan 

Dr. Kong Che Wan 

Dr. Edmund W. W. Lam 

Dr. Gordon Y. M. Leung 

Dr. Tsui Hing Sing  

 

Ex-officio                         : Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

 Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

 Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

 Dr. Law Tung Chi 

 

Staff                                  :      Ms. Winniea W. Y. Lee       (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms. Yvonne H. F. Lam        (Administrative Assistance, from January 2011 onward) 

 Ms. Charlotte H. F. Sham   (Administrative Executive, to November 2010) 

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE  

During the year 2010-2011, the Board, similar to previous years, has organized the following educational activities for our College 

members. All the CME and CPD programmes have been running smoothly and accredited. 
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Video-Library and Video Viewing Session 

For the period of 2010-2011 we had arranged 12 video sessions in our Wanchai College premises on a monthly basis. Video 

viewing session and Video Library have been practiced since July 2005. The viewing session is scheduled on the last Friday of 

every month, at 2:30pm – 3:30pm, at the 8/F, Duke of Windsor Social Service Building, Wanchai. The topics are selected from the 

lectures in our Luncheon, Evening and Annual Refresher Course CME activities.  These viewing sessions are open only to our 

members. 1 CME point, HKCFP or MCHK, is accredited to one who attends the viewing session. Up to a maximum of 2 CPD points 

may be accredited to one who submits a satisfactory report of Professional Development Log.  It is encouraging that the number of 

attendance is increasing. The topics of the 12 sessions presented were: 

- Acne Management 

- Ketamine (K 仔) Associated Ulcerative Cystitis 

- Use of Topical Agents in Dermatology 

- New Approaches to Community-Acquired Pneumonia and AECB 

- Frozen Shoulder: Management Beyond Physiotherapy 

- Common Limb Injuries Overlooked 

- Flat Feet in Children Treatment Required? 

- Common Urological Symptoms & their Management in Substance Abuser 

- Skin Diseases of the Hands and Feet 

- Understanding Fats: Good VS Bad 

- Do you know? The Unmet Needs in Coronary Arterial Diseases 

- Update of Management of Atopic Dermatitis 

- Advances in Diagnosis & Management of Rheumatic Diseases: RA, Ankylosing Spondylitis, SLE & Fibromyalgia 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr. Mo Kam Chuen and Dr. Cheung Ying Man in running the monthly video 

session very smoothly and especially Dr. Cheung‟s effort in producing the high quality video giving the participants the feeling of 

attending the luncheon meeting.  

Small Discussion Group 

It is good news that the number of Small Discussion Groups has increased to 127. Participant members will gain 1 CME point and the 

speaker will gain an extra 1 CPD point. Members who are actively participating in writing up local management protocols of common 

diseases can also earn extra CPD points. Well-written synopses will be published in our College Journal „Hong Kong Practitioner‟ to 

give credit to the excellent work of some small discussion groups. However, synopses not up to standard are requested to be re-

written again.  

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank Dr. Tong Siu Man and other Board members in reviewing all the synopses and 

protocol, making sure the standard is reached.  

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Training 

The Board would like to thank the Hong Kong College of Cardiology, especially Dr. Cheng Chun Ho and Dr. Pun Chiu On for their 

continuous support. Our CPR training workshops and examinations were running successfully and the Instructor workshops for up-

keeping standards and recruiting new instructors were well organized.  We held two CPR training workshops in 2010-2011. We have 

47 members who passed the CPR Examination and were awarded the Certificate of Competency CPR in Basic Life Support this 

year.   

 

The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr. David S. L. Chan and Dr. Wong Pak Hoi in co-ordinating and Dr. Au-yeung 

Shiu Hing, Dr. Patrick H. W. Chan, Dr. Cheung Ying Man, Dr. Chow Shun Wai, Dr. Winson W. Y. Hung, Dr. Kong Che Wan, Dr. Kwan 

Man Woo, Dr. Michael C. H. Kwok, Dr. Stanley K. H. Lam, Dr. Lau Tai Wai, Dr. Daniel C. Y. Leung, Dr. Danny P. K. Ma, Dr. Mo Kam 

Chuen, Dr. David T. W. Sung, Dr. Tong Leon George, Dr. Keith K. K. Tse, Dr. Wong Ka Wah, for being the examiners. 

Clinical Attachment 

Being the Chairlady, I am glad that we have three clinical attachments this year with the support from our hospital colleagues.  

Diabetes -      United Christian Hospital  

ENT     - Division of Otorhinolaryngology, Department of Surgery, CUHK 

Infectious Diseases    -  Department of Medicine and Geriatrics, Princess Margaret Hospital 

 

The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr. Tsang Man Wo, Dr. Grace Kam, Professor C. A. van Hasselt, Professor 

Michael Tong, Dr. John Woo, Dr. Chow Chun Bong, Dr. Thomas So and the staffs of their departments for organizing our clinical 

attachments. The clinical attachments are aimed at in-depth and structural teaching of our members in these specialties. 

Assessment Enhancement Course  

Assessment Enhancement Course remained the most welcome course in her eleventh year of establishment. I would like to thank 

all the tutors in donating their time and effort in this course. They help tremendously in upgrading the standard of participating 

doctors on family medicine in the consultation skills, physical examination and other various aspects. These are very useful to our 

members in preparing the Conjoint Fellowship Examination. 
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The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr. Janet C. Y. Tam in co-ordinating and all tutors as follows: Dr. Che Ka Seng, 

Dr. Roald S. Y. Cheng, Dr. Cheuk Wing Ngai, Dr. Cheung Mei Yee, Dr. Becky W. T. Chu, Dr. Chung Kin Wing, Dr. Fok Peter Anthony, 

Dr. Ho Ka Ming, Dr. Alan Y. L. Kwok, Dr. Lau Chi Hang, Dr. Monica W. Y. Lee, Dr. Vincent W. S. Li, Dr. Allen H. Y. Ngai, Dr. Poon 

Ting Kong, Dr. Sy Wing Man, Dr. Tam Kwong Yu, Dr. Wong Fai Ying, Dr. Wong Ka Wah, Dr. Yeung Wai Man and Dr. Young Suk 

Ching. 
 

Post AEC Training Course 

As doctors working in private practice (Category II candidates) are lacking structural training, the Post AEC Training Course was first 

launched in April 2010 for the AEC candidates especially Category II candidates to provide the platform to facilitate them for 

preparing the Conjoint Fellowship Examination with formal group support The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to the 

Co-ordinator, Dr. Peter K. Y. Lee and all the tutors: Dr. Simon C. L. Au, Dr. Edmond C. W. Chan, Dr. Mark S. H. Chan, Dr. Lai Wai 

Wah, Dr. Francis W. T. Lee and Dr. Gordon Y. M. Leung in donating their time and effort in this course. 

Annual Refresher Course 

Annual Refresher Course is the traditional major year-end event for 30 years. This year, we had 5 weekday lectures and 4 Sunday 

workshops and were attended by over 230 members. Thanks for all those participants who returned their evaluation questionnaires. 

The comments and suggestions are valuable in helping us to plan for the coming ARC in year 2011. 

 
Date Topics Speakers 

23-11-2010 (Tue) Vaccination 

Treatment and Prevention of Pneumococcal Infection in Children 

 

Dr. Ng Kwok Keung, Daniel 

25-11-2010 

(Thurs) 

Cardio-thoracic 

1. Impact of Early Disease Detection on the Prevention of Heart 

Disease and Stroke 

2. Minimal Invasive Surgery for Lung Cancer 

 

Dr. Mak Yiu Kwong, Gary 

 

Dr. Chui Wing Hung 

30-11-2010 (Tue) Gastroenterology and Nephrology 

1. Updates on Management of GERD and H. P. Eradication 

2. RAS Blockade and Organ Protection 

 

Dr. Cheung Ting Kin 

Dr. Leung Tat Chi, Godwin 

02-12-2010 

(Thurs) 

Cardiology 

Multi-risk Factors Approach to Address the 70% Residual CV Risk of your 

Statins Treated Patients 

 

Dr. Cheng Chun Ho 

07-12-2010 

(Tue) 

Asthma 

Update in the Management of Asthma 

 

Dr. Grace Law 

SUNDAY WORKSHOPS 

21-11-2010 (Sun) Cardiovascular Workshop 

1. Optimize Hypertension Treatment in Daily Practice 

2. Rationale in Reducing Complications in Acute Coronary Syndrome 

 

Dr. Wu Chee Wo 

Dr. David C. K. Hu 

28-11-2010 (Sun) Mental Health Workshop 

1. The Challenge of Improving Adherence in Depressive Patients 

2. New Era in Managing GAD 

 

Dr. Cindy Chiu 

Dr. Kwan Ka Lik 

05-12-2010 (Sun) Mood Disorder Workshop 

1. Sleep, Circadian Rhythm and Depression 

2. HKU Visiting Professor - Doctor Mental Health 

3. Review of Treatment to Depression 

 

Professor Chen Char Nie 

Professor Amanda Howe 

Dr. Richard Fung 

12-12-2010 (Sun) Hepatitis and Urology Workshop 

1. Stopping Antiviral Drugs - Who and When  

2. Managing Benign Prostatic Hyperplasia in Primary Care Practice 

 

Professor Chan Lik Yuen 

Dr. Man Chi Wai 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank Dr. Hung Wai Yin in co-ordinating and all the speakers in making our ARC 

very successful.  

Annual Updates, Luncheon Meetings, Seminars and Workshops  

Updates seminars and weekday luncheon lectures were organized regularly throughout the whole year with the support from 

various specialties including Cardiology, Dental, Endocrinology, ENT, Surgery, Gynaecology, Dermatology, Gastroenterology, 

Geriatric, Nephrology, Neurology, Oncology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics, Paediatric, Psychiatry, Respiratory and Rheumatology.  
 

The following were our programmes since the last report: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

15-04-2010 Advances in Management of Premature Ejaculation Dr. Yip Wai Chun 
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05-05-2010 New Treatment Update in Allergic Rhinitis Dr. Yip Kim Kwong 

12-05-2010 Novel Approaches to Pediatric Community-acquired Pneumonia Dr. Jeffrey L. Blumer 

22-06-2010 ARBs - Across the Cardiovascular Continuum Professor Robert J Chilton 

11-07-2010 Update Symposia on Cardiovascular Thrombosis Disease 

1. From Hypertension to PCI 

2. Anti-platelet Treatment in PCI - Old & New 

3. ACS, What We Can Do in the Critical Hours 

4. Updates on Atrial Fibrillation Management 

 

Dr. Kwok Miu Fong 

Dr. Lee Pui Yin 

Dr. Wong Wing Kwong 

Dr. Chan Ngai Yin 

12-07-2010 Relevance of Vitamin D in Osteoporosis Patients: Key Clinical 
Considerations 

Professor Heike Bischoff-Ferrari 

05-08-2010 Hypertension Management 2010: How to Optimize Treatment - 

Approaches to Better Meet Goals? 

Professor Michel Burnier 

20-08-2010 The Facts and Myths of HPV Vaccines Dr. Gerard Vincent Wain 

24-08-2010 Advance Management on Allergic Rhinitis, Nasal Polyps & Rhinosinusitis Dr. Michael G. Stewart 

01-09-2010 Importance of Screening Patients with Suboptimal Erection Hardness Dr. George Lee 

03-09-2010 Strontium Ranelate: From the Mode of Action to the Anti-fracture Efficacy Dr. Justin Cheng 

17-09-2010 Advances in Diagnosis and Management of Rheumatic Disease Dr. Tsui Hing Sum 

03-10-2010 1. The Role of TZDs in the Management of Type 2 Diabetes 

2. ARBs - Across the Cardiovascular Continuum 

3. Current Management of Acid Reflux Diseases 

Professor Patrick J. Boyle 

Professor Lam Yat Yin 

Dr. Raymond W. M. Wong 

05-10-2010 What are the Options of Treatment at Time of OAD Failure? Dr. Chan Wing Bun 

18-10-2010 Improving Asthma Care: The Individual and Community Approach Professor Tari Haahtela 

21-10-2010 Fibromyalgia Myths and Facts Dr. Rakesh Jain 

09-12-2010 Updates on Cervical Cancer Vaccination 

1. Targeting a Challenging Virus - HPV 

2. The Impact of Cervical Cancer Vaccination: Benefit to Girls and 

Women in Clinical Practice 

3. Role of Primary Care Physicians in Cervical Cancer Prevention 

 

Professor David Allen 

Professor David Allen 

 

Dr. Chan Kwok Wai 

15-12-2010 Maximizing Alzheimer‟s Disease Treatment Professor Vincent C. T. Mok 

18-12-2010 Type 2 DM and Insulin Management  Dr. Tsang Man Wo 

14-01-2011 Successful Pain Management: Strike a Balance of Risk and Benefits of 

Using Pain Killer 

Professor Gurkirpal Singh 

15-02-2011 Optimizing Treatment Response in Major Depressive Disorder and 

Generalized Anxiety Disorder 

Professor Stuart A. Montgomery 

13-03-2011 Multi-disciplinary Pain Symposium for Musculoskeletal Pain 2011 

1. Update of Multimodal Pain Therapy for Difficult Musculoskeletal Pain - 

Practical Tips 

2. Active and Passive Physiotherapy for Chronic Musculoskeletal Pain 

with Live Demonstrations 

3. Flow Therapy to Tackle Pain Sensitization - from Goal Setting to 

Activity with Case Illustration 

 

Dr. Li Ching Fan, Carina 

 

Ms. Mo Tin Yi, Terry 

 

Mr. Edward Chan 

17-03-2011 New Development into Cardiovascular Risk Factor Management Professor Preston Mason 

20-03-2011 Neurology Update 

1. Update of the Multiple Sclerosis Diagnosis and Treatment  

2. New Advances in Stroke Prevention in Atrial Fibrillation 

3. Neuro-rehabilitation 

 

Dr. Li Chung Ki, Patrick 

Professor Lawrence Wong 

Dr. Li Sheung Wai, Leonard 

23-03-2011 Information Mastery: Evidence Based Medicine in the Real World 
 

Dr. David C. Slawson 

The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank all guest speakers in our various College scientific and educational events.  

 

The Board would like to express our sincere thanks to Dr. Au-yeung Shiu Hing, the Moderator Chairman and Dr. Simon C. L. Au, Dr. 

Edmond C. H. Chan, Dr. Edmond C. W. Chan, Dr. Amy K. L. Chan, Dr. Mark S. H. Chan, Dr. Chan Yin Hang, Dr. Lee Cheuk Pong, 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee, Dr. Danny P. K. Ma, Dr. Ngan Po Lun, Dr. Leon George Tong, Dr. Tong Siu Man, Dr. Wong Nai Ming, and Dr. 

Solomon T. L. Yeung for being the moderators.  

  

The Board videotaped the updates and lectures, which are kept in our video library for video viewing sessions and for members‟ 

access through the secretariat at Wanchai. Those members, who cannot attend the lectures that they are interested in, can re-visit 

through seeing the videotape in our Wanchai premise. Our College plans to upload these lectures and Updates on to the website 
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for Board of Education so that members could access at home.  

 

The Board would like to thank all those members for giving us comments or returning feedback questionnaires after attending the 

lectures or updates. Their valuable comments would enable the Board to arrange lectures to meet the learning needs of our 

members in the future. Again, members are encouraged to submit their CPD logs of these lectures and Updates to gain additional 

CPD points. 

Certificate Course 

Certificate Course on Respiratory Medicine for Family Physicians Programme Schedule: 

Dates Topics Speakers 

25-09-2010 (Sat) 

 

1. Smoking and Lung Health: Smoking Cessation 

2. COPD - Why Some Patients are Better Managed 

Dr. Thomas Y. W. Mok 

Dr. Maureen M. L. Wong 

09-10-2010 (Sat) 

 

 

1. Management of Tuberculosis: Local Perspective 

2. Evaluation and Management of Obstructive Sleep Apnoea in Adults 

Dr. C. K. Chan 

Dr. Kah Lin Choo 

23-10-2010 (Sat) 

 

1. Asthma: Updates on Management  

2. Community Acquired Pneumonia: Updates on Management 

Dr. Fanny W. S. Ko 

Dr. H. S. Chan 

13-11-2010 (Sat) 

 

 

1. Lung Cancer: Towards Earlier Diagnosis and Updates on Treatment 

2. Approach and Management of Pleural Effusion 

Dr. James C. M. Ho 

Dr. Johnny W. M. Chan 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank all the speakers, especially to Dr. Tse Pak Yiu, co-ordinator of Tseung Kwan O 

Hospital, Dr. Tam Cheuk Yiu, President of Hong Kong Thoracic Society and Dr. Wong Mo Liu Maureen, President of the American 

College of Chest Physicians (Hong Kong & Macau Chapter) for their contribution in the Certificate Course on Respiratory Medicine. 

Professional Development Subcommittee 

Since 2005, six Interest Groups have been formed under this Subcommittee: namely Clinical Family Medicine, Dermatology, 

Geriatric, Medico-legal, Mental Health, and Neuro-musculoskeletal.  

 

Our Interest Groups provide a platform for all members of our College in public and private sectors to meet and exchange their 

experience. Members are encouraged to participate and present their cases or problems for discussions or role-play for sharing. 

Sharing experience is an important mode of gaining knowledge. Both the experienced and less experienced doctors can benefit 

from their participation. 

 

Sharing problem cases with specialists or experts will provide peer support, skill-mix and bridging the professional gap. This will 

upgrade our standard, raise our morale, and increase our job satisfaction. This will also promote early awareness, clinical 

governance and risk management in respect to different medical fields, to assure a better management and a high-quality health 

care for the public. 

 

Since 2008, Board of Education has been planning to arrange some structural training courses under Professional Development 

Subcommittee for our members, especially on the aspects that are important in our discipline and yet seldom touched in our training. 

Without doubt, Practice Management is an essential part of a good general practice. Training Course on Practice Management, 

arranged under the Interest Group of Medico-legal Alert is the first one to start off and is overwhelming welcomed. Research on 

Family Medicine is rather deficit in our discipline and we will arrange a Training Course on Research & Biostatistics for Medical 

Professionals under the Interest Group of Clinical Family Medicine in the coming year. Training Course on Counseling under the 

Interest Group in Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary Care is under arrangement also. 

Training Course: Practice Management Training Course for Family Physicians Programme Schedule: 

 
Dates Topics Speakers 

26-06-2010 (Sat) 

 

1. Physical Setting and Insurance 

2. Professional support and Indemnity for doctors 

Dr. Yuen Chung Lau, Natalis 

Dr. Teoh Ming Keng 

17-07-2010 (Sat) Effective Clinic Operation & Management  Professor Li Kwok Tung, Donald 

25-07-2010 (Sun) Management of Pharmacy, Dispensary and Dangerous Drug Dr. Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew 

08-08-2010 (Sun) Infection Control and Occupational Safety Dr. Lam King Hei, Stanley and Dr. Lam 

Tak Man, Catherine 

 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the co-ordinator, Dr Chan Chi Wai and all the distinguished speakers for their 

contributions in the Training Course of Practice Management. 

 

Medico-legal Alert Interest Group alerts our members on medical legal importance of various aspects of our discipline. This year, 

we have co-organized a seminar with Medical Protection Society (MPS), The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians (Interest 

Group in Medico-legal Alert) and The Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. 
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Date Topics Speakers 

19-09-2010 Medico-legal Alert on “Dollars & Sense: The Law and Ethics of 

Medical Charges and Professional Fees” 

 
1. The MCHK Perspective: Ethical Principles of Professional Fees 
 
2. The Legal Perspective: Kickbacks and Overcharging 

 
 
3. A Medical Professional‟s Perspective 
 
4. The MPS Perspective: Are There Boundaries? 

 
 

 

Dr. Tse Hung Hing 
 
Mr. Chris Howse 
Professor Li Kwok Tung, Donald 
Dr. Teoh Ming Keng 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the co-ordinator, Dr Leon Tong and all the guest speakers. 

 

The Interest Group in Dermatology scheduled to have regular bimonthly meeting on first Saturday afternoon of odd months 

(except public holidays) in the year 2010. We had five meetings in 2010. Those who have attended 80% of the activities annually 

would be awarded the certificate of attendance. Twenty-two participants were awarded certificates in the year 2010. 
 

Dates Topics Speakers 

09-01-2010 Skin Problems on Hands and feet Dr. Lee Tze Yuen 

06-03-2010 Infant Dermatology Dr. V. K. Sugunan 

03-07-2010 Skin Tumours Dr. Chan Shu Yu 

04-09-2010 Sun and Skin Dr. Lo Kuen Kong 

06-11-2010 Cosmetic Dermatology Professor Henry H. L. Chan 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the co-ordinator, Dr. Wong Nai Ming and all the guest speakers. 

 

The Interest Group in Mental Health and Psychiatry in Primary Care scheduled regular bimonthly meeting on first Saturday 

afternoon of even months (except public holidays) in the year 2010. We had five meetings in 2010.Those who have attended 80% of 

Mental Interest Group and would be awarded the certificate of attendance. Twenty participants were awarded certificates in the year 

2010. 

 
Dates Topics Speakers 

06-02-2010 
 

A New Synergy in Mental Health Patient Rehabilitation between 

Family Physician and Occupational Therapist 

Dr. Hector Tsang, PhD, OTR                                                                                                                  

05-06-2010 
 

PTSD and Report on 2010 Department of Health Conference on 

Sichuen Post Earthquake Mental Rehabilitation 

Dr. Chan Suen Ho, Mark 

07-08-2010 Working with Families - the Systemic Perspectives Dr. Wong Oi Ling 

02-10-2010 Applying Sex Therapy to Family Practice Dr. Lam Wing Wo 

04-12-2010 Depression and Anxiety Management Dr. Ng Kwai Sang, Sam 

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the co-ordinator, Dr. Mark S. H. Chan and all the guest speakers. 

The Interest Group in Neuro-Musculoskeletal Programme Schedule: 

Date Topic Speaker 

19-06-2010 How Specific Physical Examination and Treatment May Help to 

Prevent Back & Knee Operations - with Patient Demonstration 

Mr. Luck Li 

   

The Board would like to take the opportunity to thank the co-ordinator, Dr. Simon C. L. Au and the guest speaker, Mr. Luck Li. 

Interpractice Visit 

Interpractice visit is a mean of continuous medical education through practice visits by peer group. Participants may share their 

experience and improve their skills on clinic and practice management, thereby achieving a high standard of service. The details were 

published in the College Journal since May 1998. 

Community Education Programmes 

I would like to thank the following hospitals, societies and associations in helping our Board in organizing the various Community 

Education Programmes: 

- Hong Kong Medical Association 

- Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital, Kowloon West Cluster, Hospital Authority 

- Professional Development & Quality Assurance, Department of Health 

- United Christian Hospital, Kowloon East & Kowloon West Cluster, Hospital Authority 

College members were welcomed to attend these programmes and CME points were accredited. 
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Structured Education Programme 

The Structured Educational Programme (SEP) is the mandatory training programme in basic training. It's divided into 14 module and 

trainees should be attended at least 15 hrs for each module. It is opened to all College members and will be awarded CME credit 

points when attending the programme.  I would like to thank the following hospitals in organizing the various Structured Education 

Programmes for our College members: 

- Tuen Mun Hospital 

- Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 

- Tsan Yuk Hospital 

- Prince of Wales Hospital 

- United Christian Hospital 

- Tseung Kwan O Hospital 

Self-Assessment Correspondent Programme 

1) MCQ papers 

MCQ papers were sent out quarterly with our College Journal. Members will only be accredited if over 50% of the answers are 

correct and will be awarded maximum 12 CME credit points per year.  

2) Hong Kong Check  

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, in collaboration with the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners, runs a 

Hong Kong version of the Check program. Members who subscribe to the Hong Kong Check will be awarded 12 CME credit points 

for satisfactory completion (at least 75% of the questions) of the HKCFP “Check on Check” program issued at the end of the year for 

the “CHECK” Programme. 

Acknowledgement 

Stepping into the seventh year of chairperson of the Board of Education, I would like to take this opportunity to express my most 

sincere thanks to all members of the Board of Education for their unlimited support and contributions in serving the College. They 

are the capable and supportive team to back me up in organizing the various types of educational activities for our College 

members. I am indebted to them, and our secretarial staffs, Ms. Winniea Lee and Ms. Yvonne Lam for their enormous support. I 

would also like to take this opportunity to thank all sister Colleges, Universities, Hospital Authority, Department of Health for their 

support in our various educational activities. We are also thankful to the various pharmaceutical companies who generously 

sponsored many of our functions. 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES 

Chairlady               : Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee  

   
Deputy Chairman  : Dr. Lau Ho Lim  

   

Advisors                   : Dr. Stephen K.S. Foo  

 Prof. Cindy L.K. Lam  

 Prof. Donald K.T. Li  

   

Board Members     : Dr. Chan Hung Chiu Dr. Edmund W.W. Lam 

 Dr. David V.K. Chao Dr. Liang Jun 

 Dr. Cheung Man Kuen Dr. Sammy L.T. Tsoi 

 Dr. Billy C.F. Chiu Dr. Gene W.W. Tsoi 

 Dr. Daniel W.S. Chu Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

 Dr. Linda Y.F. Hui  

   

Ex-officio              :  Dr. Mary B.L. Kwong  

 Dr. Angus M.W. Chan  

 Dr. Law Tung Chi  

   

Staff                      : Mr. Patrick M.H. Wu  (Administrative Executive) 

 Ms. Crystal W.Y. Yung (Executive Officer) 

 Ms. Erica So (Executive Manager) 

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

There is evidence that countries with more generalist family doctors are more likely to have better health outcomes, lower costs and 

greater satisfaction. Not only will financial resources be saved but also effective efficient use of high technology. Primary health care 
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is the best route to universal access, the best way to ensure sustainable improvements in health outcomes, and the best guarantee 

that access to care will be fair. The Board of Professional Development and Services was established in October 2010 to organize 

and develop educational activities for medical and health professionals outside Hong Kong SAR in relation to family medicine, as 

well as liaise and coordinate with other boards of the College for activities of the Board.  

STRUCTURED PROJECTS 

Training Programme – Beijing Delegation 

Organization/Institution  :   Beijing Community Health Service Committee (北京市社區醫生協會) 

No. of participants          :   29  

Dates                         :   7 -11 March 2011  

Format                            :   5-day programme including lectures, workshops and FM clinic visits 

 

Speakers              :   Dr. Simon C.L. Au                  Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Chan Laam   Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee 

Dr. Catherine X.R. Chen                Dr. Gene W.W. Tsoi 

Dr. Daniel W.S. Chu 

Clinic visits                   :    Fanling Family Medicine Centre 

             Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital 

             Kowloon Bay Health Centre 

             Tseung Kwan O Jockey Club General outpatient Clinic 

Structured CME Programme -- Chinese Medical Association of Macau: 

Organization/Institution :     Chinese Medical Association of Macau (澳門中華醫學會) 

Dates                      :    20 March 2011 / 12 June 2011 / 7 August 2011 

Format                           :    3 sessions with 4 hourly lectures each  

 

Speakers                       : Dr. Mark S.H. Chan   Dr. Ip Pang Fei 

 Dr. David V.K. Chao   Dr. Lai Wai Wah 

 Dr. Billy C.F. Chiu   Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

 Dr. Chan Hung Chiu   Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee 

 Dr. Daniel W.S. Chu   Dr. Paul C.H. Siu 

 Dr. Linda Y.F. Hui   

 

 

BOARD OF VOCATIONAL TRAINING AND STANDARDS 

Chairman :  Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

Deputy Chairman : Dr. Chan Kin Ling 

      

Board Members:  Dr. Benny L. P. Lui  (Head, Branch of Training) 

Dr. Dorothy T. C. Law (Head, Branch of Standards) 
Dr. Barry T. F. Bien 
Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan 
Dr. Edwin Y. H. Chan 
Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu 
Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui 
Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 
Dr. Augustine T. Lam 
Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 
Dr. Pang Siu Leung 
Dr. Anthony S. B. Poon 
Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi 

Ex-officio:  Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 
 

Subcommittees 

Basic Training Subcommittee 

Chairman:  Dr. Pang Siu Leung 

Members:  Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan 

Dr. Lau Po Shan 
Dr. Tony C. K. Lee 
Dr. Anthony S. B. Poon 
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Higher Training Subcommittee 

Chairman:    Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu  

Members:    Dr. Carroll K. L. Chan 

 
Dr. Edwin Y. H. Chan 

 
Dr. Anthony K. Y. Ho 

 
Dr. Lam Hiu Lam 

 
Dr. Stanley K. H. Lam 

 
Dr. Benny L. P. Lui  

 
Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

 
Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

Trainers Subcommittee 

Chairlady: Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Memebrs: Dr. Eileen Y. Y. Tse 

 
Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi 

 
Dr. John T. N. Chung 

 
Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo 

 
Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee  

 
Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo 

Clinical Supervisor Subcommittee 

Chairman:   Dr. Barry T. F. Bien  

Member:  Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu 

 

Training Centre Subcommittee 

Chairman:  Dr. Chan Kin Ling 

Dr. Tony C. K. Lee 
 

Training Programme Subcommittee 

Chairman:  Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 

Members:  Dr. Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

Staff:   Ms. Carmen S .Y. Cheng (Administrative Executive) 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 

In this year, we are working hard in revising the Vocational Training Programme.  We have received a lot of advices from our 
colleagues, especially those working in Hospital Authority and we took their ideas seriously.  After a series of discussions, the new 
Programme is going in fine tuning stage.  Details will be provided when the Programme is ready. 
 
On the other hand, the Board had received several requests from the trainees, asking for exemption from the set rules as they 
cannot fulfill such rules and requirements to sit in Examinations or continue their training.  I am here to request all the trainees to 
study the training logbook and handbook carefully in detail to ensure that you are following the rules to avoid any serious 
consequences.  And the summary of the requirements had been written on the red-coloured „Important Notice‟ on your logbook. 
 

The usual statistics up to 31
st
 March 2011 are as follows: 

New enrolled Basic trainees  : 38 

New enrolled Higher trainees  : 19 

Total Basic trainees   : 123 

Total Higher trainees   : 124 
 
In the Board structure, there are several new faces.  I would like to introduce to all of you our newly appointed Chairman of Higher 
Training Subcommittee, Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy; and Chairman of Basic Training Subcommitte, Dr. Pang Siu Leung.  I believe they 
will „Do their job well‟.  And I would like to take this opportunity to thank Dr. Benny Lui for his contribution while he was our Chairman 
in Higher Training Subcommittee and he decided to step down to give more opportunities to our new generation. 
 
As the economic environment improved, our college manpower had changed a lot.  Fortunately, our Board secretary, Carmen still 
stayed with us.  I would like to pay tribute to her dedication towards the Board in the past year.   
 
Output 
Congratulations to our trainees for passing the HKCFP/RACGP Conjoint Examination in 2010 and for being elected Fellows of the 
Hong Kong College of Family Physicians and the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners. 
 

Dr. Chan Shuk Yan, Angela Dr. Li Hei Lim 

Dr. Chan Man Hung Dr. Lo Tsz Yan 

Dr. Cheng Chun Sing, David Dr. Pon Wai Pi 

Dr. Cheuk Christina  Dr. Siu Lok Man 
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Dr. Choi Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr. Wong Hing Lam 

Dr. Chu Lai Shan Dr. Wong Pak Kin 

Dr. Hung Lok Lam, Susanna Dr. Yau Kin Chung 

Dr. Kwok Chi Ming Dr. Yuen Yuk Kwun, Natalie 

Dr. Lee Chi Leung 
 

        
 
The Board certified completion of 4-year Basic Training in Family Medicine for the 30 trainees in 2010. 
 

Dr. Chan Man Hung, Jeff Dr. Li Chee Lan, Lina 

Dr. Chan Ching Dr. Li Hei Lim 

Dr. Chan Chuk Yan Dr. Lo Tsz Yan 

Dr. Cheng Chun Sing Dr. Lo Wing Sze 

Dr. Cheng Kit Wing Dr. Luk Chi To 

Dr. Cheuk Christina Dr. Luk Wai Kwok  

Dr. Chu Lai Shan Dr. Mak Wing Hang 

Dr. Chung Sze Pok, Zabo Dr. Pon Wai Pi 

Dr. Fung Sau Man Dr. Siu Lok Man 

Dr. Hau Sin Ying Dr. Tsang Chi Fai 

Dr. Ho Chung Yu Dr. Wong Pak Kin 

Dr. Hung Lok Lam, Susanna Dr. Wong Hing Lam 

Dr. Kwok Chi Ming Dr. Yau Kin Chung 

Dr. Lee Chi Leung Dr. Yip Wing Yi 

Dr. Lee Wai Yin Dr. Yuen Yuk Kwun 

 
 
The Board certified completion of 2-year of Higher Training in Family Medicine for the 61 trainees in 2010. 
 

Dr. Chan Chin Ping Dr. Leung Lai Kuen 

Dr. Chan Pui Wai Dr. Leung Pui Sha, Crystal 

Dr. Chan Wan Ki Dr. Leung To Fung 

Dr. Chan Ying Ho Dr. Leung Wai Man 

Dr. Chau Kai Man Dr. Leung Wing Kit 

Dr. Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine Dr. Lim Mo Kin 

Dr. Cheung Hard King Dr. Ng Cham Chi 

Dr. Cheung Man Ha Dr. Ng Mei Po, Jackie 

Dr. Ching Tak Kwan, Joyce Dr. Ng Pak Him 

Dr. Choi Yue Kwan Dr. Poon Ming Wai 

Dr. Chow Chong Kwan Dr. Shuen Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr. Chow Kam Fai Dr. Sin Ka Ling 

Dr. Chu Tsun Kit Dr. Sit Wing Shan 

Dr. Chung Chak Cheong Dr. Sze Lung Yam 

Dr. Chung Kin Wing Dr. Sze Pui Ka 

Dr. Fan Wai Man, Anita Dr. Tam Kit Ping 

Dr. Fung Pak Kei Dr. Tang Tin Yuk, Adrian 

Dr. Ho Ka Ming Dr. Tse Peggy 

Dr. Ho Mo Sze, Ellen Dr. Wong Ho Cheong 

Dr. Hong Tin Chak Dr. Wong Kwok Hoi 

Dr. Hui King Wai Dr. Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr. Hung Chi Bun Dr. Wong Man Kin 

Dr. Ip Yan Yan Dr. Wong Sze Man, Loretta 

Dr. Kwan Wing Yan, Wendy Dr. Wong Sze Nga 

Dr. Kwok Vincci Dr. Wong Tak Lung 

Dr. Lai Sheung Siu Dr. Wong Yuk Shan 

Dr. Lai Siu Wai Dr. Wu Kwok Keung 

Dr. Lam Wai Hang, Eddie Dr. Yip Tze Hung 

Dr. Lee Ka Pik Dr. Yip Wah Yung 

Dr. Lee Kar Fai Dr. Young Suk Ching 

Dr. Lee Man Kei 
 

 

APPENDIX A 

Trainees in Higher Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2010/2011 
 
 

Name of Trainees Clinical Supervisor 
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1 Dr. Au Chui Kwan Dr. David V. K. Chao 

2 Dr. Chan Hoi Yuk Dr. Paul C. H. Siu 

3 Dr. Chan Ka Lung Dr. Wong Hung Wai 

4 Dr. Chan Lam Fung Dr. John T. N. Chung 

5 Dr. Chan Man Hung, Jeff Dr. Leung Kwan Wa 

6 Dr. Chan Shan Ching Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

7 Dr. Chan Siu Cheung Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

8 Dr. Chan Shuk Yan, Angela Dr. Li Wing Shun, Vincent 

9 Dr. Chan Sze Man Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 

10 Dr. Chan Ting Bong Dr. Fung Yuk Kwan 

11 Dr. Chan Wai Wing Dr. Francis W. T. Lee  

12 Dr. Chan Wai Yee, Tina Dr. Keith K. K. Tse 

13 Dr. Chan Yu Dr. Kitty K. C. Chan 

14 Dr. Che Ka Seng Dr. Benny L. P. Lui 

15 Dr. Cheng Chun Sing, David Dr. Kwong Siu Kei 

16 Dr. Cheng Cheuk Hong Dr. Wong Chi Lung 

17 Dr. Cheng Ghar Yee, Judy Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

18 Dr. Cheuk Christina Dr. Tsm Sze Man 

19 Dr. Cheuk Wing Ngar Dr. Thomas Y. L. Chan 

20 Dr. Cheung Chung Yin, Johnny Dr. Yuen Fu Lam 

21 Dr. Cheung Mei Yee Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

22 Dr. Cheung Pui Shan, Cindy Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

23 Dr. Cheung Wing Wo Dr. Lau Chi Hang 

24 Dr. Ching Kin Yu Dr. Leung Shuk Yun 

25 Dr. Choi Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr. Chan King Hong 

26 Dr. Choi Wing Fai Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

27 Dr. Choi Yue Kwan Dr. Kenny Kung 

28 Dr. Chow Kai Lim Dr. Chan Pang Fai 

29 Dr. Chow Kwan Lung Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

30 Dr. Chow Sheung Yan, Alex Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

31 Dr. Chu Lai Shan Dr. Tan Chung Yin 

32 Dr. Chu Wai Ting, Becky Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

33 Dr. Chu Wan Wing, Vivian Dr. Billy S. H. Chui 

34 Dr. Chuang Yuk Shan Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna 

35 Dr. Chung Sze Pok Dr. Chan Chi Wai 

36 Dr. Chung Wai Ho Dr. Ignatius P. S. Choy  

37 Dr. Fok Peter Anthony Dr. Lau Chi Hang 

38 Dr. Fung Siu Cheung, Colman Dr. Betty K. M. Kwan 

39 Dr. Ha Kwok Leung Dr. Chan Man Li 

40 Dr. Ho Chi Hin Dr. Dominic M. W. Lau 

41 Dr. Ho Wang Fung Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee  

42 Dr. Hui Ah Ni Dr. Kan Chi Ho 

43 Dr. Hui Lai Chi Dr. Chan Sze Luen 

44 Dr. Hui Wai Lee Dr. Kwong Ka Wah 

45 Dr. Hung Lok Lam, Susanna Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

46 Dr. Ip Fung Yi Dr. Lai Wing Yiu 

47 Dr. Ko Siu Hin Dr. Chan Sze Luen 

48 Dr. Kwan Shu To Dr. Tsui Pun Nang 

49 Dr. Kwan Yu Dr. David V. K. Chao 

50 Dr. Kwok Chi Ming Dr. Leung Kwan Wa 

51 Dr. Kwok Hon Chu, Kenneth Dr. Chan Chi Wai 

52 Dr. Kwok Lai Ping, Steffi Dr. Kwok Chi Sum 

53 Dr. Kwok Yuk Lun Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

54 Dr. Kwong Wing Hun Dr. Li Yim Chu 

55 Dr. Lam Man Man Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui 

56 Dr. Lam Wai Ho Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

57 Dr. Lam Wai Kit Dr. Charmaine C. W. Tse 

58 Dr. Lau Chun Yin, Victor Dr. Billy S. H. Chui 

59 Dr. Lau Pui Lam Dr. Chan Sze Luen 

60 Dr. Lau Wai Ling Dr. Yvonne Y. C. Lo 

61 Dr. Lau Yue Young, Geoffrey Dr. Law Tung Chi 

62 Dr. Lee Chi Leung Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 

63 Dr. Lee Chik Pui Dr. Leung Shuk Yun 
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64 Dr. Lee Hoi Ying Dr. Ng Yeung Shing 

65 Dr. Lee Ka Pik Dr. Paul W. K. Cheung 

66 Dr. Lee Kit Yan Dr. Tsui Hoi Yee 

67 Dr. Lee Ling Hin Dr. Cathering S. W. Ng 

68 Dr. Lee Pui Wai Dr. Wan Wing Fai 

69 Dr. Lee Sik Kwan, Jenny Dr. David P. H. Yu 

70 Dr. Lee Wing Yi  Dr. Allen H. Y. Ngai 

71 Dr. Lee Yee Lam Dr. Amy O. Y. Wong 

72 Dr. Leung Sze Wan, Selina Dr. Lau Pui Ling 

73 Dr. Leung Wan Chiu Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong 

74 Dr. Li Hei Lim Dr. Wong Man Ying 

75 Dr. Li Yuen Yuen Dr. Wendy W. C. Lo 

76 Dr. Lo Shiu Bong Dr. Sin Ming Chuen 

77 Dr. Lo Sze Mon Dr. Wong Hung Yung 

78 Dr. Lo Tsz Yan Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

79 Dr. Lo Wai Hon Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

80 Dr. Luk Man Hei, Matthew Dr. Chan Pang Fai  

81 Dr. Ng Tze King, Peter Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 

82 Dr. Ngan Ka Lai, Raymond Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 

83 Dr. Pang Kwok Ching Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 

84 Dr. Pon Wai Pi Dr. Wan Kwong Yu 

85 Dr. Pong Pong Dr. Sze Hon Ho 

86 Dr. Poon Ting Kong Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

87 Dr. Pun Lai Yin Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

88 Dr. Siu Lok Man Dr. Chu Wai Sing 

89 Dr. Siu Pui Yi Dr. Too Lai Chong 

90 Dr. So Ching Yee, Gloria Dr. Ng Mei Yee 

91 Dr. So Fong Tat Dr. Tam Sze Man 

92 Dr. So Siu Hei Dr. Law Tung Chi 

93 Dr. So Yung Pak Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

94 Dr. Sy Hung Pan Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

95 Dr. Sy Wing Man Dr. Luk Wan 

96 Dr. Sze Chung Fai Dr. Lai Kit Chi 

97 Dr. Tam Ho Shan Dr. Andy K. Y. Cheung  

98 Dr. Tam John Hugh Dr. Tsui Hoi Yee 

99 Dr. Tam Wah Kit Dr. Li Yim Chu 

100 Dr. Tang Hoi Yan Dr. Hung Wai Yin 

101 Dr. Tsang Chi Fai Dr. Cheung Kwok Leung 

102 Dr. Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

103 Dr. Wat Pui Kwan, Judy Dr. Benny L. P. Lui 

104 Dr. Wong Chung Tao Dr. Yim Chi Ling 

105 Dr. Wong Chit Wing Dr. Irene S. Y. Lai 

106 Dr. Wong Fai Ying Dr. David P. H. Yu 

107 Dr. Wong Hing Lam Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

108 Dr. Wong Lai Cheung, Virginia Dr. Allen H. Y. Ngai 

109 Dr. Wong Pak Kin Dr. Tam Sze Man 

110 Dr. Wong Sai Ho Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

111 Dr. Wong Wai Bun, Wilbert Dr. Betty K. M. Kwan  

112 Dr. Wong Wing Sze Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

113 Dr. Wong Yu Fai Dr. Marcus M. S. Wong 

114 Dr. Wu Kwok Keung Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 

115 Dr. Wu Tsz Yuen Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 

116 Dr. Yau Chi Hong Dr. Luk Kam Hung 

117 Dr. Yau Kin Chung Dr. Ng Ventura, Lorna 

118 Dr. Yau Lai Mo Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

119 Dr. Yeung Chi Keung Dr. Maria K. W. Leung 

120 Dr. Yeung Fun Na Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

121 Dr. Yeung Wai Man Dr. Lam Chi Yuen 

122 Dr. Yip Chun Kong Dr. Chan Yin Hang 

123 Dr. Young Sui Wah Dr. Chan Wing Yan 

124 Dr. Yu Sze Kai, Frances Dr. Kenny Kung 
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Trainees in Basic Vocational Training in Family Medicine 2010/2011 

Hong Kong West Cluster 

1 Dr. Cheung Chi Hong 2 Dr. Kam Ting Ting 

3 Dr. Lai Sum Yin 4 Dr. Long Ka I 

5 Dr. Leon M. Ngai 6 Dr. Tam Yick Sin 

7 Dr. Tse Tung Wing 8 Dr. Wong Sum Lok 

Hong Kong East Cluster 

1 Dr. Cheng Long Yee 2 Dr. Cheng Kwan Chui 

3 Dr. Cheung Chi Hang 4 Dr. Cheung Wen Ling 

5 Dr. Choy Yi Chun 6 Dr. Chung Chi Tung 

7 Dr. Lee Wing Po 8 Dr. Yeung Yee Mei 

9 Dr. Yio Shing 
   

Kowloon East Cluster 

1 Dr. Chan Hau Ting 2 Dr. Chan Kam Sum 

3 Dr. Chan Ngai Ping 4 Dr. Chung Sze Ting 

5 Dr. Gigi W. C. Fan 6 Dr. Fu Siu Saap 

7 Dr. Ho Chun Lam 8 Dr. Sandra W. S. Hung 

9 Dr. Kwan Sze Sing 10 Dr. Kwok Tsz Tik 

11 Dr. Dr. Lee Hung Fai 12 Dr. Leung Sze Mun 

13 Dr. Leung Yuen Kin 14 Dr. Leung Yuen Ling 

15 Dr. Lo Ka Kit 16 Dr. Zara L. Z. Lok 

17 Dr. Mok Ka Yee 18 Dr. Ng Kwok Chuen 

19 Dr. Poon Yung Yin 20 Dr. Edmund H. F. Sin 

21 Dr. Tsang Ming Lam 22 Dr. Queenie H. Y. Wong 

23 Dr. Yeung Sze Wai 24 Dr. Yiu Kam Yi 

25 Dr. Yuen Ming Wai 26 Dr. Yuen Wai Chi 

27 Dr. Yung Yin Ying 
  

Kowloon Central Cluster 

1 Dr. Cheung Man Yin 2 Dr. Kwong Hon Kei 

3 Dr. Li Ming Yin 4 Dr. Man Fung Yi 

5 Dr. Siu Ming Ying 6 Dr. So Tsang Yim 

7 Dr. Tsui Hiu Fa 8 Dr. Xu Shao Wei 

9 Dr. Yiu Kwan 
  

Kowloon West Cluster 

1 Dr. Chan Hoi Ying 2 Dr. Chan Mei Tak 

3 Dr. Cheung Ching Lo 4 Dr. Cheung Kwok Chiu 

5 Dr. Cheung Lo Ki 6 Dr. Chung Wing Yee 

7 Dr. Chui Man 8 Dr. Dao Man Chi 

9 Dr. Fok Chun Man 10 Dr. Fong Ting 

11 Dr. Foo Bong Yin 12 Dr. Ho Ka Ying 

13 Dr. Ho Wing Bing 14 Dr. Hong Hiu Wing 

15 Dr. Hung Chi Yin 16 Dr. Hung Gi Kay 

17 Dr. Ip Sui Wah 18 Dr. Keung Man Fung 

19 Dr. Ki Chi Wing 20 Dr. Kwan Chun Man 

21 Dr. Kwan Sin Man 22 Dr. Lai Pui Yan 

23 Dr. Lam Ying Ying 24 Dr. Lau Pak Wai 

27 Dr. Lau Sek Fung 28 Dr. Lau Wing Man 

29 Dr. Lau Wing See 30 Dr. Lee Kam Pui 

31 Dr. Leung Hau Yee 32 Dr. Leung Lok Hang 

33 Dr. Or Ka Yan 34 Dr. Sakhrani Ponam 

35 Dr. Sham Chi Shan 36 Dr. Siu Sheung Yan 

37 Dr. Belinda W. M. Siu 38 Dr. Tong Sze Ho 

39 Dr. Wu Wai 40 Dr. Yip Wing Ki 

41 Dr. Yiu Yee Ki 42 Dr. Esther Y. T. Yu 

New Territory East Cluster 

1 Dr. Helen H. Y. Ching 2 Dr. Chow Tsz Ling 

3 Dr. Edward K. K. Ho 4 Dr. Ho Wing Man 
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5 Dr. Kwong Siu Kee 6 Dr. Lee Choi Fung 

7 Dr. Lee Sum 8 Dr. Mak Hoi Ting 

9 Dr. Ng Wai Tong 10 Dr. Wong Wai On 

11 Dr. Yau Chi Fai 12 Dr. Yau King Sun 

13 Dr. Yeung Lam Fung 
  

New Territory West Cluster 

1 Dr. Chan Chi Ho 2 Dr. Cheng Chui Ching 

3 Dr. Cheuk Tat Sang 4 Dr. Ho Tsz Bun 

5 Dr. Lau Lai Na 6 Dr. Leung Hoi Lik 

7 Dr. Li Shun Hoi 8 Dr. Mok Kwan Yeung 

9 Dr. Ng Ka Wai 10 Dr. Ng Wai 

11 Dr. Sze Siu Lam 12 Dr. Wong Chun Fai 

Others 

1 Dr. Frank W. K. Chan 2 Dr. Leung Yin Ching 

3 Dr. Wu Xiao Qing 
   

APPENDIX B 

Clinical Supervisors of Basic and Higher Training in Family Medicine 
 

1 Dr. Simon C. L. Au 2 Dr. Au Yeung Shiu Hing 

3 Dr. Barry T. F. Bien  4 Dr. Chan Chi Wai 

5 Dr. Alvin C. Y. Chan       6 Dr. Chan Henry 

7 Dr. Chan Hung Chiu 8 Dr. Carroll K. L. Chan 

9 Dr. Chan Kin Ling 10 Dr. Chan King Hong 

11 Dr. Kitty K. C. Chan 12 Dr. Keith K. W. Chan 

13 Dr. Chan Man Li 14 Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

15 Dr. Chan Pang Fai 16 Dr. Leo, S. C. Chan  

17 Dr. Cynthia S. Y. Chan 18 Dr. Chan Sio Pan 

19 Dr. Chan Suk Yin 20 Dr. David S. L. Chan 

21 Dr. Eddie T. Chan 22 Dr. Chan Wan Wai 

23 Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan 24 Dr. Chan Wing Yan 

25 Dr. Thomas Y. L. Chan 26 Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

27 Dr. David V. K. Chao 28 Dr. Ronald S. Y. Cheng  

29 Dr. Constant P. K. Cheng 30 Dr. Lisa P. K. Cheng 

31 Dr. Cheung Hard King 32 Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

33 Dr. Andy K. Y. Cheung 34 Dr. Cheung Man Kuen 

35 Dr. Cheung Ngai Fung 36 Dr. Cheung Sze Man 

37 Dr. Paul W. K. Cheung 38 Dr. Cheung Yu 

39 Dr. Ching Kam Wing 40 Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu 

41 Dr. Leo P. W. Chu 42 Dr. Choi Kin Lam 

43 Dr. Choi Kin 44 Dr. Andrew K. S. Choi 

45 Dr. Choi Wing Kin 46 Dr. Choy Lai Chun 

47 Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu 48 Dr. Chua Kam Ling 

49 Dr. Antonio A. T. Chuh 50 Dr. John T. N. Chung 

51 Dr. Doo Ching Hoi 52 Dr. Cecilia Y. M. Fan 

53 Dr. Garry K.L. Fong 54 Dr. Jonathan Charles Foster 

55 Dr. Fu Sau Nga 56 Dr. Fung Hoi Tik 

57 Dr. Fung Kwok Hay 58 Dr. Ho Hon Ming 

59 Dr. Ho Kam Wai 60 Dr. Ho Kin Sang 

61 Dr. Anthony K. Y. Ho 62 Dr. Steven Y. K. Ho 

63 Dr. Wilson K. S. Hui 64 Dr. Eric M. T. Hui 

65 Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui 66 Dr. Andrew K. K. Ip 

67 Dr. Winson W. Y. Hung 68 Dr. Ip Pang Fei 

69 Dr. Kan Chi Ho 70 Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

71 Dr. Kenny Kung 72 Dr. Betty K. M. Kwan 

73 Dr. Wendy W. Y. Kwan 74 Dr. Kwok Chi Sum 

75 Dr. Arnold K. H. Kwok 76 Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

77 Dr. Kwong Ka Wah 78 Dr. Kwong Siu Kei 

79 Dr. Lai Kit Chi 80 Dr. Loretta K. P. Lai 

81 Dr. Lai Suk Yi 82 Dr. Douglas T. C. Lai 

83 Dr. Lai Wing Yiu 84 Dr. Johnny C. Y. Lam 
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85 Dr. Lam Ching Choi 86 Dr. Lam Hiu Lam 

87 Prof. Lam Hon Man 88 Dr. Stanley K. H. Lam 

89 Prof. Cindy L. K. Lam 90 Dr. Lam Pui 

91 Prof. Lam Tai Pong 92 Dr. Catherine T. M. Lam 

93 Dr. Augustine T. Lam 94 Dr. Lam Wai Sun 

95 Dr. Paul Lam 96 Dr. Lau Chi Hang 

97 Dr. Lau Po Shan 98 Dr. Lau Pui Ling 

99 Dr. Angela K. M. Lau 100 Dr. Lau Kam Tong 

101 Dr. Jonathan K.C. Lau 102 Dr. Dominic M. W. Lau 

103 Dr. Lau Pui Ling 104 Prof. Lau Tai Wai 

105 Dr. Law Tung Chi 106 Prof. Albert Lee 

107 Dr. Frederick C. T. Lee 108 Dr. Tony C. K. Lee 

109 Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 110 Dr. Lee Kim Hung 

111 Dr. Lee Man Kei 112 Dr. Lee Shun Fung 

113 Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 114 Dr. Francis W. T. Lee 

115 Dr. Lee Wang Yat 116 Dr. Leung Cheuk Wing 

117 Dr. Daniel C. Y. Leung 118 Dr. Maria K. W. Leung 

119 Dr. Leung Shuk Yun 120 Dr. Leung To Fung 

121 Dr. Violet T. M. Leung 122 Dr. Li Heung Wing 

123 Dr. Donald K. T. Li 124 Dr. Vincent W. S. Li 

125 Dr. Li Yim Chu 126 Dr. Liang Jun 

127 Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo 128 Dr. Yvonne Lo 

129 Dr. Wendy W. C. Lo (Wong) 130 Dr. Benny L. P. Lui 

131 Dr. Rupert Y. H. Lui 132 Dr. Luk Kam Hung 

133 Dr. Luk Wan 134 Dr. Dennis C. S. Mak 

135 Dr. Moy Man Cho 136 Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

137 Dr. Ng Chun Bor 138 Dr. Ng Kwok Keung 

139 Dr. Ng Mei Yee 140 Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

141 Dr. Catherine S. W. Ng 142 Dr. Ng Yeung Shing 

143 Dr. Lorna V. Ng 144 Dr. Allen H. Y. Ngai 

145 Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 146 Dr. Bernard Ngai 

147 Dr. David Edward Owens 148 Dr. Pang Siu Leung 

149 Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau 150 Dr. Poon Kwong Chiu 

151 Dr. Poon Shun Bong 152 Dr. Shek Chun Chiu 

153 Dr. Sin Ming Chuen 154 Dr. Sit Wing Shan 

155 Dr. Paul C. H. Siu 156 Dr. Siu Leung Chow 

157 Dr. So Kon Ping 158 Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong 

159 Dr. David T. W. Sung 160 Dr. Sze Hon Ho 

161 Dr. Janet C. Y. Tam 162 Dr. Tammy K. W. Tam 

163 Dr. Tam Sze Man 164 Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang 

165 Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To 166 Dr. Timmy P. H. Tong 

167 Dr. Too Lai Chong 168 Dr. Keith K. K. Tse 

169 Dr. Emily T. T. Tse 170 Dr. Eileen Y. Y. Tse 

171 Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi 172 Dr. Tsui Hoi Yee 

173 Dr. Tsui Kwok Biu 174 Dr. Tsui Pun Nang 

175 Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui 176 Dr. Hayles H. W. Wai 

177 Dr. Wan Kwong Yu 178 Dr. Wan Wing Fai 

179 Dr. Wang Hua Li 180 Dr. Roger C. K. Wong 

181 Dr. Wong Chi Lung 182 Dr. Henry C. W Wong 

183 Dr. Peter H. Wong 184 Dr. Wong Hung Wai 

185 Dr. Wong Hung Yung 186 Dr. Joseph K. H. Wong 

187 Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 188 Dr. Wong Kwok Hoi 

189 Dr. Wong Mong Sze 190 Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong 

191 Dr. Amy O. Y. Wong 192 Dr. Wong Pak Hoi 

193 Dr. Wong Pui Ling 194 Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

195 Dr. Wong Sze Nga 196 Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

197 Dr. Wong Yu Fai 198 Dr. Nerrissa S. C. Wu 

199 Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 200 Dr. Helen K. Y. Yau 

201 Dr. Yeung Man Chow 202 Dr. Yeung Sau Ying 

203 Dr. Yim Chi Ling 204 Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan 

205 Dr. Yu Pui Hang, David 206 Dr. Natalis C. L. Yuen 

207 Dr. Yuen Fu Lam 208 Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 
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Clinical Supervisors of Basic Training in Family Medicine 

1 Dr. Billy S. H. Chui 2 Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo 

3 Dr. Fung Yuk Kwan 4 Dr. Watt Kwong Kee 

APPENDIX C 

Training Centers and Clinical Supervisors of Basic Vocational Training Programme in Family Medicine 
 
HOSPITAL BASED TRAINING CENTERS 

1. Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Hui Ming Tung) 

1 Dr. Hamish C. K. Chan Internal Medicine 

2 Dr. Chan Hok Sum Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Jimmy Chan Emergency Medicine 

4 Dr. Chan Kwok Chiu Paediatrics 

5 Dr. Chan Kwok Lap Paediatrics 

6 Dr. Chan Lip Kiong Internal Medicine 

7 Dr. Cheng Yuk Lun Internal Medicine 

8 Dr. Choi Kin Wing Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Fung Kwai Yau Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

10 Dr. Ho Sheng Sheng Internal Medicine 

11 Dr. Aric Josun Hui Internal Medicine 

12 Dr. Ko Tin Choi Internal Medicine 

13 Dr. Law Sheung Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

14 Dr. Lee Kwok Piu Paediatrics 

15 Dr. Nancy W. Y. Leung Internal Medicine 

16 Dr. Lo Kwun Man Internal Medicine 

17 Dr. Luk Ming Chi Internal Medicine 

18 Dr. Ma Kam Hung Paediatrics 

19 Dr. Tai Kian Bun Internal Medicine 

20 Dr. Luke C. T. Tong  Paediatrics 

21 Dr. Tsui Kwing Wan Paediatrics 

22 Dr. Wong Tak Wai Paediatrics 

23 Dr. Wong Wai Chun Paediatrics 

24 Dr. Yau Fai To Paediatrics 

25 Dr. Jonas H. M. Yeung Internal Medicine 

26 Dr. Yeung Sai Tat Emergency Medicine 

27 Dr. Yeung Wai Lan Paediatrics 

28 Dr. Alex W. Y. Yu Internal Medicine 

 
2. Caritas Medical Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan) 

1 Dr. Miranda K. Y. Chan General Surgery 

2 Dr. Chan Wan Pang Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

3 Dr. Chan Yiu Kay Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Chang Shyh Jye General Surgery 

5 Dr. Cheng Wai Wai Paediatrics 

6 Dr. Chiu Chi Suen Internal Medicine 

7 Dr. Simon S. L. Choi Internal Medicine 

8 Dr. Chow Kam Ming Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

9 Dr. Benjamin C. Y. Chu Ophthamology 

10 Dr. Aaron T. K. Chu Ophthamology 

11 Dr. Fung Lai Ming Internal Medicine 

12 Dr. Ho Pui Tat Psychiatry 

13 Dr. Ho Sheung Tung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

14 Dr. Ho Yuen Fong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

15 Dr. Ben K. M. Hui Ophthamology 

16 Dr. Jeff Y. L. Hui Ophthamology 

17 Dr. Hung Kei Wong Paediatrics 

18 Dr. Ida Y. F. Io Ophthamology 

19 Dr. Ip Chiu Yin Geriatric Medicine 

20 Dr. Ko Chun Hung Paediatrics 

21 Dr. Andrew K. S. Ko Internal Medicine 

22 Dr. Ko Po Wan Paediatrics 

23 Dr. Ku Kwok Hung Psychiatry 

24 Dr. Annie O. L. Kwok Internal Medicine 

25 Dr. Robert F. Lam Ophthamology 
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26 Dr. Lam Ping Paediatrics 

27 Dr. Lee Ching Yee Paediatrics 

28 Dr. Lee Kai Wan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

29 Dr. Li Chi Lai Ophthamology 

30 Dr. Francis P. T. Mok General Surgery 

31 Dr. Annie C. Y. Ng Internal Medicine 

32 Dr. Ng Kam Hung Internal Medicine 

33 Dr. Ng Yin Kwok Psychiatry 

34 Dr. Ong Chi Yin Medicine and Geriatrics 

35 Dr. Sun Yu Wen General Surgery 

36 Dr. Thomas K. F. Tai Ophthamology 

37 Dr. Tam Tak Yau Ophthamology 

38 Dr. Raymond K. T. Tang Ophthamology 

39 Dr. Raymond K. K. Tse Ophthamology 

40 Dr. Taylor K. T. Tse Ophthamology 

41 Dr. Doris M. W. Tse Internal Medicine 

42 Dr. Billy K. T. Wong Ophthamology 

43 Dr. Wong Kwok Wa General Surgery 

44 Dr. Wong Mo Lin Medicine and Geriatrics 

45 Dr. Shirley S. L. Wong Psychiatry 

46 Dr. Winnie W. Y. Wong Internal Medicine 

47 Dr. Doris W. F. Yick Ophthamology 

48 Dr. David S. P. Yong Internal Medicine 

49 Dr. Zoe H. S. Yu Psychiatry 

50 Dr. Lester W. H. Yu Ophthamology 

51 Dr. Yuen Sze Kit Internal Medicine 

52 Dr. Yuen Yin Fun Ophthamology 

 
3. Castle Peak Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Timothy Yeung) 

1 Dr. Chan Cheong Fai Psychiatry 

2 Dr. Chan Kai Tai Psychiatry 

3 Dr. Cheng Chi Wai Psychiatry 

4 Dr. Eric F. C. Cheung Psychiatry 

5 Dr. Chiang Tin Po Psychiatry 

6 Dr. Gloria M. Y. Chow Psychiatry 

7 Dr. Rommel C. H. Hung Psychiatry 

8 Dr. Tony T. S. Lai Psychiatry 

9 Dr. Lam Ming Psychiatry 

10 Dr. Jenny P. H. Lam Psychiatry 

11 Dr. Lam Siu Man Psychiatry 

12 Dr. Li Siu Wah Psychiatry 

13 Dr. Lui Sai Yu Psychiatry 

14 Dr. Lui Sing Heung Psychiatry 

15 Dr. Bonnie, W. M. Siu Psychiatry 

16 Dr. Steve Tso Psychiatry 

17 Dr. Timothy M. H. Yeung Psychiatry 

18 Dr. Henry C. H. Yuen Psychiatry 

 

4. Evangel Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Billy S. H. Chui) 

1 Dr. Leo P. W. Chiu Psychiatry 

2 Dr. Chung Kin Wah General Surgery 

3 Dr. Fung Shiu Kee Otorhinolaryngology 

4 Dr. Lau Shing Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

5 Dr. Andrew P. K. Lee Internal Medicine 

6 Dr. Pun Chiu On Internal Medicine 

7 Dr. David Y. W. Wong Ophthamology 

8 Dr. Yuen Hing Yiu Otorhinolaryngology 

9 Dr. Dennis Y. P. Yuen Internal Medicine 

 

5. Fung Yiu King Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Felix H. W. Chan) 

1 Dr. Felix H. W. Chan Geriatric Medicine 

2 Dr. James K. H. Luk Geriatric Medicine 

3 Dr. Winnie W. Y. Mok Geriatric Medicine 

 
6. HK Sanatorium & Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Joseph W. T. Chan) 

1 Dr. Angus C. W. Chan General Surgery  
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2 Dr. Annie O. O. Chan Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Joseph W. T. Chan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

4 Dr. John S Chang, Jr Ophthalmology 

5 Dr. Ivan N. Chen Ophthalmology 

6 Dr. Ben K. L. Cheung Psychiatry 

7 Dr. Alec H. C. Fung Internal Medicine 

8 Dr. Ip Yan Ming Psychiatry 

9 Dr. Lam Bing Internal Medicine 

10 Dr. Walton W. T. Li Ophthalmology 

11 Dr. Raymond H. S. Liang Internal Medicine 

12 Dr. Lo Kwok Wing Internal Medicine 

13 Dr. Siu Wing Tai General Surgery 

14 Dr. Tsao Yen Chow Paediatrics 

15 Dr. Anges T. Y. Tse Ophthalmology 

16 Dr. Ignace W. Wei Otorhinolaryngology 

17 Dr. Wong Wai Sang General Surgery 

18 Dr. Joan T. Wu Ophthalmology 

19 Dr. Stephen W. C. Wu Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

20 Dr. William P. T. Yip Otorhinolaryngology 

  

7. Haven of Hope Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Chui Tak Yi) 

1 Dr. Chan Kam Keung Internal Medicine 

2 Dr. Chan Kin Sang Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Chui Tak Yi Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Lam Wai Man Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Antony C. T. Leung Internal Medicine 

6 Dr. Ng Ngai Sing Geriatic Medicine 

7 Dr. Wu Yee Ming Geriatic Medicine 

 

8. Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Cheuk Tsan) 

1.  Dr. Patrick C. M. Ng    Internal Medicine 
 

9. Hong Kong Eye Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Chi Chung Chai) 

1 Dr. Carmen K. M. Chan Ophthalmology 

2 Dr. Chi Chung Chai Ophthalmology 

3 Dr. Lam Nai Man Ophthalmology 

4 Dr. Flora H. S. Lau Ophthalmology 

5 Dr. Dexter Y. L. Leung Ophthalmology 

6 Dr. Tsang Chi Wai Ophthalmology 

7 Dr. Alex C. W. Wong Ophthalmology 

8 Dr. Victoria W. Y. Wong Ophthalmology 

9 Dr. Wu Wai Kwan Ophthalmology 

10 Dr. Yuen Kwok Lai Ophthalmology 

 

10. Kowloon Hospital, Department of Psychiatry (Coordinator: Dr. Roger M. K. Ng) 

1 Dr. Chiu Ling Psychiatry 

2 Dr. Hui Lung Kit Psychiatry 

3 Dr. Lam Chun Psychiatry 

4 Dr. Lam Wai Keung Psychiatry 

5 Dr. Roger M. K. Ng Psychiatry 

6 Dr. Desmond G. H. Nguyen Psychiatry 

7 Dr. Poon Ting Keung Psychiatry 

8 Dr. Wong Man Tak Psychiatry 

 

11. Kowloon Hospital, Respiratory Medical Department (Coordinator: Dr. Cheuk Tsan) 

1 Dr. Ling Sai On Respiratory Medicine 

2 Dr. Thomas Y. W. Mok Respiratory Medicine 

3 Dr. Poon Yik Ning Respiratory Medicine 

4 Dr. Wong Ka Chun Respiratory Medicine 

 
12. Kwai Chung Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Patrick P. K. Kwong) 

1 Dr. Wally T. M. Chen Psychiatry 

2 Dr. Cheng Kin Shing Psychiatry 

3 Dr. Cheung Wai Him Psychiatry 

4 Dr. Patricia Ellen Choi Psychiatry 

5 Dr. Ho Pui Tat Psychiatry 
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6 Dr. Hung Se Fong Psychiatry 

7 Dr. Ku Kwok Hung Psychiatry 

8 Dr. Henry W. M. Kwok Psychiatry 

9 Dr. Patrick P. K. Kwong Psychiatry 

10 Dr. Lee Chi Chiu Psychiatry 

11 Dr. Lee Sheung Yau Psychiatry 

12 Dr. Lee Wing King Psychiatry 

13 Dr. Joey S. Y. Leung Psychiatry 

14 Dr. Liem Shu Keung Psychiatry 

15 Dr. William T. L. Lo Psychiatry 

16 Dr. Alison W. F. Lo Psychiatry 

17 Dr. Ng Yin Kwok Psychiatry 

18 Dr. Ronnie S. Y. Pao Psychiatry 

19 Dr. Danny W. H. Tam Psychiatry 

20 Dr. Tang Chun Pan Psychiatry 

21 Dr. Ada W. Y. Tse Psychiatry 

22 Dr. Karen H. Y. Wat Psychiatry 

23 Dr. Shirley S. L. Wong Psychiatry 

24 Dr. Yu Chi Shing Psychiatry 

25 Dr. Zoe H. S. Yu  Psychiatry 

 
13. Kwong Wah Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Lorna V. Ng) 

1 Dr. Au Yiu Kai General Surgery 

2 Dr. Miranda C. M. Chan General Surgery 

3 Dr. Chan Kit Sheung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

4 Dr. Chan Ming Houng Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Chan Tak Yeung Geriatric Medicine 

6 Dr. Chan Wai Lam Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

7 Dr. Cherk Wan Wah Paediatrics 

8 Dr. Cheung Hon Ming Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Cheung Wing Yung General Surgery 

10 Dr. Choi Siu Tong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

11 Dr. Kwan Min Chung Internal Medicine 

12 Dr. Kwok Ka Li Paediatrics 

13 Dr. Kwok Tik Koon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

14 Dr. Lam Yuen Yu Paediatrics 

15 Dr. Lau Wai Lam Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

16 Dr. Law In Chak General Surgery 

17 Dr. Leung Chuk Kwan Paediatrics 

18 Dr. Leung Tsin Wah Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

19 Dr. Leung Wing Cheong Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

20 Dr. Lo Tsz Kin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

21 Dr. Loo Ching Kong Internal Medicine 

22 Dr. Mak Kan Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

23 Dr. Mak Siu Ka Internal Medicine 

24 Dr. Daniel K K Ng Paediatrics 

25 Dr. Tsui Chung Kan  Geriatric Medicine 

26 Dr. Wong Ping Nam Internal Medicine 

27 Dr. Wong Wing Cheung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

28 Dr. Alice Y. K. Wong Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

29 Dr. Woo Siu Bon Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

30 Dr. Melody H. N. Yeung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

31 Dr. Andrew W. C. Yip  General Surgery 

 

14. North District Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Maria Leung) 

1 Dr. Chan Wing Cheong General Surgery 

2 Dr. Cheung Ho Yuen General Surgery 

3 Dr. Catherine P. Y. Chui    Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Fung Tak Yuen Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

5 Dr. Ho Man Kam Emergency Medicine 

6 Dr. Jolie M. Y. Lee Internal Medicine 

7 Dr. Leong Heng Tat General Surgery 

8 Dr. Raymond S. K. Li General Surgery 
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9 Dr. Ngai Wai Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

10 Dr. Paulose N. M. General Surgery 

11 Dr. Tam Tsz Kim General Surgery 

12 Dr. Ludwig C H Tsoi Emergency Medicine 

13 Dr. Wong Kwan Keung Internal Medicine 

 

15. Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Winnie Chan) 

1 Dr. Chiu Ying Wah Internal Medicine 

2 Dr. Fan Hon Cheung Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Benny K. L. Fok General Surgery 

4 Dr. Ho Kai Kit Ophthamology 

5 Dr. Hung Kei Wong Paediatrics 

6 Dr. Ko Po Wan Paediatrics 

7 Dr. Lau Sai Kit Otorhinolaryngology 

8 Dr. Lau Sze Ting Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Mak Kan Hing Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

10 Dr. William C. S. Meng General Surgery 

11 Dr. John T. H. Wong Internal Medicine 

12 Dr. Wong Tak Cheung Internal Medicine 

13 Dr. Cecilia W. H. Wong Internal Medicine 

14 Dr. Buddy Y. K. Wong Otorhinolaryngology 

15 Dr. Vincent T. F. Yeung Internal Medicine 

 

16. Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu) 

1 Dr. Au Tak Shun Emergency Medicine 

2 Dr. Au Yeung, Man Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Edwin Chan Ophthamology 

4 Dr. Chan Hok Hang Emergency Medicine 

5 Dr. Chan Ka Cheong Otorhinolaryngology 

6 Dr. Chan Kwok Keung Internal Medicine 

7 Dr. Chan Lap Wa Emergency Medicine 

8 Dr. Chan Man Chak Psychiatry 

9 Dr. June S. H. Chan Paediatrics 

10 Dr. Clement W. N. Chan Ophthamology  

11 Dr. Tracy Y. P. Chan Paediatrics 

12 Dr. Chan Ying Kei Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

13 Dr. Chan Yu Pak Internal Medicine 

14 Dr. Robin H. S. Chen Paediatrics 

15 Dr. Dick C. Y. Cheung Internal Medicine 

16 Dr. Cheung Chun Ming Internal Medicine 

17 Dr. Frances K. Y. Cheung General Surgery 

18 Dr. Cheung Wing Kin Internal Medicine 

19 Dr. Hester Y. S. Cheung General Surgery 

20 Dr. Ruby H. Y. Ching Ophthamology 

21 Dr. Chiu Shin Yeung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

22 Dr. Choi Man Chun Internal Medicine 

23 Dr. Choi Sing Yim Emergency Medicine 

24 Dr. Choi Yu Fai Emergency Medicine 

25 Dr. Vincent C. C. Chow Internal Medicine 

26 Dr. Chow Chung Mo Paediatrics 

27 Dr. Chow Shun Kit Otorhinolaryngology 

28 Dr. Samuel S. N. Chow Emergency Medicine 

29 Dr. Rowena S. C. Chua Paediatrics 

30 Dr. Cliff C. C. Chung General Surger 

31 Dr. Chung Pui Yin Psychiatry 

32 Dr. Fan Chi Wai General Surgery 

33 Dr. Berry T. C. Fung General Surgery 

34 Dr. Hon Ka Fai Emergency Medicine 

35 Dr. Ip Fu Keung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

36 Dr. Bonnie C. S. Kho Internal Medicine 

37 Dr. Ko Joshua Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

38 Dr. Ko Tak Chuen Ophthamology 

39 Dr. Bernard, M. H. Kong Internal Medicine 

40 Dr. Koo Chi Yan Ophthamology 

41 Dr. Ku Shu Wing Paediatrics 
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42 Dr. Kung Kam Ngai Internal Medicine 

43 Dr. Elaine Y. W. Kwan Paediatrics 

44 Dr. Kwok Wai Shing Emergency Medicine 

45 Dr. Eric C. H. Lai General Surgery 

46 Dr. Rex P. K. Lam Emergency Medicine 

47 Dr. Lao Wai Cheung Internal Medicine 

48 Dr. Lau Chor Chiu Emergency Medicine 

49 Dr. Winnie N. T. Lau Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

50 Dr. Emmy Y. F. Lau Internal Medicine 

51 Dr. Law Chi Yin Emergency Medicine 

52 Dr. Lee Cheung Kei Internal Medicine 

53 Dr. Violet K. L. Lee Internal Medicine 

54 Dr. Lee On Bong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

55 Dr. Francis W. K. Lee Psychiatry 

56 Dr. Lee Wai Kin Paediatrics 

57 Dr. Leong In Son Internal Medicine 

58 Dr. Leung Chi Man Internal Medicine 

59 Dr. Joe K. S. Leung Emergency Medicine 

60 Dr. Leung Man Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

61 Dr. Theresa N. H. Leung Paediatrics 

62 Dr. Michael K. W. Li General Surgery 

63 Dr. Li Shu Kin Internal Medicine 

64 Dr. Francis T. W. Li Internal Medicine 

65 Dr. Liu Kam Tim Paediatrics 

66 Dr. Liu Kwong Sun Psychiatry 

67 Dr. Herman S. Y. Liu Internal Medicine 

68 Dr. Lo Ho Yin Internal Medicine 

69 Dr. Stanley H. K. Lo Internal Medicine 

70 Dr. Lo Yi Tat Internal Medicine 

71 Dr. Luk Yiu Wing Internal Medicine 

72 Dr. Maxime S. M. Mark Emergency Medicine 

73 Dr. Flora P. L. Miu Internal Medicine 

74 Dr. Mo Ka Leung Internal Medicine 

75 Dr. Mok Wing Yuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

76 Dr. Pang Ho Kwong Internal Medicine 

77 Dr. Poon Kai Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

78 Dr. Loletta K. Y. So Internal Medicine 

79 Dr. So Lok Yee Paediatrics 

80 Dr. Sy Chung Tai Internal Medicine 

81 Dr. Maria M. Y. Sy Emergency Medicine 

82 Dr. Tai Chark Man Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

83 Dr. Dominic C. K. Tai General Surgery 

84 Dr. Tai Shuk Mui Paediatrics 

85 Dr. Carmen K. M. Tam Paediatrics 

86 Dr. Tang Chung Ngai General Surgery 

87 Dr. Tang Kwok Keung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

88 Dr. Ivy M. S. Tang Paediatrics 

89 Dr. Tang Wai Nang Psychiatry 

90 Dr. Tong Fu Man Otorhinolaryngology 

91 Dr. Tsang Wai Leuk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

92 Dr. Yvonne Y. Y. Tsang General Surgery 

93 Dr. Tse Sik Kee Emergency Medicine 

94 Dr. Tsoi Tak Hong Internal Medicine 

95 Dr. David K. K. Tsui General Surgery 

96 Dr. Tsui Kin Lam Internal Medicine 

97 Dr. Winnie Z. M. Wat Internal Medicine 

98 Dr. Wong Chi Cheong Ophthalmology 

99 Dr. Wong Chi Keung Psychiatry 

100 Dr. Wong Chi Kwan Internal Medicine 

101 Dr. Wong Chi Pang Emergency Medicine 

102 Dr. Dennis C. T. Wong General Surgery 

103 Dr. Stephen S. F. Wong Internal Medicine 

104 Dr. Queenie S. M. Wong Psychiatry 

105 Dr. Wong Tai Wai Emergency Medicine 

106 Dr. Patrick K. W. Wu Ophthalmology 
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107 Dr. Anna Y. K. Wu Psychiatry 

108 Dr. George P. C. Yang General Surgery 

109 Dr. Yau Kwok Kay General Surgery 

110 Dr. Yeung Chun Yip Internal Medicine 

111 Dr. Wilson K. Y. Yeung Paediatrics 

112 Dr. Anita P. C. Yeung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

113 Dr. Yeung Wai Song Psychiatry 

114 Dr. Patty H. W. Yim Psychiatry 

115 Dr. Yu Fong Emergency Medicine 

116 Dr. Yuen So Fun Paediatrics 

117 Dr. Yung Chun Tung Emergency Medicine 

 

17. Prince of Wales Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Lam Tsan) 

1 Prof. Cavor K. M. Chan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

2 Dr. Thomas Chan Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Francis C. C. Chow Internal Medicine 

4 Prof. Tony K. H. Chung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

5 Dr. David L. K. Dai Internal Medicine 

6 Dr. Assunta C. H. Ho Paediatrics 

7 Dr. Simon S. M. Hou General Surgery 

8 Dr. Kam Wai Kwok Psychiatry 

9 Dr. Kwan Kwok Leung Internal Medicine 

10 Dr. Kwok Kin On Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

11 Prof. Paul Lai General Surgery 

12 Dr. Lam Hugh Simon Hung San Paediatrics 

13 Dr. Lee Kit Fai General Surgery 

14 Dr. Lee Yuk Tong Internal Medicine 

15 Dr. Leung Chi Ming Psychiatry 

16 Dr. Leung Ka Lau General Surgery 

17 Dr. Leung Ting Fan Paediatrics 

18 Dr. Li Chi Kong Paediatrics 

19 Dr. Philip K. T. Li Internal Medicine 

20 Dr. Tommy N. M. Luk Internal Medicine 

21 Dr. Man Chi Yin Emergency Medicine 

22 Dr. Ng Pui Shan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

23 Dr. Selina M. W. Pang Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

24 Dr. Allan K. W. So Paediatrics 

25 Dr. Tam Wing Hung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

26 Dr. Timothy H Rainer Emergency Medicine 

27 Dr. Wing Yun Kwok Psychiatry 

28 Dr. Wong Kong Chiu Internal Medicine 

29 Dr. Wong Kwok Chuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

30 Dr. Raymond S M Wong Internal Medicine 

31 Dr. Gary W. K. Wong Paediatrics 

32 Dr. Yam Man Ching Paediatrics 

33 Dr. Raymond C. L. Yip Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

 

18. Princess Margaret Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan) 

1 Dr. Eric K. M. Au Internal Medicine 

2 Dr. Chan Chi Ming Emergency Medicine 

3 Dr. Chan Kin Wah Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Chan Ngai Yin Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Chan Yu Wai Internal Medicine 

6 Dr. Chiu Lai Hong Emergency Medicine 

7 Dr. Chow Kam Ming Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

8 Dr. Choy Chi Chung Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Chung On Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

10 Dr. Samuel K. S. Fung Internal Medicine 

11 Dr. Ho Chi Pang Internal Medicine 

12 Dr. Ho Leung Sing General Surgery 

13 Dr. Stephen Hsu Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

14 Dr. Hung Hin Fai Internal Medicine 

15 Dr. Ko Chi Fai Internal Medicine 

16 Dr. Kong Tak Kwan Internal Medicine 

17 Dr. Kwong Kwok Chu Internal Medicine 
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18 Dr. Thomas S. T. Lai Internal Medicine 

19 Dr. Lam Cho Yee Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

20 Dr. Lau Kwok Kwong Internal Medicine 

21 Dr. Lau Suet Ting Internal Medicine 

22 Dr. Alexander, C. B. Law Internal Medicine 

23 Dr. Lee Kwok Kuen Internal Medicine 

24 Dr. William Lee Internal Medicine 

25 Dr. Leung Chi Wai Paediatrics 

26 Dr. Li Chi Keung Paediatrics 

27 Dr. Luk Hung To General Surgery 

28 Dr. Luk Wai Fan Internal Medicine 

29 Dr. Mok Ngai Shing Internal Medicine 

30 Dr. Carmen K. M. Ng Internal Medicine 

31 Dr. Sheng Bun Internal Medicine 

32 Dr. So Kar Kui Internal Medicine 

33 Dr. Thomas M. K. So Internal Medicine 

34 Dr. Tam Tak Cheong Internal Medicine 

35 Dr. Tang Hon Lok Internal Medicine 

36 Dr. Matthew K. L. Tong Internal Medicine 

37 Dr. Owen T. Y. Tsang Internal Medicine 

38 Dr. Tsui Ping Tim Internal Medicine 

39 Dr. Yeung Kwan Mo Internal Medicine 

40 Dr. Yeung Yiu Cheong Internal Medicine 

41 Dr. Shirley K. Y. Ying Internal Medicine 

42 Dr. Yu Wai Cho Internal Medicine 

 

19. Queen Elizabeth Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Choi Cheung Hei) 

1 Dr. Betty W. M. But Paediatrics 

2 Dr. Sammy C. S. Chan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

3 Dr. Philip H. L. Chan Otorhinolaryngology 

4 Dr. Chan Kam Tim Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Winnie K. Y. Chan Paediatrics 

6 Dr. Grace L. H. Chan Paediatrics 

7 Dr. Vincent N. H. Chan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

8 Dr. Johnny W. M. Chan Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Chang Kai On Paediatrics  

10 Dr. Robert Y. P. Chang Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

11 Dr. Cheung Moon Tong General Surgery 

12 Dr. Chi Chung Chai Ophthalmology 

13 Dr. Choi Cheung Hei Internal Medicine 

14 Dr. Andrew K. S. Choi Internal Medicine 

15 Dr. Paul H. F. Ho Emergency Medicine 

16 Dr. Ho Kau Chung Internal Medicine 

17 Dr. Lee Man Po Internal Medicine 

18 Dr. Maria S. H. Lee Paediatrics 

19 Dr. Michael W. Y. Leung General Surgery 

20 Dr. Patrick C. K. Li Internal Medicine 

21 Dr. Wilson Li Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

22 Dr. Lo Che Yuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

23 Dr. Ng Chi Hang Paediatrics 

24 Dr. Shen Wan Yiu Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

25 Dr. So Yat Cheong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

26 Dr. Donald L. C. Tang General Surgery 

27 Dr. Philip L. F. Tang General Surgery 

28 Dr. Allen K. L. Tong General Surgery 

29 Dr. Winnie W. Y. Tse Paediatrics 

30 Dr. Dora M. L. Wong Paediatrics 

31 Dr. Wu Shun Ping Paediatrics 

32 Dr. Yau Ping Wa Paediatrics 

33 Dr. Yau Yat Sun Paediatrics 

34 Dr. Henry S. F. Yip Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

35 Dr. Yu Hip Cho Otorhinolaryngology 

36 Dr. Francis H. L. Yuen Paediatrics 
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20. Queen Mary Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Chan Chi Kuen) 

1 Dr. Chan Chi Kuen Internal Medicine 

2 Dr. Eric Y. H. Chen Psychiatry 

3 Dr. Kenneth M. C. Cheung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

4 Dr. Chung Ka Fai Psychiatry 

5 Prof. P. C. Ho Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

6 Dr. Ho Wai Kuen Otorhinolaryngology 

7 Dr. Louis C. K. Low Paediatrics 

8 Dr. Hextan Y. S. Ngan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

9 Dr. Pun Ting Chung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

10 Prof. Grace Tang Obstetrics & Gynaecology  

11 Dr. Tong Hon Kuan Emergency Medicine 

12 Dr. Tsoi Nai Shun Paediatrics 

13 Dr. Tsui Sik Hon Emergency Medicine 

14 Dr. Wang Yee Moon Internal Medicine 

15 Dr. Michael M. C. Wong  Psychiatry 

16 Dr. Raymond W. S. Wong Internal Medicine 

17 Dr. Yeung Chun General Surgery 

18 Dr. Yu Ka Kui Psychiatry 

 

21. Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. David T. Y. Lam) 

1         Dr. Chang Chee My Internal Medicine 

2         Dr. Kan Pui Gay Emergency Medicine 

3        Dr. Lam Chak Wah Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Lau Yuk Kong Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Wong Chun Por Geriatric Medicine 

6 Dr. Wong Yau Tak Emergency Medicine 

7 Dr. Yuen Wai Cheung General Surgery 

 

22. Shatin Hospital (Coordinator: Prof. Jean Woo) 

1 Dr. Elsie Hui Medicine and Geriatrics 

2 Dr. Jenny S. W. Lee Geriatric Medicine  

3 Dr. Raymond S. K. Lo Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Lum Chor Ming Medicine and Geriatrics 

5 Dr. Or Ka Hang Medicine and Geriatrics 

6 Dr. Maria W. S. Tang Medicine and Geriatrics 

7 Prof. Jean Woo Medicine and Geriatrics 

 

23. Tai Po Hospital - Department of Medicine (Coordinator: Dr. Emily W. L. Kun) 

1 Dr. Chui Pui Yuk Internal Medicine 

2 Dr. Emily W. L. Kun Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Lee Man Yee Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Ma Hon Ming Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Samuel L. S. Tse Internal Medicine 

 

24. Tseung Kwan O Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

1 Dr. Samson C. F. Chan Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

2 Dr. Susanna C. P. Chan Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. John T. M. Chan General Surgery 

4 Dr. Louis T. W. Chan Paediatrics 

5 Dr. Dickson T. S. Chang Emergency Medicine 

6 Dr. Cheng Ming Kin Internal Medicine 

7 Dr. Warren W. Y. Cheung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

8 Dr. Ching Chi Keung Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Chong Lap Chun General Surgery 

10 Dr. Chung Tsz Kwong General Surgery 

11 Dr. Ho Hok Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

12 Dr. Huen Kwai Fun Paediatrics 

13 Dr. Kung Shu Wing Emergency Medicine 

14 Dr. Alex T. Y. Lai General Surgery 

15 Dr. Lau Chi Kuen Internal Medicine 

16 Dr. Lau Chun Yuen Paediatrics 

17 Dr. Lau Ip Tim Internal Medicine 

18 Dr. Samuel Lee Internal Medicine 
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19 Dr. Lee Yuen Lun Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

20 Dr. Colin H. T. Lui Internal Medicine 

21 Dr. Max Y. L. Mak General Surgery 

22 Dr. Moy Man Cho Emergency Medicine 

23 Dr. Ng Wah Shan Emergency Medicine 

24 Dr. Poon Tak Shun Emergency Medicine 

25 Dr. Maria T. T. Sinn Internal Medicine 

26 Dr. Tay Ming Kut Paediatrics 

27 Dr. Tsang Kin Keung Internal Medicine 

28 Dr. Tsang Sing Wing Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

29 Dr. Steven W. C. Tsang Internal Medicine 

30 Dr. Tse Pak Yiu Internal Medicine 

31 Dr. Wong Tat Ming Emergency Medicine 

32 Dr. Yau Kin Pang Emergency Medicine 

33 Dr. Yeung Chi Kin Internal Medicine 

34 Dr. Joseph S. Yeung Internal Medicine 

35 Dr. Yuen Chi Ho General Surgery 

 
25. Tuen Mun Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. To Kit Yuk) 

1 Dr. Au Si Yan Medicine and Geriatrics 

2 Dr. Au Tak Cheung Internal Medicine 

3 Dr. Chak Wai Kwong Paediatrics 

4 Dr. Chan Wai Ho Ophthalmology 

5 Dr. Chan Yat Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

6 Dr. Cheng Chi Wai Psychiatry 

7 Dr. Cheung Chin Cheung General Surgery 

8 Dr. Eric F. C. Cheung Psychiatry 

9 Dr. Cheung Ka Kin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

10 Dr. Cheung Kai Bun Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

11 Dr. Cheng Yan Wah Paediatrics 

12 Dr. Simon L. Chow Internal Medicine 

13 Dr. Eddie S. L. Chow Internal Medicine 

14 Dr. Chow Yuk Yin Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

15 Dr. Dawson T. S. Fong General Surgery 

16 Dr. Michael Y. P. Fu Medicine and Geriatrics 

17 Dr. Ho Chi Kin Ophthalmology 

18 Dr. Andrew Y. Y. Ho Medicine and Geriatrics 

19 Dr. Kwan Tze Hoi Medicine and Geriatrics 

20 Dr. Kwan Yiu Keung Medicine and Geriatrics 

21 Dr. Kwok Yuk Lung Internal Medicine 

22 Dr. Karen L. Kwong Paediatrics 

23 Dr. Kwong Ngai Shan Paediatrics 

24 Dr. Andrew W. K. Lai Medicine and Geriatrics 

25 Dr. Jenny P. H. Lam Psychiatry 

26 Dr. David S. Y. Lam Paediatrics 

27 Dr. Tony K. F. Lau Paediatrics 

28 Dr. Lau Kit Yu Paediatrics 

29 Dr. Lau Kwok Wai General Surgery 

30 Dr. Jacky S. C. Lau Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

31 Dr. Szeto Ming Leung Internal Medicine 

32 Dr. Leung Siu Kee General Surgery 

33 Dr. Li Chak Ho Paediatrics 

34 Dr. Li Ka Wah Paediatrics 

35 Dr. Li Kam Fu Medicine and Geriatrics 

36 Dr. Michael K. K. Li  Medicine and Geriatrics 

37 Dr. Li Ming Fai Otorhinolaryngology 

38 Dr. Samantha P. S. Li Paediatrics 

39 Dr. Lui Ying Shun Paediatrics 

40 Dr. Man Chi Wai General Surgery 

41 Dr. Mok Chi Chiu Medicine and Geriatrics 

42 Dr. Francis C. K. Mok Medicine and Geriatrics 

43 Dr. Poon Kin Hung Paediatrics 

44 Dr. Shum Yuk Wah Medicine and Geriatrics 

45 Dr. Sin Kit Man Medicine and Geriatrics 

46 Dr. Sylvia L. Y. Siu Paediatrics 
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47 Dr. So Kwan Tong Paediatrics 

48 Dr. Sze Wing Kin Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

49 Dr. Tse Kit Fat Internal Medicine 

50 Dr. Tse Kong Paediatrics 

51 Dr. Tsui Hon For Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

52 Dr. Tsui King Yiu General Surgery 

53 Dr. Wong Hok Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

54 Dr. Wong Lap Ming Paediatrics 

55 Dr. Wong Sik Nin Paediatrics 

56 Dr. Wong Yiu Wah General Surgery 

57 Dr. Yam Kwong Yui General Surgery 

58 Dr. Timothy M. H. Yeung Psychiatry 

59 Dr. Yeung Yiu Ming Internal Medicine 

60 Dr. Yiu Po Fat Ophthalmology 

61 Dr. Yu Kong San Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

62 Dr. Yuen Kwok Keung Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

63 Dr. Yung Chun Yu Internal Medicine 

64 Dr. Yung Hon Wah Ophthalmology 

 

26. Tung Wah Eastern Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Siu Shing Chung) 

1 Dr. Edwin Chan Ophthalmology 

2 Dr. Clement W. N. Chan Ophthalmology 

3 Dr. Ruby H. Y. Ching Ophthalmology 

4 Dr. Ip Tai Pang Internal Medicine 

5 Dr. Ko Tak Chuen Ophthalmology 

6 Dr. Koo Chi Yan Ophthalmology 

7 Dr. Leung Kei Pui Internal Medicine 

8 Dr. Siu Shing Chung Internal Medicine 

9 Dr. Wong Chi Cheong Ophthalmology 

10 Dr. Wong Kwok Hung Geriatric Medicine 

11 Dr. Patrick K. W. Wu Ophthalmology 

12 Dr. Yuen Ka Hong Internal Medicine 

 

27. United Christian Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

1 Dr. Victor James Abdullah Otorhinolaryngology 

2 Dr. Chan Chi Wai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

3 Dr. Desmond C. W. Chan Paediatrics 

4 Dr. Chan Hin Biu Paediatrics 

5 Dr. Connie L. W. Chan Psychiatry 

6 Dr. Daniel L. W. Chan Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

7 Dr. Chan Wing Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

8 Dr. Chan Wing Wai General Surgery 

9 Dr. Joseph Y. Chan Otorhinolaryngology 

10 Dr. James C. K. Cheng Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

11 Dr. Patrick C. H. Cheung Paediatrics 

12 Dr. Chiu Chi Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

13 Dr. Chiu Wa Keung Paediatrics 

14 Dr. Chow Shiu Cheung Psychiatry 

15 Dr. Chow Tam Lin General Surgery 

16 Dr. Chow Yiu Ming Emergency Medicine 

17 Dr. Chung Kwok Hang Psychiatry 

18 Dr. Fong Chi Ming Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

19 Dr. Go Wing Wa Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

20 Dr. Ho Hon Shuen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

21 Dr. Ho Yiu Wing Internal Medicine 

22 Dr. Ho Yok Chiu Paediatrics 

23 Dr. Kam Yee Wai Internal Medicine 

24 Dr. Lam Kin Kwan Emergency Medicine 

25 Dr. Lam Po Tin Internal Medicine 

26 Dr. Lam Siu Ho General Surgery 

27 Dr. Lam Wai Chung Psychiatry 

28 Dr. Lau Fei Lung Emergency Medicine 

29 Dr. Lau Pui Yau Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

30 Dr. Lau Yan Kit Orthopaedics & Traumatology 
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31 Dr. Dennis L. Y. Lee Otorhinolaryngology 

32 Dr. Lee Tin Ho Psychiatry 

33 Dr. Lee Yiu Ki Psychiatry 

34 Dr. Leung King Sun Internal Medicine 

35 Dr. Jess L. M. Leung Psychiatry 

36 Dr. Edward M. F. Leung Medicine and Geriatrics 

37 Dr. Li Hak Suen Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

38 Dr. Li Kai Ming Emergency Medicine 

39 Dr. Kenneth K. W. Li Ophthalmology 

40 Dr. Patrick S. H. Li Ophthalmology 

41 Dr. Liao Wei Ming Psychiatry 

42 Dr. Lin Shek Ying Internal Medicine 

43 Dr. Kelvin K. W. Liu General Surgery 

44 Dr. Ernie C. F. Lo Ophthalmology 

45 Dr. David C. K. Luk Paediatrics 

46 Dr. Karen M. S. Luk Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

47 Dr. Louis C. K. Ma Paediatrics 

48 Dr. Mak Wing Chit Psychiatry 

49 Dr. May Y. K. Miao Psychiatry 

50 Dr. Charles K. M. Mok Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

51 Dr. Ng Hon Wah Emergency Medicine 

52 Dr. Ng Kwok Leung Paediatrics 

53 Dr. Ng Ping Wing Internal Medicine 

54 Dr. Ng Woon Leung Internal Medicine 

55 Dr. Pan Pey Chyou Psychiatry 

56 Dr. Pang Pui Fai Psychiatry 

57 Dr. Edmund K. Y. Sha Internal Medicine 

58 Dr. Sham Kwan Ho Psychiatry 

59 Dr. Sim Tiong Chee Geriatric Medicine 

60 Dr. Tam Ka Lok Psychiatry 

61 Dr. Andy Y. B. Tam Emergency Medicine 

62 Dr. Tang Ho Ming Emergency Medicine 

63 Dr. Emily W. H. Tang Ophthalmology 

64 Dr. Wilson W. T. Tang Ophthalmology 

65 Dr. Ting Soo Moi Emergency Medicine 

66 Dr. William W. K. To Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

67 Dr. Tsang Man Wo Internal Medicine 

68 Dr. Colette S. L. Tsang Ophthalmology 

69 Dr. Eugene Y. K. Tso Internal Medicine 

70 Dr. Talen K. H. Wai Otorhinolaryngology 

71 Dr. Wong Ho Hon Psychiatry 

72 Dr. Wong Meng Kong Psychiatry 

73 Dr. Raymond N. M. Wong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

74 Dr. Beatrice P. Y. Wong General Surgery 

75 Dr. Wong Sze Ho Internal Medicine 

76 Dr. Arthur H. W. Wu General Surgery 

77 Dr. Yim Ting Kwan Medicine and Geriatrics 

78 Dr. Michael G. C. Yiu Psychiatry 

79 Dr. Yuen Pak Chuen Emergency Medicine 

 

28. Yan Chai Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan) 

1 Dr. Cheong Peng Meng Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

2 Dr. Kong Chi Kwan General Surgery 

3 Dr. Kwan Wai Keung Internal Medicine 

4 Dr. Lau Chi Wai General Surgery 

5 Dr. Law Tin Chu Internal Medicine 

6 Dr. Lee Qunn Jid Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

7 Dr. Leung Yuen Fai Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

8 Dr. Lo Hung Kwong Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

9 Dr. Ma Kwong Hon Otorhinolaryngology 

10 Dr. Loar K. K. Mo Internal Medicine 

11 Dr. Niko K. C. Tse Paediatrics 

12 Dr. Wai Yuk Leung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

13 Dr. Wong Yiu Chung Orthopaedics & Traumatology 
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COMMUNITY BASED TRAINING CENTERS 

1. A.D.E.C Medical Alliance (Kwai Fong) (Coordinator: Dr. Eddie T. Chan) 

Dr. Eddie T. Chan Family Medicine 

 
2. A.D.E.C Medical Alliance (Tuen Mun) (Coordinator: Dr. Eddie T. Chan) 

Dr. Eddie T. Chan Family Medicine 

 
3. Aberdeen Jockey Club GOPC (Coordinator: Dr. Ko Wai Kit) 

Dr. Ko Wai Kit                               Family Medicine 

 
4. Allied Champion Medical Practice (Coordinator: Dr. Charles Y. C. Wong) 

Dr. David Y. W. Wong Ophthalmology 

 
5. Anne Black Health Centre GOPC (Coordinator: Dr. Irene S. Y. Lai) 

Dr. Irene S. Y. Lai Family Medicine 

 
6. Blue Care Medical Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Angus M. W. Chan) 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan Family Medicine 

 
7. Blue Care Medical Centre (Kwun Tong) (Coordinator: Dr. Angus M. W. Chan) 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan Family Medicine 

 
8. CHC Group Medical Practice Tsim Sha Tsui & Central (Coordinator: Dr. Paul Lam) 

Dr. Paul Lam  Family Medicine 

 
9. CUHK – Family Medicine Teaching Clinic (Coordinator: Prof. Albert Lee) 

Dr.  Andy K. Y. Cheung Family Medicine 

Dr. Antonio A. T. Chuh Family Medicine 

Dr.  Stephen K. S. Foo Family Medicine 

Prof. Albert Lee Family Medicine 

 

10. Caritas Medical Centre - Cheung Sha Wan Jockey Club GOPC (Coordinator: Dr. Luk Wan) 

Dr. Fu Sai Nga Family Medicine 

Dr.  Luk Wan Family Medicine 

Dr.  Ng Chun Bor Family Medicine 

Dr.  Tsang Moon Kwong                                  Family Medicine 

Dr.  Yiu Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 
 

11. Caritas Medical Centre - Community Geriatric Assessment Service (Coordinator: Dr. Mak Wai Poh) 

Dr.  Simon S. L. Choi Internal Medicine 

Dr.  Ip Chiu Yin Geriatric Medicine 

Dr.  Andrew K. S. Ko Internal Medicine 

Dr.  Mak Wai Poh Geriatric Medicine 

Dr.  Lawrence C. Y. Ong Medicine and Geriatrics 
 

12. Caritas Medical Centre - General Practice Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Luk Wan & Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan) 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu  Family Medicine 

Dr. Thomas Y. L. Chan Family Medicne 

Dr. Luk Wan Family Medicine 

Dr. Tsang Moon Kwong Family Medicine 

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 
 

13. Caritas Medical Centre – Palliative Care Unit (Coordinator: Dr. Doris M. W. Tse)   

Dr. Ng Kam Hung Geriatric Medicine 

Dr. Doris M. W. Tse Internal Medicine 
 

14. Central Kowloon Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Law Tung Chi) 

Dr. Law Tung Chi                           Family Medicine 

Dr. Li Yim Chu                              Family Medicine 
 

15. Chai Wan Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Cecilia Y. M. Fan) 

Dr. Cecilla Y. M. Fan Family Medicine 

Dr. Douglas T. C. Lai                             Family Medicine 

Dr. Ng Mei Yee Family Medicine 

Dr. Roger C. K. Wong Family Medicine 
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16. Cheung Chau Family Medicine Training Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau) 

Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau Family Medicine 
 

17. Dr. Hui Kwun Sue’s Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Wilson K. S. Hui) 

Dr. Wilson K. S. Hui Family Medicine 
 
18. Dr. Hui Kwun Sue's Clinic – Central (Coordinator: Dr. Wilson K.S. Hui) 

Dr. Wilson K. S. Hui Family Medicine 
 
19. East Kowloon Psychiatric Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Lo Tak Lam) 

Dr. Chen T. M. Psychiatry 

Dr. Alison Lo Psychiatry 

Dr. Lo Tak Lam Psychiatry 
 
20. Education & Training Centre in Family Medicine (NTK) (Coordinator: Dr. Luke C. Y. Tsang) 

Dr. Ho Kam Wai Family Medicine 

Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui Family Medicine 

Dr. Ng Kwok Keung Family Medicine 

Dr. Luke C. Y. Tsang Family Medicine 
 
21. Evangel Hospital – Family Medicine Department (Coordinator: Dr. Billy S. H. Chui) 

Dr. Billy S. H. Chui Family Medicine 

Dr. Lau Tai Wai Family Medicine 

 
22. Family Medical Practice (Coordinator: Prof. Donald K. T. Li) 

Prof. Donald K. T. Li Family Medicine 

Dr.  Luk Kam Hung Family Medicine 
 

23. Fanling Family Medicine Center (Coordinator: Dr. Augustine T. Lam) 

Dr. Augustine T. Lam Family Medicine 
 
24. Ha Kwai Chung Elderly Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Chua Kam Ling) 

Dr. Chua Kam Ling Family Medicine 

 
25. Haven of Hope Hospital - Community Geriatric Services & Palliative Care (Coodinator: Dr. Chui Tak Yi) 

Dr. Chui Tak Yi Internal Medicine 

Dr. Lam Wai Man Internal Medicine 
 
26. Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

Dr. David S. L. Chan Family Medicine 
 
27. Hong Kong Polytechnic University - University Health Service (Coordiator: Dr. Steven Y. K. Ho) 

Dr. Steven Y. K. Ho Family Medicine 

Dr. Wong Pui Ling Family Medicine 
 

28. Hong Kong Sanatorium Hospital, Outpatient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu) 

Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu Family Medicine 

Dr. Tony C. K. Lee Family Medicine 

Dr. Eileen Y. Y. Tse Family Medicine 
 
29. Hung Hom General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

Dr. Law Tung Chi                          Family Medicine 

 
30. Jockey Club Wo Lok Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang) 

Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang Family Medicine 

 
31. Kowloon Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Arnold K. H. Kwok) 

Dr. Lisa P. K. Cheng Family Medicine 

Dr. Ho Kam Wai Family Medicine 

Dr. Arnold K. H. Kwok    Family Medicine 

Dr. Lau Kam Tong Family Medicine 

Dr. Tammy K. W. Tam     Family Medicine 
 

32. Kowloon Hospital (C) – Department of Psychiatry (Coordinator: Dr. Chiu Ling) 
Dr. Chiu Ling         Psychiatry 
 

33. Kwong Fuk / Jordan Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang) 
Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang        Family Medicine 

 
34. Kwong Fuk Community Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang) 

Dr. Lai Kit Chi         Family Medicine 
Dr. Joyce S. F. Tang        Family Medicine 
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35. Kwong Wah Hospital – General Out Patient Department (Coordinator: Dr. Lorna V. Ng) 
Prof. Albert Lee        Family Medicine 
Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna        Family Medicine 
 

36. Kwong Wah Hospital – Geriatric Unit, Department of Medicine & Geriatrics (Coordinator: Dr. Chan Ming Houng) 
Dr. Chan Ming Houng       Internal Medicine 
Dr. Chan Tak Yeung       Geriatric Medicine 

 
37. Kwun Tong Elderly Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Ho Kin Sang) 

Dr. Ho Kin Sang        Family Medicine 
 
38. Lam Tin General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Kwok Chi Sum) 

Dr. Kwok Chi Sum        Family Medicine 
 
39. Lam Tin Special Assessment Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Mak Kwok Hang) 

Dr. Mak Kwok Hang        Community Medicine / Public Health 
 
40. Lee Kee Memorial Dispensary (Coordinator: Dr. Francis W. T. Lee) 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee       Family Medicine 
 
41. Ma On Shan Family Medicine Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Augustine T. Lam) 

Dr. Cheung Yu       Family Medicine 
Dr. Augustine T. Lam        Family Medicine 
Dr. Shek Chun Chiu       Family Medicine 
 

42. Ma On Shan Polyclinic, Union Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan) 
Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan       Family Medicine 

 
43. Mona Fong General Out-patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Chan Pang Fai) 

Dr. Chan Pang Fai                          Family Medicine 
 
44. NTW Cluster Community Mental Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Iu Pui Chuen) 

Dr. Chan Wai Chi Psychiatry 

Dr. Anna W. Y. Chan Psychiatry 

Dr. Cheung Puk Chi Psychiatry 

Dr. Fan Tak Wing Psychiatry 

Dr. Rommel C. H. Hung Psychiatry 

Dr. Iu Pui Chuen Psychiatry 

Dr. Kan Chung Sing Psychiatry 

Dr. Lam Ming Psychiatry 

Dr. Lam Siu Man Psychiatry 

Dr. Li Siu Wah Psychiatry 

Dr. Tsang Fan Kwong Psychiatry 

Dr. Steve Tso Psychiatry 

Dr. Timothy M. H. Yeung Psychiatry 

 
45. Ngau Tau Kok General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Lam Pui) 

Dr. Lam Pui         Family Medicine 
 
46. North District Hospital – Department of O&G (Coordinator: Dr. Yuen Pong Mo) 

Dr. Fung Tak Yuen       Obstetrics & Gynaecology 
Dr. Ng Pui Shan       Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

 
47. OLMH - East Kowloon General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan) 

Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan        Family Medicine 
Dr. Cheung Kwok Leung         Family Medicine 

 
48. OLMH – Family Medicine Clinic and Integrated & Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan) 

Dr. Winnie W. Y. Chan        Family Medicine 
Dr. Lau Po Shan        Family Medicine 
Dr. Fu Sau Nga        Family Medicine 

 
49. Outpatient Department, Hong Kong Baptist Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Chan Ying Ho, Andrew) 

Dr. Chan Ying Ho, Andrew        Family Medicine 
  
50. PYNEH – Chai Wan GOPC & FM Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong) 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu       Family Medicine 
Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui       Family Medicine 
Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong       Family Medicine 

 
51. Pok Oi Hospital Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To) 

Dr. Liang Jun Family Medicine 

Dr. Ng Yeung Shing Family Medicine 

Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To Family Medicine 
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52. Practice of Dr. Chan Hung Chiu (Coordinator: Dr. Chan Hung Chiu) 
Dr. Chan Hung Chiu        Family Medicine 
 

53. Prince of Wales Hospital - Family Medicine Clinic and Integrated & Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Augustine T. Lam) 

Dr. Cheung Man Kuen                 Family Medicine 

Dr. Angustine T. Lam Family Medicine 

Prof. Albert Lee Family Medicine 

Dr. Bernard Ngai Family Medicine 

Dr. Shek Chun Chiu Family Medicine 

 
54. Princess Margaret Hospital – Department of Medicine and Geriatrics (Coordinator: Dr. Kong Tak Kwan) 

Dr. Ko Chi Fai Internal Medicine 

Dr. Kong Tak Kwan Internal Medicine 

Dr. Alexander C. B. Law Geriatric Medicine 

Dr. So Kar Kui Geriatric Medicine 

Dr. Tam Tak Cheong Geriatric Medicine 

Dr. Tong Bing Chung Geriatric Medicine 

Dr. Yeung Kwan Mo Medicine and Geriatrics 

 
55. Queen Elizabeth Hospital – HA Staff Clinic & FM Integrated Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Chan King Hong) 

Dr. Chan King Hong         Family Medicine 
 
56. Queen Mary Hospital - Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui) 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu         Family Medicine 
Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui         Family Medicine 
Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong         Family Medicine 
 

57. RH&TSKH – Hospital Authority Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu) 
Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu         Family Medicine 
Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui         Family Medicine 
Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong         Family Medicine 

 
58. Ruttonjee Hospital – Community Geriatric Assessment Team (Coordinator: Dr. Wong Chun Por) 

Dr. Wong Chun Por         Geriatric Medicine 
 
59. Sai Wan Ho General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau) 

Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau         Family Medicine 
 
60. Sai Ying Pun Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Wendy W.S. Tsui) 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu         Family Medicine 
Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui         Family Medicine 
Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong         Family Medicine 

 
61. Sai Ying Pun Jockey Club General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Wendy W.S. Tsui) 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu Family Medicine 

Dr. Maria K. W. Leung                                    Family Medicine 

Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui Family Medicine 

Dr. Michelle M. Y. Wong Family Medicine 

 
62. Shatin Hospital – Community Geriatric Assessment Team (Coordinator: Prof. Jean Woo) 

Dr. Elsie Hui          Medicine and Geriatrics 
Prof. Jean Woo         Medicine and Geriatrics 

 
63. Shaukeiwan Elderly Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Ho Kin Sang) 

Dr. Carroll K. L. Chan         Family Medicine 
Dr. Ho Kin Sang          Family Medicine 

 
64. Shun Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau Kui Clinic GOPC (Coordinator: Dr. Ching Kam Wing) 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing         Family Medicine 
 
65. TKOH - Jockey Club General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

Dr. Fung Yuk Kwan  Family Medicine 

Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo Family Medicine 

Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong Family Medicine 

Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan Family Medicine 

 
66. Tai Po Hospital – Community Geriatric Assessment Team (Coordinator: Dr. Emily W. L. Kun) 

Dr. Cheng Hing Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr. Emily W. L. Kun Internal Medicine 

Dr. Ma Hon Ming Internal Medicine 

Dr. Samuel L. S. Tse Internal Medicine 

 
67. Tang Chi Ngong Specialist Clinic – Hong Kong Families Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Tsui Kwok Biu) 

Dr. Linda Y. F. Hui Family Medicine 



45 

Dr. Lai Wing Yiu  Family Medicine 

Dr. Dominic M. W. Lau Family Medicine 

Dr. Tsui Kwok Biu Family Medicine 

 
68. Tseung Kwan O Elerly Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Amy O. Y. Wong) 

Dr. Amy O. Y. Wong          Family Medicine 
 

69. Tsuen Wan Elderly Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Benny L. P. Lui) 
Dr. Benny L. P. Lui          Family Medicine 

 
70. Tuen Mun Hospital – Community Geriatric Assessment Service (Coordinator: Dr. Au Si Yan) 

Dr. Au Si Yan             Medicine and Geriatrics 
 
71. Tuen Mun Hospital – Family Medicine Specialist Clinic & HA Staff Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To) 

Dr. Eddie T. Chan         Family Medicine 
Dr. Ng Yeung Shing         Family Medicine 

 
72. Tuen Mun Wu Hong EHC (Coordinator: Dr. Yeung Sau Ying) 

Dr. Yeung Sau Ying          Family Medicine 
 

73. Tung Wah Hospital – Out Patient Department (Coordinator: Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau) 
Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau         Family Medicine 

 
74. UCH – HA Staff Clinic & Family Medicine Specialist Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

Dr. David V. K. Chao Family Medicine 

Dr. John T. N. Chung Family Medicine 

Dr. Fung Yuk Kwan Family Medicine 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee Family Medicine 

Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo Family Medicine 

Dr. Wong Kwai Wing Family Medicine 

Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan Family Medicine 

 
75. UMP Metro City Plaza Medical Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong) 

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong         Family Medicine 
 
76. UMP Olympian Medical Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong) 

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong          Family Medicine 
 
77. University of Hong Kong – Family Medicine Unit (Coordinator: Prof. Cindy L. K. Lam) 

Prof. Cindy L. K. Lam         Family Medicine 
Prof. Lam Tai Pong         Family Medicine 

 
78. University of Hong Kong - University Health Service (Coordinator: Dr. Kitty K. C. Chan) 

Dr. Kitty K. C. Chan  Family Medicine 

Dr. Paul W. K. Cheung Family Medicine 

Prof. Chow Shew Ping  Orthopaedics & Traumatology 

Prof. William Wei Otorhinolaryngology 

 
79. Violet Peel General Out-Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Daniel W. S.Chu) 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu         Family Medicine 
 
80. West Kowloon General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Luk Wan) 

Dr. Luk Wan          Family Medicine 
 
81. Western Special Assessment Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Mak Kwok Hang) 

Dr. Mak Kwok Hang          Community Medicine / Public Health 
 
82. Wong Siu Ching Family Medicine Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Eric M.T. Hui) 

Dr. Eric M.T. Hui         Family Medicine 
 
83. Yan Chai Hospital, General Practice Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Alvin C. Y. Chan) 

Dr. Chan Chi Wai         Family Medicine 
Dr. Alvin C. Y. Chan         Family Medicine 

 
84. Yan Oi General Out Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To) 

Dr. Eddie T. Chan Family Medicine 

Dr. Liang Jun     Family Medicine 

Dr. Dorothy K. Y. To  Family Medicine 

Dr. Tsui Pun Nang Family Medicine 

 
85. Yau Ma Tei Geriatric Day Hospital (Coordinator: Dr. Chan Ming Houng) 

Dr. Chan Ming Houng  Internal Medicine 

Dr. Mak Ying Fai  Geriatric Medicine 

Dr. Shea Tat Ming  Geriatric Medicine  

Dr. Tam Kui Fu  Geriatric Medicine 
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86. Yau Ma Tei Jockey Club Genreal Out-Patient Clinic (Coordinator: Dr. David V. K. Chao) 

Dr. Law Tung Chi Family Medicine 

Dr. Francis W. T. Lee Family Medicine 

Dr. Ng Chun Bor Family Medicine 

 
87. Yuen Long Elderly Health Centre (Coordinator: Dr. Wong Suk Ching) 

Dr. Wong Suk Ching          Family Medicine 

 

 

 

EDITORIAL BOARD 

Chairman / Chief Editor     :  Prof. Samuel Y. S. Wong  

Deputy Editors     : Dr. Frederick C. T. Lee 

Dr. Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr. Kathy K. L. Tsim  

Dr. Kenny Kung  

Business Manager         : Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong  

Editorial Board Members  : Dr. Nelson N. Y. Chan   Dr. Lam Yuen 

    Dr. David V. K. Chao   Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Stephen Chen    Dr. Lee See Mei 

Dr. Judy Cheng    Dr. Maria K. W. Leung 

Dr. Cheung Man Kuen   Dr. Liang Jun 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing   Dr. Yvonne Y. C. Lo 

Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu    Dr. Ng Chun Bor 

Dr. Rudolph W. M. Chow   Dr. Charles C. Y. Ng 

Dr. Antonio A. T. Chuh   Dr. Raymond W. M. Pau 

Dr. Fu Xijuan    Dr. Adrian T. Y. Tang 

Dr. Kwok Kon Hung   Dr. Keith K. K. Tse 

Dr. Lam Man    Dr. Wendy W. S. Tsui 

Dr. Lam Tai Kwan    Prof. Martin Wong 

Dr. Lam Tai Pong    Dr. Wong Ka Wah 

Dr. Lam Wing Wo 

Editorial Board Advisers    :  Professor Helen Chiu   Professor Wilfred C. G. Peh 

Professor S. T. Fan    Professor Grace Tang 

Professor Sian Griffiths   Professor C. A. van Hasselt 

Professor Cindy L. K. Lam  Professor Jean Woo 

Professor P C Leung   Professor Wong Tze Wai 

Professor Albert Li    Professor Rosie. T. T. Young 

Professor Mak Ki Yan   Dr. Peter C. Y. Lee 

Ex-officio      : Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

    Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Statistical Consultant         : Professor W. Goggins  

Staff       : Ms. Carmen Cheng        (Administrative Executive) 

Ms. Teresa Lee         (Administrative Executive, to July 2011) 

 

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 

This year, we continued our quarterly publications of the Hong Kong Practitioner with 27 manuscripts published over the year. Among 

the published manuscripts, 33% were original research articles, 11% were discussion papers and 17% were update articles. The rest 

were editorials (22%) and case reports (17%).  

 

For the Hong Kong Practitioner, we continued our efforts to invite both international and local academics and clinicians to share their 

views on recent development in family medicine and primary care such that busy family physicians can find the information relevant to 

their practice.  

 

We hope that our journal will continue to provide up-to-date knowledge that is relevant to the practice of family medicine and hope that 

our readers will continue to show their support.   
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SPECIALTY BOARD 

 
Chairlady        :  Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy  

Vice-Chairman  : 

Secretary        : 

Dr. Chan Kin Ling 

Dr. Wang Hua Li, Jenny 

 

Board Members  : Dr. Kwok Kon Hung             

Dr. Ko Wai Kit   

Dr. Luk Kam Hung  

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy        

Dr. Kwong Siu Kei, Alfred        

Dr. Wang Hua Li, Jenny          

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan  

Dr. Chan Yin Hang                           

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus 

Dr. Ho Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr. Kwong Ka Wah 

Prof. Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr. Tse K K, Keith 

Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 
 

(Coordinator, Clinical Audit Segment) 

(Coordinator, Consultation Skills Assessment Segment) 

(Coordinator, Practice Assessment Segment) 

(Coordinator, Research Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Clinical Audit Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Consultation Skills Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Practice Assessment Segment) 

(Deputy Coordinator, Research Segment) 

 

Ex-officio        : Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary  

Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

 

 

Staff             :                  Ms. Crystal W. Y. Yung  

Ms. Winniea W. Y. Lee 

Ms. Snowdy S. Y. Lee 

(Executive Officer) 

(Administrative Executive) 

(Administrative Executive, to Sept 2011) 

Panel of Examiners: 

1. Clinical Audit 

A. Examiners

Dr. Au Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr. Au Wah Cheong, Eric 

Dr. Au-Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr. Chan Man Li 

Dr. Chan Sze Luen, David 

Dr. Chan Yin Hang 

Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr. Cheung Yau Ling, Florence 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr. Choi Wing Kin 

Dr. Chuh An Tung, Antonio 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

Dr. Ho King Yip, Anthony 

Dr. Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr. Hui Yin Fun, Linda 

Dr. Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

Dr. Kwok Kon Hung, Arnold 

Dr. Kwong Ka Wah 

Dr. Kwong Siu Kei 

Dr. Lam Hiu Lam 

Dr. Lam Hon Man 

Prof. Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr. Lam Tsan, Augustine 

Dr. Lau Chi Hang 

Dr. Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr. Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr. Leung Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr. Liang Jun 

Dr. Lo Chun Hung, Raymond 

Dr. Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr. Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr. Luk Kam Hung 

Dr. Luk Wan 

Dr. Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

Dr. Ng Chun Bor 

Dr. Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr. Sze Hon Ho 

Dr. Tang Shao Fen, Joyce 

Dr. Ting Fei Yin 

Dr. To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr. Tse Keith K K 

Dr. Wang Hua Li 

Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr. Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr. Wong Pui Ling 

Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan 

B. Trainee Examiners 

Dr. Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr. Chan King Hong 

Dr. Chan Pang Fai 

Dr. Chan Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr. Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr. Kung Kenny 

Dr. Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr. Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr. Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr. Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Dr. Lee Wan Tsi, Francis 

Dr. Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr. Leung Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr. Li Heung Wing 

Dr. Loy Tien En, Grace 

Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

Dr. Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr. Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr. Pang Siu Leung 

Dr. Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr. Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr. Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr. Wan Wing Fai 

Prof. Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr. Wong Man Ying, Michelle 
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Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

Dr. Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr. Yuen Fu Lam 

Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

2. Practice Assessment 

A. Examiners 

Dr. Au Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr. Au Wah Cheong, Eric 

Dr. Au-Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr. Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr. Chan Kin Ling 

Dr. Chan Kit Chi, Kitty 

Dr. Chan Kwok Wai, Keith 

Dr. Chan Man Li 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus 

Dr. Chan Pang Fai 

Dr. Chan Sze Luen, David 

Dr. Chan Tat Eddie 

Dr. Chan Wan Yee, Winnie 

Dr. Chan Yin Hang 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr. Choi Wing Kin 

Dr. Chu Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

Dr. Ho Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr. Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr. Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr. Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew 

Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

Dr. Kung Kenny 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr. Kwong Ka Wah 

Dr. Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr. Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr. Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr. Lam Hiu Lam 

Prof. Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr. Lam Tsan, Augustine 

Dr. Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr. Lee Wan Tsi, Francis 

Dr. Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr. Liang Jun 

Dr. Lo Chun Hung, Raymond 

Dr. Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr. Lo(Wong) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr. Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr. Luk Kam Hung 

Dr. Luk Wan 

Dr. Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr. Sze Hon Ho 

Dr. Ting Fei Yin 

Dr. To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr. Tse Keith K K 

Dr. Tse Yuen Yee, Eileen 

Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr. Wan Wing Fai 

Dr. Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr. Wong Pui Ling 

Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan 

B. Trainee Examiners

Dr. Chan King Hong 

Dr. Chan Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr. Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr. Kwong Siu Kei 

Dr. Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Dr. Lau Chi Hang 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Dr. Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr. Leung Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr. Li Heung Wing 

Dr. Loy Tien En, Grace 

Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

Dr. Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr. Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr. Pang Siu Leung 

Dr. Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr. Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr. Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr. Wang Hua Li 

Prof. Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr. Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr. Yuen Fu Lam 

Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

3. Consultation Skills Assessment 

A. Examiners 

Dr. Au Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr. Au-Yeung Shiu Hing 

Dr. Chan Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr. Chan King Hong 

Dr. Chan Kit Chi, Kitty 

Dr. Chan Man Li 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus 

Dr. Chan Pang Fai 

Dr. Chan Suk Yin 

Dr. Chan Sze Luen, David 

Dr. Chan Tat, Eddie 

Dr. Chan Wan Yee, Winnie 

Dr. Chan Yin Hang 

Dr. Chan Yuen Yan 

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr. Choi Wing Kin 

Dr. Chu Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr. Fan Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr. Fu Sau Nga 

Dr. Ho King Yip, Anthony 

Dr. Ho Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr. Hui Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr. Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr. Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew 

Dr. Ko Wai Kit 

Dr. Kung Kenny 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr. Kwong Ka Wah 

Dr. Kwong Siu Kei 

Dr. Lai Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr. Lai Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr. Lam Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr. Lam Hiu Lam 

Dr. Lam King Hei, Stanley 

Prof. Lam Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr. Lam Tsan, Augustine 

Dr. Lau Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr. Lee Wan Tsi, Francis 

Dr. Leung Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr. Leung Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr. Leung Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr. Liang Jun 

Dr. Lo Chun Hung, Raymond 

Dr. Lo Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr. Lo(Wong) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr. Loy Tien En, Grace 

Dr. Lui Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr. Luk Kam Hung 

Dr. Luk Wan 

Dr. Mak Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr. Ng Ching Luen 

Dr. Ng Chun Bor 

Dr. Ng Kwok Keung 

Dr. Ng Ming Shing 

Dr. Ng Sze Wing, Catherine 
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Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna 

Dr. Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 

Dr. Sze Hon Ho 

Dr. Ting Fei Yin 

Dr. To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr. Tse Yuen Yee, Eileen 

Dr. Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr. Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene 

Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr. Wan Wing Fai 

Dr. Wang Hua Li 

Prof. Wong Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr. Wong Kwai Wing 

Dr. Wong Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr. Wong Oi Yee, Amy 

Dr. Wong Pak Hoi 

Dr. Wong Pui Ling 

Dr. Wong Suk Ching 

Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

Dr. Yiu Ming Pong 

Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr. Yuen Fu Lam 

B. Trainee Examiners

Dr. Chan Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr. Cheung Yau Ling, Florence 

Dr. Choy Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr. Lau Chi Hang 

Dr. Lee Chun Kit, Tony 

Dr. Li Heung Wing 

Dr. Pang Siu Leung 

Dr. Poon Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr. Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr. Yuen Shiu Man 

The Specialty Board conducted Supplementary Exit Examination from July to September, 2010.  26 candidates sat the 

supplementary Exit Examination and 16 of them successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination. 

 

The 2011 Full Exit Examination was held from December 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011.  68 candidates attempted the 

Examination and 28 candidates successfully completed and passed the whole Exit Examination.  Professor Doris Young was 

again the External Examiner of the 2011 Full Exit Examination. 

The successful candidates were:

Dr. Ai Hiu Fay Dawn, Teresa 

Dr. Chan Chi Wing 

Dr. Chan Ka Man 

Dr. Chan Lit Ping 

Dr. Cheng Sai Yip, Ronald 

Dr. Cheung Hard King 

Dr. Cheung Ngai Fung 

Dr. Chow Chong Kwan 

Dr. Fok Peter Anthony 

Dr. Hung Chi Bun 

Dr. Ip Chung Ho, Ronald 

Dr. Ip Yan Yan 

Dr. Kwan Wing Yan, Wendy 

Dr. Kwan Yu 

Dr. Kwok Pik Ki 

Dr. Lai Sheung Siu 

Dr. Lee Kar Fai 

Dr. Lee Man Kei 

Dr. Leung To Fung 

Dr. Leung Yu Hang 

Dr. Li Yuen Yuen 

Dr. Lim Mo Kin 

Dr. Lo Ling 

Dr. Mok Yuen Fan, Jennifer 

Dr. Sin Ka Ling 

Dr. Sit Wing Shan 

Dr. So Mei Ho 

Dr. Sze Lung Yam 

Dr. Tam Ho Shan 

Dr. Tam Kit Ping 

Dr. Ting Fei Yin 

Dr. Tsang Hing Fai 

Dr. Tse Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. Tso Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr. Wong Kwok Hoi 

Dr. Wong Kwok, Kitty 

Dr. Wong Man Kin 

Dr. Wong Sze Nga 

Dr. Wong Tak Lung 

Dr. Wong Yu Fai 

Dr. Wong Yuk Shan 

Dr. Yip Tze Hung 

Dr. Yu Ching Ching 

Dr. Yuen Fu Lam 

 

The Board had organized Pre-Exit Examination Training Workshops and feedback sessions after the Examination for candidates. 

Standardization Workshops for examiners were also held to maintain the standards of the assessment.  

 

Another task of the Board is to scrutinize applications for nomination to Fellowship of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in 

Family Medicine. It also assesses application for Certificate of Specialist Registration with comparable training according to 

guidelines laid down by Education Committee, HKAM and makes recommendation to our College Council. The College submitted 

44 fellowship nominations and were all approved by the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. 

 

Finally, the Board would like to express the most sincere thanks to all examiners for their dedication and hard work in making the 

Exit Examination possible and successful. 
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BUSINESS MANAGER 

 

Chairlady : Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

 

Ex-officio : Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee 

Dr. Angus M.W. Chan 

   Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

   Dr. Law Tung Chi 
 

Staff  : Ms. Carmen Cheng    (Administrative Executive) 

Ms. Angel Cheung    (Administrative Executive) 

Ms. Teresa Lee    (Administrative Executive, to July 2011) 

 

This year is another busy year. We had the first Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2011, with the dinner symposium co-

organised with the Primary Care Office, Department of Health, HKSAR. We also had the first Training Course on Practice  

Management, the third Certificate Course on Respiratory Medicine and a number of College activities including Annual Refresher 

Course, Medical Updates, bi-monthly Dermatology Interest Group meetings alternate with Mental Health and Psychiatry Interest 

Group, regular meetings of Neuro-musculoskeletal Interest Group and Medico-legal Alert Interest Group, lecture given by the 

HKCFP Visiting Professor of the University of Hong Kong, and the other educational luncheon scientific meetings. These activities 

which helped to bring the update medical knowledge to our members were generously sponsored by the following pharmaceutical 

companies. Thanks to them also that our Journal, The Hong Kong Practitioner, The Family Physicians Links continues to have 

received advertisements from them. Our Journal provides a very valuable channel for our members to update themselves on 

medical knowledge, remains one of the most popular and widely circulated medical literatures locally. Demands for e-mail bulk 

mailing and circulating services by members and other institutions had also increased.  

 

The College had invited all the sponsors to the 33
rd
 Anniversary Dinner to share a memorable evening together. I would also like 

to take this opportunity to thank our College members, Johnson and Johnson. Langham Place Hotel, Holiday Inn Golden Mile 

Hong Kong for their generous donation of gifts for our annual dinner: 

 

On behalf of the College, I would like to express my gratitude to all the following companies for their generous support of our 

College‟s functions: 

 

Abbott Laboratories Ltd 

AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited 

Bayer HealthCare Ltd 

Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharma (HK) Ltd 

Covidien, Tyco Healthcare (HKSAR) Ltd 

Galderma Hong Kong Limited 

GlaxoSmithKline Limited 

IDS (HK) Ltd 

Janssen Pharmaceutical 

Johnson & Johnson (Hong Kong) Ltd 

Lundbeck Hong Kong 

Merck Sharp & Dohme (Asia) Ltd 

Novartis Pharmaceuticals (HK) Ltd 

Novo Nordisk Hong Kong Ltd 

Pfizer Corporation Hong Kong Ltd 

Sanet Scientific Co Ltd 

sanofi-aventis Hong Kong Limited 

Servier Hong Kong Ltd 

Stiefel, a GSK Company 

Takeda Pharmaceuticals Taiwan, Ltd  

(Hong Kong Branch) 

Wyeth (HK) Limit

旅港順德綿遠堂 

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER-ON-DUTY (CMOD) SYSTEM 

Coordinator  : Dr. Tony C.K. Lee 

Staff         : Ms. Teresa D.F. Liu   (Administrative Executive) 

Ms. Erica M. So  (Executive Manager) 

   

From April 2010 to March 2011, we have received 1 enquiry from one of our member concerning matter related to Continuing 

Medical Education (CME). The enquiry was handled immediately and directed to the respective Committee for any necessary 

follow-up actions. The CMOD remained as an important and effective communication between the Council and the members. 

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all Council members who act as on-duty members in the roster in answering the 

enquiry and giving their invaluable advice. I would also like to thank the secretarial staff for their hardwork. 
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Summary of CMOD Case (April 2010 to March 2011) 

Area of Enquiry 
Case 

Number 
Action Taken by CMOD 

Board / 
Committee 

involved 

Enquiry about the pre-accreditation 

process of CME points. 

01/2010 (Replied by email) 

The enquiry was forwarded to the Quality Assurance & 

Accreditation (QA & A) Committee for clarification.  

QA & A 

 

 

EDUCATION COMMITTEE (AM AFFAIRS) 

Coordinator  : Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

Staff         : Ms. Erica M. So  (Executive Manager) 

 

The Exit Examination of HKCFP consists of three segments, namely (i) Consultation Skill Assessment (CSA), (ii) Practice 

Assessment and (iii) Clinical Audit (Research Project as an alternative in 2013).  At present, the College‟s CSA is based on the 

Leicester Assessment Package and the examination arrangement is through direct observation of 6 consultations by examiners 

within 2 hours.  It has been criticized as not truly reflecting the candidate‟s abilities.  HKCFP suggested replacing the current 

format with a new one, requiring the candidate to submit a video log of consecutive consultations in a specified period of time (a 

minimum of 18 cases be recorded within 6 net hours). In the EC meeting in March 2011, EC agreed and accepted that the new 

format could start in January 2012. 

 

EC noted the 2008-10 CMECPD reports submitted by all Colleges. In the 2011 Academy Guidelines, it is strongly recommended 

that Fellows should maintain a balanced CMECPD profile with a mix of different activities, including 5 points in a cycle from 

activities in Quality Assurance, Audits and Activities for Improvement of Patient/Medical Care in order to capture the full benefit of 

different types of CMECPD activities.  EC agreed that Colleges should write this in their guidelines to remind Fellows. 

 

College CMECPD Reports for the Cycle 2008-2010 

EC noted the 2008-10 CMECPD reports submitted by all Colleges.  Of the 5,650 Fellows and CSR (Certificate of Specialist 

Registration) doctors who are required to do CMECPD (121 Fellows were exempted from CMECPD for retirement), 176 

(about 3%) were reported to have failed to fulfil the CMECPD requirements.   Letters have been sent to these Fellows and 

doctors requesting for explanation by 25 March 2011.   For those in the “non-remediable” group (obtained points less than 

2/3 of the requirements) and not responding by the deadline, their names would be submitted to Council for Fellowship 

termination.  Medical Council and Dental Council would also be informed if these Fellows/CSR doctors are in the SR. 

 

CMECPD for 2014-16 

EC agreed the following after discussion: 

a) There would not be significant changes to the CMECPD guidelines for cycle 2014-16; 

b) Colleges can make QA activities mandatory if they think it appropriate for their Fellows; 

c) EC sees the need and benefits of requiring Fellows to evaluate / review their practice in order to improve quality of their 

patient services; 

d) In the long run, evaluation / review of practice should be made part of everyone’s CPD profile; 

e) The existing system would need to be strengthened to enable all Fellows to participate in QA related activities easily. 

There was a query on how the Academy certified the qualifications and training requirement of applicants for SR to ensure that 

they were of adequate specialist competence, as there were some disciplinary inquiries of Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK) 

resulting in doctors being removed from SR due to incompetency.  

 

Members noted that for those found guilty of professional misconduct, the suitability to remain on or go back (after removal) to SR 

was to be decided by Medical Council only.  But the Academy could terminate the Fellowship of this Fellow if warranted according 

to the existing Bylaws.  HKAM will seek for legal advice to make sure the Academy / College would have a legally robust 

mechanism to consider these cases. 

 

For HKCFP fellows, according to our „Memorandum and Articles of Association of HKCFP‟, Any Fellow and member who:- 

1. is found guilty by the Medical Council of Hong Kong of infamous conduct in a professional respect and with name removed                 
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from the Medical Council Register; or 

2. is found guilty of an indictable offence and with name removed from the Medical Council Register.‟ 

shall by a majority vote of Council cease to be a Fellow provided that the Fellow affected shall have the right to appeal to 

members in the general meeting. 

 

 

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Chairman  :   Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi 

Members  :    Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim  (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Law Tung Chi (Ex-officio) 

 

Executive Manager :    Ms. Erica M. So 

 

Participated Conferences / Forums / Meetings 

23 Dec 2010: 廣東省衛生廳耿慶山廳長會面：全科醫生技能培訓 

21-24 Feb 2011: 18
th
 WONCA Asia Pacific Conference 2011 Cebu, Philippines 

29 Mar 2011: Meeting with Fuzhou Health Department Representatives 

30 Mar 2011: 福州市投資環境說明會暨重大項目簽約儀式 

2 Apr 2011: Public Revenue Protection Order LegCo Sub Committee Meeting  

10 Apr 2011: Launching Ceremony of Primary Care Campaign 

21-23 Jul 2011: 45
th
 Singapore-Malaysia Congress of Medicine, Singapore 

8 Aug 2011:  立法會 生事務委員會特別會議: 醫療改革第二階段公眾諮詢報告 

22 Aug 2011:  Policy Address Forum for Medical Profession 

18 Sep 2011: 2011 Paediatric Update No. 3 - Clinical Audit 

24 Sept 2010:  Meeting with Macau Health Bureau in Macau 

5 - 8 Oct 2011:  RACGP Academy Session & GP11 in Hobart, Australia 

20 Oct 2011: Medical Student Career Talk 2011, University of Hong Kong 

22 Oct 2011:            Prosthetics & Orthotics Scientific Meeting 2011, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University 

 

Media Interview: 

Dec 2010 RTHK 精靈一點：基層醫療系列 

With co-hosted by Dr Gene Tsoi 

1.   基層醫療統籌處/美加醫療制度與本港比較 

2.   基層醫療手冊/外科手術 checklist 

3.   公私營基層醫療合作/醫療親情  

4.   基層醫療與醫保/威爾斯搬遷與發展 

 

 

Dr. Amy Chiu 

Prof. Cindy Lam 

Dr. Eddie Chan 

Prof. Gabriel Leung 

Dec 2010 ATV 生活資訊站: The “most search” diseases in 2010 through Google in HK Dr. Billy Chiu 

Dec 2010 The Sun phone interview: Post-Christmas health problem. Dr. Billy Chiu 

May 2011 RTHK programme 精靈一點: Promotion of World Family Doctor Day – 15 May 

 

Dr. Ruby Lee and 

Prof. Donald Li 

May 2011 Tai Kun Pao phone interview: Dry weather and health problem Dr. Gene Tsoi 

Apr 2011 Economic Digest phone interview: Body check Dr. Angus Chan 

Feb 2011 The Sun phone interview: Nocturnal leg cramp Dr. Gene Tsoi 

Jun & 

Jul 2011 

 

RTHK 精靈一點: Collaboration between Family Physicians & other Specialists 

1. Oncology : Dr. Peter Teo 

2. Geriatric Medicine : Dr. Bernard Kong 

3. Surgery : Prof. CK Yeung 

4. Emergency Medicine : Dr. Tsui Kowk Leung 

5. Mental Health & Psychiatry : Prof. KY Mak 

 

Dr. Gene Tsoi 

Dr. Ruby Lee 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu 

Dr. Quincy Yuen 

Dr. Wendy Tsui 
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Jun 2011 The Sun phone interview: 搭飛機外遊注意事項 Dr. Angus Chan 

Jun 2011 

 

Ming Pao Weekly interview: 本地家庭醫學服務與發展 Dr. Angus Chan & 

Dr. Stephen Foo 

Jun 2011 

 

Letter to the Editor of South China Morning Post to echo the article on 1 June, 

2011 “Family doctors, a cure for the system's ills”.  

Dr. Ruby Lee 

Sep 2011 更健康Better Health: 服食西藥注意事項 Dr. Billy Chiu 

Sep 2011 RTHK 5: Smiling Families Dr. Gene Tsoi 

 

The External Affairs Committee had been involved with local health issues in relation to our specialty and primary care. Requests 

from local media via telephone interviews, articles in newspaper, and series of radio broadcasting programmes were organized 

with the support from Council members and guests from other specialties. 

 

Official visitors from provincial government in mainland China were received by our President and College Secretariat. It is very 

important for the exchange of experience in medical education and vocational training as well as the ongoing healthcare reform in 

both sides. Our President has attended regional WONCA conference in Cebu and the Conferment Ceremony of RACGP in Hobart.  

 

Once again I must thank all those who have contributed in the various activities under the External Affairs Committee and to the 

Secretariat for the liaison work. 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Chairman             :  Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Committee Members  :    Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee           (President) 

   Dr. Angus M.W. Chan      (Vice-President) 

   Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong       (Vice-President & Business Manager) 

   Dr. Law Tung Chi          (Hon. Secretary) 

Staff                             :   Ms. Angel Cheung           (Administrative Executive) 

With careful monitoring by the Finance Committee, the financial situation of the College in the financial year of 2010-2011 

continued to remain stable and healthy as before.  We have always adopted a conservative investment strategy, and we will 

continue to take a prudent and careful attitude to other investment options. There is currently a positive balance of over HK$15 

million in our accounts. There are no major changes to our portfolio compared to the previous financial year. Only 7.1% of our 

portfolio is in equity shares, purchased when they were first issued, and the great majority of our funds are in the form of cash 

savings in various banks. 

I would like to express my sincere thanks to Dr. Ruby Lee, our President, Dr. Mary Kwong, our Vice President (General Affairs), 

Dr. Angus Chan, our Vice President (Education and Examinations), Dr. Law Tung Chi, our Honorary Secretary, Ms. Erica So, our 

Executive Manager, and Ms. Angel Cheung, our Accounts Executive, for their continuous advice, support and service. I would 

also like to thank Mr. CF Cheung, our Honorary Auditor, for his professional advice and service. 

 

 

 

FP Links Committee 

Chairlady    :    Dr. Wendy W.S. Tsui    

Chief Editor  :     Dr. Catherine S.W. Ng 

Deputy Editor : Prof. Martin C.S. Wong 

  Dr. Natalie Y.K. Yuen 

Committee Members : Dr. Alvin C.Y. Chan          Section Coordinator (Oasis) 

  Dr. Edmond C.W. Chan 

  Dr. Chan Man Li                       Section Coordinator (Feature/ Trainee Column) 
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  Dr. Chan Ting Bong 

  Dr. Judy G.Y. Cheng                 Section Coordinator (After Hours) 

  Dr. Anita W.M. Fan 

  Dr. Heidi H.T. Fung  

  Dr. Kenny Kung Section Coordinator (Wonca Express) 

  Dr. Alfred S.K. Kwong 

  Dr. Dorothy T.C. Law  

  Dr. Maria K.W. Leung Section Coordinator (Photo Gallery) 

  Dr. Ngai Ka Ho 

  Dr. Sin Ming Chuen 

  Dr. Sze Hon Ho 

  Dr. Wong Yu Fai   

  Dr. Sam C.K. Yip Section Coordinator (News Corner) 

          

Staff                                 :      Ms. Carmen Cheng         (Administrative Executive) 

          Ms. Teresa Lee        (Administrative Executive, to July 2011) 

       

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

Since the publication of the inaugural edition in March 2004, FP Links serves as the College Newsletter of HKCFP with the 

following missions: 
 

1.    To disseminate the College News to College members. 

2.    To report news of various Boards and Committees. 

3.    To provide a channel for dissemination of information or articles related to Family Medicine, either clinical or non-clinical. 

4.    To act as a bridge for communication between members and the College 

 

The founding Editorial Board started off with three members under Dr. John Chung‟s leadership. Throughout these years, there 

is significant expansion of our membership list. Our contents have also been enriched, from photo gallery of college events, to 

inspiring articles of life wisdom. Our committee now comprises 20 members coming from different sectors: public and private; 

universities and different clusters of Hospital Authority. We work as a cohesive team sharing the same passion for our discipline 

of Family Medicine. 

 

 

HONG KONG PRIMARY CARE CONFERENCE ORGANIZING COMMITTEE 

Chairlady                     : Dr. Cheung Man Kuen  

Advisors                           : Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee  

 Dr. Gene W.W. Tsoi  

Committee Members  : Dr. Cecilia S.M. Cheung (Scientific Coordinator) 

 Dr. Mary B.L. Kwong    (Business Manager & Treasurer) 

 Dr. Judy G.Y. Cheng (Publication Coordinator) 

 Dr. Li Heung Wing (Venue Coordinator) 

 Dr. Zabo S.P. Chung  

 Dr. Colman S.C. Fung  

 Dr. Vienna C.W. Leung  

 Dr. Dana S.M. Lo  

 Dr. Terry W.M. Tsang  

 Dr. Yuen Shiu Man  

 Ms. Cherry K.K. Chan (Nurse Planner) 

Staff                           : Ms. Crystal W.Y. Yung (Executive Officer) 

 Mr. Patrick M.H. Wu  (Administrative Executive) 

   

CHAIRLADY’S MESSAGE 

The theme of the Hong Kong Primary Care Conference 2011 (HKPCC 2011), co-organized with the school of nursing, the 

University of Hong Kong, was chosen as "A New Frontier". 4 Plenary Speeches with topics related to our theme were arranged. 2 

useful workshops and 5 seminars were organized. 2 free paper presentation sessions were held. An award - 'Best Research 

Paper' was presented to chosen submitted full paper. A dinner symposium (co-organized with Primary Care Office, Department of 

Health) and a lunch symposium were also conducted. The HKPCC 2011 served as a platform for all participants including doctors 

and nurses to share their knowledge, skills, experience and values. 
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HOUSE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Chairlady     : Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Members     :  Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee  (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan (Ex-officio) 

            Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong (Ex-officio) 

             Dr. Lau Ho Lim  (Ex-officio) 

College Secretariat 

Executive Manager    : Ms. Erica M. So 

Executive Officer    : Ms. Crystal W. Y. Yung 

Administrative Executive  : Ms. Carmen S. Y. Cheng 

Ms. Angel M. H. Cheung 

Ms. Winniea W. Y. Lee 

Ms. Teresa D. F. Liu 

Mr. Patrick M. H. Wu 

Ms. Teresa S. K. Lee  (to July 2011) 

Ms. Snowdy S. Y. Lee (to Sept 2011) 

Administrative Assistant  : Ms. Dickie M. H. Lam 

Ms. Windy W. L. Lau 

Ms. Yvonne H. F. Lam     (from November 2010) 

Ms. Priscilla S. M. Li (from July 2011) 

General Assistant    : Ms. Ella S. H. Yeung   (from October 2010) 

Office Assistant      : Mr. Peter P. K. Wong 

Personnel: 

Staff Movement 

New staff was recruited - Ms. Ella Yeung and Ms. Yvonne Lam as General Assistant. Ms Windy Lau, Ms. Yvonne Lam and Ms. 

Priscilla Li were promoted as Administrative Assistant because of their satisfactory performance. 

 

Ms. Charlotte Sham, Ms. Teresa Lee and Ms. Snowdy Lee were resigned from our College due to personal reasons. Ms. Teresa 

Lee had contributed to the College for over 33 years. We appreciated Teresa for her dedication and contribution to the College in 

the past years, and we wish her all the best in the future. 

 

Thanks to all the hard work of the secretarial team. 

 

Grading & Salary Structure 

The grading and salary structure have been discussed and reviewed. Increment has been granted to staff that performed 

satisfactorily. 

 

 

INTERNAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Chairman  :    Dr. Billy C. F. CHIU 

Members            : Dr. Ruby S. Y. LEE (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Angus M. W. CHAN (Ex-officio) 

Dr. Mary B. L. KWONG (Ex-officio) 

Dr. LAU Ho Lim  (Ex-officio) 

Dr. LAW Tung Chi (Ex-officio) 

 

Staff  :     Ms. Erica M. SO (Executive Manager) 

Ms. Crystal W. Y. YUNG (Executive Officer) (Conferment Ceremony) 

Ms. Windy W. L. LAU (Administrative Assistant) (Annual Dinner) 

Ms. Snowdy S. Y. LEE (Administrative Executive, to Sept 2011)  
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Annual Dinner 

The 33
rd
 Annual Dinner was held on December 4, 2010 at Yat Tung Heen (Great Eagle Centre), 2/F, Great Eagle Centre, 23 

Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. 

 

The Annual Dinner was well received by 176 attendees including our Council members, College Board members, their spouses 

and family members and guests from different pharmaceutical companies. It provided a golden opportunity for them to meet and 

communicate.  

 

Successful candidates of Conjoint Examination, Exit Examination and the graduates of Diploma in Family Medicine were invited 

to share their experiences with our members and guests. They were:  

 

Candidates of Conjoint Examination 

1. Dr. HUNG Lok Lam, Susanna 2. Dr. LO Tsz Yan 

3. Dr. WONG Pak Kin  

Candidates of Exit Examination 

1. Dr. FUNG Kin Chor  2. Dr. YUEN Fu Lam 

Candidates of Diploma in Family Medicine 

1. Dr. TANG Pui Yee 2. Dr. TUET On Sang 

 

The Internal Affairs Committee wishes to thank Dr. Ruby Lee, our Council members, pharmaceutical companies, Hotels and Print 

House for supporting and sponsoring the prizes in Lucky Draw; Dr. Fok Peter Anthony and Dr. Shum Pui Shan, the hosts of 

Annual Dinner and our secretariat who gave their time and effort in making the Annual Dinner a success. 

 

Conferment Ceremony 

The 24
th
 Fellowship Conferment of HKCFP / RACGP, the 8

th
 Diploma in Family Medicine and the 22

nd
 Sun Yat Sen Oration were 

successfully held on 29
th
 May 2011 at Run Run Shaw Hall, Hong Kong Academic of Medicine Jockey Club Building, 99 Wong 

Chuk Hang Road, Aberdeen. 

This year, the ceremony was well received by about 350 attendee, including invited guests, and dignitaries from the Department 

of Health, the Hospital Authority, universities as well as local and overseas academic colleges.  There were 30 members 

conferred for Fellowship of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians, 26 members conferred for Fellowship of the Royal 

Australian College of General Practitioners, 44 members conferred for Award of the Certificate of Exit Examination and 9 

members conferred for Award of Diploma in Family Medicine.  They were: 

 

Fellows of the Hong Kong College of Family Physicians: 

Dr. CHAN Man Hung Dr. LEUNG Man Yin 

Dr. CHAN Shuk Yan, Angela Dr. LI Hei Lim 

Dr. CHENG Chun Sing, David Dr. LO Shiu Bong 

Dr. CHEUK Christina Dr. LO Tsz Yan 

Dr. CHEUNG Kin Wan, Kelvin Dr. PON Wai Pi 

Dr. CHIM Shiu Cheung, Michael Dr. SIU Lok Man 

Dr. CHOI Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr. TANG Man Leung, Thomas 

Dr. CHU Lai Shan Dr. TSUI Ka Chun 

Dr. CHUNG Sze Pok Dr. WONG Hing Lam 

Dr. HO Chak Sing, Michael Dr. WONG Ka Ki, David 

Dr. HSU Kwok Fai, David Dr. WONG Lai Cheung, Virginia 

Dr. HUI Ka Fung Dr. WONG Pak Kin 

Dr. HUNG Lok Lam, Susanna Dr. YAU Kin Chung 

Dr. KWOK Chi Ming Dr. YUEN Yeuk Ying 

Dr. LEE Chi Leung Dr. YUEN Yuk Kwun, Natalie 

 

Fellows of the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners 

Dr. CHAN Man Hung Dr. LEUNG Man Yin 

Dr. CHAN Shuk Yan, Angela Dr. LI Hei Lim 

Dr. CHENG Chun Sing, David Dr. LO Tsz Yan 

Dr. CHEUK Christina Dr. PON Wai Pi 

Dr. CHEUNG Kin Wan, Kelvin Dr. SIU Lok Man 

Dr. CHIM Shiu Cheung, Michael Dr. TANG Man Leung, Thomas 

Dr. CHOI Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr. TSUI Ka Chun 

Dr. CHU Lai Shan Dr. WONG Hing Lam 
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Dr. HSU Kwok Fai, David Dr. WONG Ka Ki, David 

Dr. HUI Ka Fung Dr. WONG Pak Kin 

Dr. HUNG Lok Lam, Susanna Dr. YAU Kin Chung 

Dr. KWOK Chi Ming Dr. YUEN Yeuk Ying 

Dr. LEE Chi Leung Dr. YUEN Yuk Kwun, Natalie 

 

Award of the Certificate of Exit Examination 

Dr. AI Hiu Fay, Dawn Teresa Dr. LO Ling 

Dr. CHAN Chi Wing Dr. MOK Yuen Fan, Jennifer 

Dr. CHAN Ka Man Dr. SIN Ka Ling 

Dr. CHAN Lit Ping Dr. SIT Wing Shan 

Dr. CHENG Sai Yip, Ronald Dr. SO Mei Ho 

Dr. CHEUNG Hard King Dr. SZE Lung Yam 

Dr. CHEUNG Ngai Fung Dr. TAM Ho Shan 

Dr. CHOW Chong Kwan Dr. TAM Kit Ping 

Dr. FOK Peter Anthony Dr. TING Fei Yin 

Dr. HUNG Chi Bun Dr. TSANG Hing Fai 

Dr. IP Chung Ho, Ronald Dr. TSE Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. IP Yan Yan Dr. TSO Ka Hin, Kathleen 

Dr. KWAN Wing Yan, Wendy Dr. WONG Kwok Hoi 

Dr. KWAN Yu Dr. WONG Kwok, Kitty 

Dr. KWOK Pik Ki Dr. WONG Man Kin 

Dr. LAI Sheung Siu Dr. WONG Sze Nga 

Dr. LEE Kar Fai Dr. WONG Tak Lung 

Dr. LEE Man Kei Dr. WONG Yu Fai 

Dr. LEUNG To Fung Dr. WONG Yuk Shan 

Dr. LEUNG Yu Hang Dr. YIP Tze Hung 

Dr. LI Yuen Yuen Dr. YU Ching Ching 

Dr. LIM Mo Kin Dr. YUEN Fu Lam 

 

Award of Diploma in Family Medicine 

Dr. CHENG Ying Wai Dr. LAU Wing Sze 

Dr. CHEUNG Chung Yin, Johnny Dr. LO Kwok Man 

Dr. CHEUNG San Dr. SO Chun Kit 

Dr. CHOI Kwok Kam Dr. YU Chung Kwan, Cellina 

Dr. LAU Wai Hung   

 

The ceremony ended with our special honour of having Professor FOK Tai Fai, Dean, Faculty of Medicine, The Chinese 

University of Hong Kong, to deliver the Oration entitled “Dr. Sun Yat-sen, outcome-based education, and outcome-based medical 

training”. 

 

The Internal Affairs Committee wishes to thank Dr. Ruby Lee, Dr. Angus Chan, Dr. Mary Kwong, Dr. Lau Ho Lim and Dr. Law 

Tung Chi for their previous advices during the preparation; Dr. Kenny Kung, the Public Orator, and Dr. Ngai Ho Yin Allen, the 

Ceremony Coordinator and all Marshalling Officers and Ushers who contribute their time and effort in making the Ceremony a 

success. Of course, we will not forget the timeless effort and hard work of our College Secretariat. 

 

 

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE 

Chairlady                 : Dr. Cheung Man Kuen 

Deputy Chairman      : Dr. Luk Wan 

Committee Members : Dr. Keith K.K. Tse 

                   Dr. Ng Chun Bor 

                          Dr. Lo Sze Mon 

                   Dr. Ruby S.Y. Lee  (Ex-officio) 

                   Dr. Angus M.W. Chan    (Ex-officio) 

                   Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong (Ex-officio) 
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                   Dr. Lau Ho Lim     (Ex-officio) 

                   Dr. Law Tung Chi        (Ex-officio) 

Staff                         :    Ms. Angel M.H. Cheung  (Administrative Executive) 

The current membership of HKCFP is as follows: - (as in June 2011) 

Fellows*   600  (HKAM Fellows: 306) 

Full Members  226 

Associate Members  611 

Others **    41 

Total:               1478 

* Fellows include Fellows, Foundation Fellows, Hon. Fellows and Non-HKSAR Fellows. 

**       Others include Non-HKSAR Members, Student Members and Affiliate Members. 

 

More of our members become fellows and the body of Membership remains steady in the past year. With our College‟s team of 

dedicated members who are practicing quality medicine, the term “Family Medicine” is increasingly recognized by the general 

public as synonymous to quality primary care. 

 

We recommend and implement policies, procedures and initiatives to promote a healthy growth of membership at HKCFP. We 

expect to see a constant growth in membership with increase in proportion of fellowship. 

 

The Hong Kong College of Family Physicians 

Members Status Report 

Fellows Full Members Associate Members Others

2010-2011 600 226 611 41

2009-2010 574 231 664 51

2008-2009 499 240 807 48

2007-2008 441 255 902 63

2006-2007 414 252 918 63

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

 

 

PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

Chairman  : Dr. Chan Kin Ling 

Committee Members : Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong  

Ex-officio  : Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

    Dr. Lau Ho Lim 
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    Dr. Law Tung Chi 

Staff  : Ms. Carmen S. Y. Cheng (Administrative Executive) 

The Professional Performance Committee is established to provide advice on professional performance to medical doctors who 

require peer review, supervision or audit. 

 

Objectives: 

1. To provide professional advice from the view point of family medicine. 

2. To assist medical practitioners to meet the standard of professional performance. 

3. To enhance the standard of the professional performance by peer supervision  

4. To co-ordinate and appoint professional performance supervisors to provide professional advice upon application from 

individual medical doctor. 

5. To co-ordinate clinic audit on professional performance upon request from individual medical doctor. 

6. To maintain the accountability of professional advice by regular review of the current regulations and standards. 

 

Individual doctor can approach our College to seek assistance to supervise and to audit his / her practice standard under the 

instruction of the Medical Council of Hong Kong. In 2010, there is no doctor seeking our advice on professional performance. 

 

I would like to thank our College Secretariat for their constant support. 

 

 

PUBLIC EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

Chairman           :   Dr. Edmund W. W. Lam 

Board Members :   Dr. Amy K. L. Chan  (Vice-Chairlady) 

Dr. Mark S. H. Chan  (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Simon C. L. Au 

  Dr. Lambert L. F. Chan 

      Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan 

Dr. Cheung Kwok Leung 

Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo 

Dr. Hong Tin Chuk 

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

Dr. Lam See Yui 

Prof. Donald K. T. Li 

Dr. Raymond C. H. Lo 

Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

Dr. Simon So 

 

(Ex-officio)                     :       Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

 Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

 Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

 Dr. Law Tung Chi 

 

Media Column Subgroup : Dr. Simon C. L. Au   Dr. Hui See Ying 

Dr. Alvin C. Y. Chan   Dr. Ip Chun Kong 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu   Dr. Andrew K. K. Ip 

Dr. Chan Ka Lung   Dr. Alan Y. L. Kwok 

Dr. Amy K. L. Chan   Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

Dr. Chan Kwok Wai   Dr. Stanley K. H. Lam 

Dr. Lambert L. F. Chan       Dr. Lam See Yui 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan   Dr. Lam Tung 

Dr. Mark S. H. Chan   Dr. Edmund W. W. Lam 

Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan   Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Helen Cheung   Dr. Lee Kai Yuen 

Dr. Cheung Kit Ying   Dr. Leung Chi Fai 

Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung   Dr. Leung Man Yin 

Dr. Cheung Kwok Wai   Dr. Lina C. L. Li 

Dr. Cecilia S. M. Cheung   Prof. Donald K. T. Li 

Dr. Cheung Wing Wo   Dr. Wendy W.C. Lo (Wong) 

Dr. Ching Kam Wing   Dr. Yvonne Lo 

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai   Dr. Ngan Po Lun 
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Dr. Oliver O. C. Chiu   Dr. Shek Hon Wing 

Dr. Chu Lai Shan           Dr. Siu Pui Yee 

Dr. Jennifer W. J. Chu   Dr. Alan Syed 

Dr. Daniel W. S. Chu   Dr. Tsang Yat Fai 

Dr. Zabo S. P. Chung         Dr. Tsoi Lai To 

Dr. Cecilia Y. M. Fan   Dr. Gene W. W. Tsoi 

Dr. Stephen K. S. Foo   Dr. Wan Kwong Yu 

Dr. Fung Siu Cheung   Dr. Martin C. S. Wong 

Dr. Ho Ka Ming   Dr. Wong Tai Wai 

Dr. Ho Kam Wai   Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

Dr. Hong Tin Chak           Dr. Natalis C. L. Yuen 

 

Staff                           : Ms. Priscilla Li  (Administrative Assistant, from September 2011 onwards) 

 Ms. Carmen S. Y. Cheng  (Administrative Executive, to August 2011) 

 Mr. Patrick M. H. Wu (Administrative Executive, to August 2010) 

  

 

This year, the Public Education Committee continued to provide public education through different channels.  The Media Column 

Subgroup published articles regularly in Hong Kong Economic Journal (信報) and We Care Magazine (關心). There were 

published articles amounted to 281 for Hong Kong Economic Journal, 58 for Ming Pao and 28 for We Care Magazine till July 

2011.   

 

Public education events were listed at the end of this report.  I would like to thank all those who had offered their assistance in 

the past year and our excellent administrative support from the secretaries, Miss Carmen Cheng and Mr. Patrick Wu. 

 

The following is the list of weekly publications in Economic Journal (信報): 

 

Date    Topic       Author 

10 September 2010   從食療到科研      Dr. Oliver O. C. Chiu 

17 September 2010   學會冷靜面對憤怒      Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

25 September 2010   銀杏防衰老      Dr. Oliver O. C. Chiu 

01 October 2010   譜出同理心      Dr. Cheung Wing Wo 

08 October 2010   如何紓緩創傷壓力      Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

22 October 2010   孩子, 你準備好了嗎?     Dr. Amy K. L. Chan 

29 October 2010   醫生查家宅      Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

05 November 2010   加膽固醇藥到水裏好嗎?     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

12 November 2010   利字當頭                           Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

18 November 2010   吃藥也要看贏面      Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

25 November 2010   訂「反向時間表」戒網癮     Dr. Amy K. L. Chan 

02 December 2010   身病或需心藥醫        Dr. Alan Y. L. Kwok 

09 December 2010   看醫生也有竅門      Dr. Zabo S. P. Chung 

16 December 2010   走出哀傷的幽谷      Dr. Chu Lai Shan 

23 December 2010   紓緩性治療      Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan 

30 December 2010   放下執著            Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

06 January 2011   人老心不老      Dr. Amy K. L. Chan 

13 January 2011   杏林筆記  醫道重溫      Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

20 January 2011   苦瓜能改善糖尿病嗎?     Dr. Oliver O. C. Chiu 

27 January 2011   人口老化醫改刻不容緩      Dr. Cheung Wing Wo 

10 February 2011   不要小看這個名字      Dr. Shek Hon Wing 

17 February 2011   膝痛難當  治療有法      Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

24 February 2011   但求無過的自保醫療     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

03 March 2011   活在當下       Dr. Loretta W. Y. Chan 

10 March 2011   與時並進的父母      Dr. Chu Lai Shan 

17 March 2011   母乳不假外求  何必搶購奶粉     Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

31 March 2011   從阿拉木圖到屋邨醫生     Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

07 April 2011   「升呢」面對慢性疾病     Dr. Sydney K. L. Cheung 

14 April 2011   醫療金字塔      Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

21 April 2011             醫患配對更能防患未然     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

28 April 2011   破除忌諱：為善終做準備     Dr. Ho Ka Ming 

05 May 2011   工傷權益要有保障      Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

12 May 2011   全人效應  助受傷工友     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

19 May 2011   你找到合適的家庭醫生了嗎？     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

26 May 2011   從聞碘色變到預防癌症     Dr. Shek Hon Wing 

02 June 2011   注重溝通的「問題醫生」     Dr. Zabo S. P. Chung 

09 June 2011   以老帶新  承傳家庭醫學     Dr. Ho Ka Ming 

16 June 2011   生老病死  醫療倫理      Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 
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23 June 2011   善用抗生素對付猩紅熱     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

30 June 2011   悼念基層醫療的最好朋友     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

07 July 2011   預防跌到 得遇「貴人」     Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

14 July 2011   地獄式減肥醫好糖尿？     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

21 July 2011   地獄式減肥治糖尿，啱我嗎？     Dr. Ngan Po Lun  

04 Aug 2011   糖尿三問：食什麼？幾時食？食幾多？    Dr. Ho Ka Ming   

11 Aug 2011   認識長者「巨人」挑戰     Dr. Chan Suen Ho, Mark  

18 Aug 2011   敏感病與類固醇      Dr. Ngan Po Lun   

25 Aug 2011   中年發福是必然？      Dr. Ngan Po Lun  

 

The following is the list of publications in We Care (關心): 

 

Date    Topic       Author 

July 2010    想輕鬆  不要疏鬆      Dr. Lambert L. F. Chan 

September 2010   聞癌無須色變      Dr. Lambert L. F. Chan 

November 2010   「流行」的謬誤      Dr. Lambert L. F. Chan 

January 2011   點只痛到入心      Dr. Wong Tai Wai 

March 2011  對付呼吸道敏感的兩兄弟     Dr. Ngan Po Lun 

May 2011    身體安檢       Dr. Tsang Yat Fai 

 

 

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE 

Chairman  :      Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy 

Vice-Chairman  :      Dr. Hung Wai Yin, Winson 

Committee Members      : 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ex-officio                            : Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby   

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus  

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary   

Dr. Lau Ho Lim        

Dr. Law Tung Chi       

 

Staff     :       Ms. Yvonne H.F. Lam     (Administrative Assistant) 

              Ms. Snowdy S.Y. Lee     (Administrative Executive, to Sept 2011) 

               

The Quality Assurance and Accreditation Committee aims to promote doctors‟ participation in effective and efficient quality 

assurance programs and to demonstrate their accountability to the community by documenting their participation in our Quality 

Assurance (QA) program. Our QA Programme is open to all registered doctors in Hong Kong and is reciprocally recognized by The 

Royal Australian College of General Practitioners (RACGP). Accreditation will be recorded throughout the years in the form of 

"credit points" according to our regulations for award of Certificate of Quality Assurance.  

 

All Hong Kong Academy of Medicine (HKAM) fellows in Family Medicine are required, in addition, to observe criteria laid down by 

HKAM. The HKAM has revised their Principles and Guidelines on Continuing Medical Education (CME) and Continuous 

Professional Development (CPD). Starting from 1 January 2008, no more than 75 points of the minimum CME/CPD requirement of 

90 points can be awarded for passive participation in a 3-year cycle.  

 

For doctors taking the Medical Council Continuing Medical Education Programme for practising doctors who are not taking CME 

programme for specialists (MCHK CME) Programme, documentation of their participation in the MCHK CME Programme will be 

managed by HKAM, the administrator appointed by Medical Council of Hong Kong (MCHK) from 1 September 2008 while we will 

continue the documentation for their HKCFP QA Programme.  

 

Starting from Year 2009, our CME/CPD credit point reports have gone paperless and members can check their updated reports in 

the College Website. 

Dr. Bien Tse Fang, Barry Dr. Ngai Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr. Chan Kin Ling Dr. Siu Che Hung, Paul 

Dr. Chan Kit Ling, Amy Dr. Siu Ping Cheong 

Dr. Chiu Chap Fai, Johnnie Dr. To Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr. Chuh An Tung, Antonio Dr. Wong Ka Wah 

Dr. Ip Kit Kuen, Andrew Dr. Wong Tseng Kwong 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary Dr. Yiu Yuk Kwan 

Dr. Lam Wing Wo, Edmund Dr. Ng Ventura Lorna 
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The list of the fellows, members who have obtained the CME certificate 2010 and the QA Certificate of the 2008 - 2010 triennium 

were listed below. I would like to take this opportunity to thank all the committee members for their contribution and unfailing support. 
 

List of Active Fellow who obtained CME certificate in 2010 
 

Dr. AI Hiu Fay Dawn, Teresa 

Dr. AU Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr. AU Chui Kwan 

Dr. AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing 

Dr. BARNETT Rosemary Anne 

Dr. BIEN Tse Fang, Barry 

Dr. CHAN Che Keung, Anthony 

Dr. CHAN Chi Wai, Edmond 

Dr. CHAN Chi Wing 

Dr. CHAN Chin Ping 

Dr. CHAN Chor Kwong 

Dr. CHAN Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr. CHAN Fu Leung 

Dr. CHAN Henry 

Dr. CHAN Hon Ming 

Dr. CHAN Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr. CHAN Hung Wai, Patrick 

Dr. CHAN Ka Chun, Julie 

Dr. CHAN Ka Lok, Carroll 

Dr. CHAN Ka Lung 

Dr. CHAN Ka Man 

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 

Dr. CHAN Ka Yiu, Richard 

Dr. CHAN Kin Ling 

Dr. CHAN Kin Wai 

Dr. CHAN King Chi 

Dr. CHAN Kit Chi, Kitty 

Dr. CHAN Kit Ling, Amy 

Dr. CHAN Kwok Wai, Keith 

Dr. CHAN Laam 

Dr. CHAN Lam Fung 

Dr. CHAN Lit Ping 

Dr. CHAN Lok Man, Norman 

Dr. CHAN Man Li 

Dr. CHAN Pang Fai 

Dr. CHAN Pui Wai 

Dr. CHAN Seung Chung, Leo 

Dr. CHAN Shan Ching 

Dr. CHAN Shui Ling 

Dr. CHAN Siu Cheung 

Dr. CHAN Suen Ho, Mark 

Dr. CHAN Sze Luen, David 

Dr. CHAN Tat, Eddie 

Dr. CHAN Ting Bong 

Dr. CHAN Wan Ki 

Dr. CHAN Wan Wai 

Dr. CHAN Wing Yan 

Dr. CHAN Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr. CHAN Yan Kwong, Eric 

Dr. CHAN Yeuk Kei 

Dr. CHAN Yin Chiu 

Dr. CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr. CHAN Ying Ho 

Dr. CHAN Yu 

Dr. CHAN Yu Sang, Dickson 

Dr. CHAN Yuen Yan 

Dr. CHAN Yuk Ying, Angela 

Dr. CHANG Ka Fai 

Dr. CHANG Wai Wah, Wilson 

Dr. CHAU Kai Man 

Dr. CHE Ka Seng 

Dr. CHEN Xiao Rui, Catherine 

Dr. CHENG BALDWIN Susan Eleanor 

Dr. CHENG Cheuk Hong 

Dr. CHENG Chor Ho 

Dr. CHENG Ghar Yee, Judy 

Dr. CHENG Michael 

Dr. CHENG Po Kong, Constant 

Dr. CHENG Sai Yip, Ronald 

Dr. CHENG Sian Chun 

Dr. CHEUK Man Cheong, Eric 

Dr. CHEUK Wing Ngar 

Dr. CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr. CHEUNG Helen 

Dr. CHEUNG Kit Ying, Andy 

Dr. CHEUNG Kwok Leung, Sydney 

Dr. CHEUNG Man Ha 

Dr. CHEUNG Man Kuen 

Dr. CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr. CHEUNG Ngai Fung 

Dr. CHEUNG Pui Shan, Cindy 

Dr. CHEUNG Sze Man 

Dr. CHEUNG Wai Keung, Paul 

Dr. CHEUNG Wang Chung 

Dr. CHEUNG Wing Wo 

Dr. CHEUNG Yau Ling, Florence 

Dr. CHEUNG Ying Man 

Dr. CHEUNG Yu 

Dr. CHING Kam Wing 

Dr. CHING Kin Yu 

Dr. CHING Tak Kwan, Joyce 

Dr. CHIU Chap Fai, Johnnie 

Dr. CHIU Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr. CHIU On Chi, Oliver 

Dr. CHOI Ho Yin 

Dr. CHOI Kin, Gabriel 

Dr. CHOI Wing Fai 

Dr. CHOI Yue Kwan 

Dr. CHOW Chong Kwan 

Dr. CHOW Heung Wing, Stephen 

Dr. CHOW Kai Lim 

Dr. CHOW Kam Fai 

Dr. CHOW Kar Kin, Peter 

Dr. CHOW Sheung Yan, Alex 

Dr. CHOW Wai Hung 

Dr. CHOW Wai Man, Rudolph 

Dr. CHOY Lai Chun 

Dr. CHOY Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr. CHU Lai Ah, Julia 

Dr. CHU Tsun Kit 

Dr. CHU Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr. CHU Wai Ting, Becky 

Dr. CHUA Kam Ling 

Dr. CHUANG Yuk Shan 

Dr. CHUH An Tung, Antonio 

Dr. CHUI Siu Hang, Billy 

Dr. CHUNG Chak Cheong 

Dr. CHUNG Chi Yan, Benny 



63 

Dr. CHUNG Kin Wing 

Dr. CHUNG Tze Nang, John 

Dr. CHUNG Yat Ki, Benedict 

Dr. DOO Ching Hoi 

Dr. FAN Wai Man, Anita 

Dr. FAN Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr. FOK Peter, Anthony 

Dr. FOK Siu Wing, Dominic 

Dr. FOO Kam So, Stephen 

Dr. FU Sau Nga 

Dr. FUNG Hoi Tik 

Dr. FUNG Kai Chiu 

Dr. FUNG Kin Chor 

Dr. FUNG Kwok Hay 

Dr. FUNG Pak Kei 

Dr. FUNG Sau Man 

Dr. FUNG Siu Cheung, Colman 

Dr. FUNG Yuk Kwan 

Dr. HA Kwok Leung 

Dr. HAN Tun Bing, William 

Dr. HO Chi Hin 

Dr. HO Ka Ming 

Dr. HO Kai Chi, Kenneth 

Dr. HO Kam Wai 

Dr. HO Kin Sang 

Dr. HO King Yip, Anthony 

Dr. HO Mo Sze, Ellen 

Dr. HONG Tin Chak 

Dr. HUI Ah Ni 

Dr. HUI Chik Kwan 

Dr. HUI King Wai 

Dr. HUI Kwun Sue, Wilson 

Dr. HUI Lai Chi 

Dr. HUI Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr. HUI See Ying 

Dr. HUI Siu Yan, Edith 

Dr. HUI Yin Fun, Linda 

Dr. HUNG Chi Bun 

Dr. HUNG Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr. IP Chung Ho, Ronald 

Dr. IP Kit Kuen, Andrew 

Dr. IP Pang Fei 

Dr. IP Sai Yin 

Dr. IP Yan Yan 

Dr. KAM Hing Wah, Anthony 

Dr. KAM Sze Man, Silvia 

Dr. KAN Chi Leung, David 

Dr. KAO Park Ming 

Dr. KO Siu Hin 

Dr. KO Wai Kit 

Dr. KOK Kwok Yee 

Dr. KONG Che Wan 

Dr. KONG Chun Yuk 

Dr. KONG Yim Fai, Albert 

Dr. KUNG Kenny 

Dr. KWAN Ka Mei, Betty 

Dr. KWAN Man Woo 

Dr. KWAN Shu To 

Dr. KWAN Wing Yan, Wendy 

Dr. KWOK Chi Chiu 

Dr. KWOK Chi Sum 

Dr. KWOK Chung Hon, Michael 

Dr. KWOK Hon Chu, Kenneth 

Dr. KWOK Kon Hung, Arnold 

Dr. KWOK Lai Key, Priscilla 

Dr. KWOK Lai Ping, Steffi 

Dr. KWOK Memie 

Dr. KWOK Pik Ki 

Dr. KWOK Vincci 

Dr. KWOK Yuk Lun, Alan 

Dr. KWONG Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr. KWONG Hon Kei 

Dr. KWONG Ka Wah 

Dr. KWONG Siu Kei 

Dr. KWONG Wing Hun 

Dr. LAI Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr. LAI Ming Wah, Alexander 

Dr. LAI Sheung Siu 

Dr. LAI Siu Wai 

Dr. LAI Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr. LAI Wai Wah 

Dr. LAI Wing Yiu 

Dr. LAM Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr. LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr. LAM Hon Man 

Dr. LAM King Hei, Stanley 

Dr. LAM Kun Yuen 

Dr. LAM Man Chun 

Dr. LAM Man, Jansen 

Dr. LAM Paul 

Dr. LAM Pui 

Dr. LAM Soe Tjhoen 

Dr. LAM Sun Ching 

Dr. LAM Tak Hung 

Dr. LAM Tak Man, Catherine 

Dr. LAM Tsan, Augustine 

Dr. LAM Wai Chi, Rocky 

Dr. LAM Wai Hang, Eddie 

Dr. LAM Wing Kwun 

Dr. LAM Wing Wo, Edmund 

Dr. LAU Chi Hang 

Dr. LAU Chun Hung, Gavin 

Dr. LAU Chun Yin, Victor 

Dr. LAU Ho Lim 

Dr. LAU Kam Tong 

Dr. LAU Kin Sang, Kenneth 

Dr. LAU Kin Sang, Kinson 

Dr. LAU Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr. LAU Po Shan 

Dr. LAU Pui Lam, Patrick 

Dr. LAU Tai Wai 

Dr. LAU Wai Keung, Timothy 

Dr. LAU Wai Ling 

Dr. LAU Yue Young, Geoffrey 

Dr. LAU Yuk Tong, Freddie 

Dr. LAW Tung Chi 

Prof. LEE Albert 

Dr. LEE Cheuk Pong 

Dr. LEE Chiang Tee, Frederick 

Dr. LEE Chik Pui 

Dr. LEE Hoi Ying 

Dr. LEE Ka Ling, Glenn 

Dr. LEE Ka Pik 

Dr. LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr. LEE Kar Fai 

Dr. LEE Kar Yun, Peter 

Dr. LEE Kit Yan 

Dr. LEE Ling Hin 
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Dr. LEE Man Kei 

Dr. LEE Pui Wai 

Dr. LEE Sik Kwan, Jenny 

Dr. LEE Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr. LEE Wan Tsi, Francis 

Dr. LEE Wang Yat 

Dr. LEE Wing Mei, Winnie 

Dr. LEE Wing Yi, Monica 

Dr. LEE Yee Lam 

Dr. LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

Dr. LEUNG Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr. LEUNG Gin Pang 

Dr. LEUNG Kin Kay 

Dr. LEUNG Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr. LEUNG Lai Kuen 

Dr. LEUNG May Heng, Sandy 

Dr. LEUNG Pui Sha, Crystal 

Dr. LEUNG Sze Wan, Selina 

Dr. LEUNG To Fung 

Dr. LEUNG Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr. LEUNG Wai Man 

Dr. LEUNG Wan Chiu 

Dr. LEUNG Wing Kit 

Dr. LI Heung Wing 

Dr. LI Kwing Chun 

Prof. LI Kwok Tung, Donald 

Dr. LI Wing Shun, Vincent 

Dr. LI Yim Chu 

Dr. LIM Mo Kin 

Dr. LIN Chor Keung, Calvin 

Dr. LO Ling 

Dr. LO Sze Mon, Dana 

Dr. LO Tsun Fan 

Dr. LO Wai Hon 

Dr. LO Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr. LUI Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr. LUK Kam Hung 

Dr. LUK Man Hei, Matthew 

Dr. LUK Wan 

Dr. MAK Kam Lun 

Dr. MO Kam Chuen 

Dr. NG Cham Chi 

Dr. NG Ching Luen 

Dr. NG Chiu Lap 

Dr. NG Chun Bor 

Dr. NG Kwok Keung 

Dr. NG Mei Po, Jackie 

Dr. NG Mei Yee 

Dr. NG Ming Shing 

Dr. NG Pak Him 

Dr. NG Pui Yam 

Dr. NG Sheung Yee 

Dr. NG Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr. NG Tze King, Peter 

Dr. NG VENTURA Lorna 

Dr. NG Wai 

Dr. NG Yeung Shing 

Dr. NGAI Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr. NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr. NGAN Hung Kin, Henry 

Dr. NGAN Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr. NGAN Po Lun 

Dr. NGAN Sze Yuen 

Dr. PAK Sik On 

Dr. PANG Seung Chiu 

Dr. PANG Siu Leung 

Dr. PONG Pong 

Dr. POON Kwong Chiu 

Dr. POON Ming Wai 

Dr. POON Shun Bong, Anthony 

Dr. POON Ting Kong 

Dr. PUN Lai Yin 

Dr. SHE Siu Yam, Dominic 

Dr. SHEK Chun Chiu 

Dr. SHEK Hon Wing 

Dr. SHIH Hei Ting, Eden 

Dr. SHUEN Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr. SIN Ka Ling 

Dr. SIN Ming Chuen 

Dr. SIT Wing Shan 

Dr. SIU Che Hung, Paul 

Dr. SIU Leung Chow 

Dr. SIU Pui Yi, Natalie 

Dr. SO Ching Yee, Gloria 

Dr. SO Fong Tat 

Dr. SO Mei Ho, Doris 

Dr. SO Ping, Roger 

Dr. SO Siu Hei 

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong 

Dr. SUNG Tai Wai, David 

Dr. SY Wing Man 

Dr. SZE Chung Fai 

Dr. SZE Hon Ho 

Dr. SZE Lung Yam 

Dr. SZE Pui Ka 

Dr. TAM Chi Wing, Peter 

Dr. TAM Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr. TAM Ho Shan 

Dr. TAM John Hugh 

Dr. TAM Ka Wae, Tammy 

Dr. TAM Kit Ping 

Dr. TAM Man Wai 

Dr. TAM Sze Man 

Dr. TAM Wah Kit 

Dr. TANG Cheong Yu 

Dr. TANG Hiu Wai 

Dr. TANG Kin Sze 

Dr. TING Fei Yin 

Dr. TING Man Nin, Arthur 

Dr. TO Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr. TONG Po Hei, Timmy 

Dr. TONG Siu Man 

Dr. TOO Lai Chong 

Dr. TSANG Chi Fai 

Dr. TSANG Hing Fai 

Dr. TSANG Hing Kwong, Stephen 

Dr. TSANG Hon Keung, Andrew 

Dr. TSE Hing Choi 

Dr. TSE Keith K K 

Dr. TSE Kwok Lam 

Dr. TSE Peggy 

Dr. TSE Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. TSIM Koon Lan, Kathy 

Dr. TSOI Lai To, Sammy 

Dr. TSOI Wai Wang, Gene 

Dr. TSUI Hing Sing, Robert 

Dr. TSUI Hoi Yee 

Dr. TSUI Pun Nang 
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Dr. TSUI Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr. WAI Heung Wah, Hayles 

Dr. WAN King Tung, Peter 

Dr. WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr. WAN Wing Fai 

Dr. WANG Hua Li 

Dr. WAT Kwong Sang 

Dr. WAT Pui Kwan, Judy 

Dr. WONG Bing Hang 

Dr. WONG Chak Tong 

Dr. WONG Chi Lung 

Prof. WONG Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr. WONG Chit Wing 

Dr. WONG Chun Wah, Henry 

Dr. WONG Chung Tao 

Dr. WONG Fai Ying 

Dr. WONG Hei Man, Emily 

Dr. WONG Ho Cheong 

Dr. WONG Ka Wah 

Dr. WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr. WONG Kwok Hoi 

Dr. WONG Kwok, Kitty 

Dr. WONG Man Kin 

Dr. WONG Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr. WONG Mong Sze, Marcus 

Dr. WONG Nai Ming 

Dr. WONG Oi Yee, Amy 

Dr. WONG Pak Hoi 

Dr. WONG Pui Ling 

Dr. WONG Siu Shan, Simon 

Dr. WONG Suk Ching 

Dr. WONG Sze Man, Loretta 

Dr. WONG Sze Nga 

Dr. WONG Tak Lung 

Dr. WONG Tseng Kwong 

Dr. WONG Tsz Kau, Carl 

Dr. WONG Wai Bun, Wilbert 

Dr. WONG Wai Man, Rita 

Dr. WONG Wai Ying, Jeannie 

Dr. WONG Wing Sze 

Dr. WONG Yat Wah, Alfred 

Dr. WONG Yeuk Ka, Harry 

Dr. WONG Ying Fun 

Dr. WONG Yu Fai 

Dr. WONG Yuk Shan 

Dr. WU Ching Ping 

Dr. WU Kwok Keung 

Dr. WU Shui Chi, Nerrissa 

Dr. WU Sze Man 

Dr. WU Tsz Yuen, Tom 

Dr. WU Wing Keung, Ricky 

Dr. WUN Yuk Tsan 

Dr. YAM Tak Kwong 

Dr. YAU Chi Hong 

Dr. YAU Lai Mo 

Dr. YAU Wing Ho 

Dr. YEUNG Chi Keung 

Dr. YEUNG Fun Na 

Dr. YEUNG Sau Ying 

Dr. YEUNG To Ling, Solomon 

Dr. YEUNG Wai Kei, Patrick 

Dr. YEUNG Wai Man 

Dr. YIM Chi Ling 

Dr. YIP Chun Kong, Sam 

Dr. YIP Ka Wai 

Dr. YIP Tze Hung 

Dr. YIP Wah Yung 

Dr. YIU Ming Pong 

Dr. YIU Yiu Kee, Kelvin 

Dr. YIU Yuk Kwan 

Dr. YOUNG Sui Wah 

Dr. YOUNG Suk Ching 

Dr. YOUNG Yiu Fai 

Dr. YU Ching Ching 

Dr. YU Kwan, Alexander 

Dr. YU Pui Hang 

Dr. YU Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr. YUEN Chung Lau, Natalis 

Dr. YUEN Fu Lam 

 

List of Active Member who obtained CME Certificate in 2010 

Dr. AU Wah Cheong, Eric 

Dr. AUNG Than (Liang Hung Kuang) 

Dr. AUNG Win 

Dr. BONG Chi Wai, Allan 

Dr. BORWEIN Sarah 

Dr. CHAIN Chi Woo, David 

Dr. CHAM Cho Lan, Lisa 

Dr. CHAN Angela Shuk Yan 

Dr. CHAN Cheuk Yan, Stephen 

Dr. CHAN Chi Ho 

Dr. CHAN Chi Hung, Alan 

Dr. CHAN Ching, Teresa 

Dr. CHAN Cho Yin 

Dr. CHAN Chuen Ying 

Dr. CHAN Chun Hon, Edmond 

Dr. CHAN Chun Tin 

Dr. CHAN Chung Mok, Samuel 

Dr. CHAN Fu Wai 

Dr. CHAN Hau Ting 

Dr. CHAN Hoi Chung, Samuel 

Dr. CHAN Hoi Ying, Linda 

Dr. CHAN Ka Shing, Ricky 

Dr. CHAN King Hong 

Dr. CHAN Kit Choi 

Dr. CHAN Kong Yuk, Peter 

Dr. CHAN Kwin Wah 

Dr. CHAN Lap Kuen 

Dr. CHAN Lay Si 

Dr. CHAN Lok Wai, Thomas 

Dr. CHAN Man Hung, Jeff 

Dr. CHAN Maria Magnifica M 

Dr. CHAN Mei Tak 

Dr. CHAN Min Chung, Peter 

Dr. CHAN Ming Wai, Angus 

Dr. CHAN Nai Yin, Nelson 

Dr. CHAN Nang Fong 

Dr. CHAN Ngai Ping 

Dr. CHAN Ping Chuen 

Dr. CHAN Ping Kwong 

Dr. CHAN Sai Man 

Dr. CHAN Sau Lin 

Dr. CHAN Shek Hoi 

Dr. CHAN Shiu Leung 

Dr. CHAN Shiu Yee, Cynthia 
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Dr. CHAN So Ching, Sarah 

Dr. CHAN So Heung 

Dr. CHAN Suet Ching 

Dr. CHAN Suk Yin 

Dr. CHAN Sze Hin 

Dr. CHAN Tin Wing, Tom 

Dr. CHAN Wai Kie, Ricky 

Dr. CHAN Wai Shun 

Dr. CHAN Wan Yee, Winnie 

Dr. CHAN Wing Lok, Brian 

Dr. CHAN Yam Wo 

Dr. CHAN Yuen Kwan, Mario 

Dr. CHAN Yuen Sang 

Dr. CHANG Elizabeth 

Dr. CHANG King Chuen 

Dr. CHANG Wells 

Dr. CHAO Vai Kiong, David 

Dr. CHAU Chee On 

Dr. CHAU Hoi Ki, Samantha 

Dr. CHEN Kim Loong 

Dr. CHEN Stephen 

Dr. CHEN Tien Chiang 

Dr. CHEN Xiao Qun 

Dr. CHENG Biu 

Dr. CHENG Chun Sing, David 

Dr. CHENG Chung Liang 

Dr. CHENG Kam Wing 

Dr. CHENG Kin Keung, William 

Dr. CHENG Kit Wing 

Dr. CHENG Kwan Chui 

Dr. CHENG Pui Sum, Cupid 

Dr. CHENG Siu Han 

Dr. CHENG Tin Sik 

Dr. CHENG Ying Wai 

Dr. CHEUK Christina 

Dr. CHEUK Kwok Leung 

Dr. CHEUK Tat Sang 

Dr. CHEUK Yau Lin 

Dr. CHEUNG Chi Hong, David 

Dr. CHEUNG Chik Wan 

Dr. CHEUNG Ching Lo, Julie 

Dr. CHEUNG Chung Yin, Johnny 

Dr. CHEUNG Kin Wan, Kelvin 

Dr. CHEUNG Kwok Wai, Alvin 

Dr. CHEUNG Lo Ki, Charmaine 

Dr. CHEUNG Po Yi, Polly 

Dr. CHEUNG San 

Dr. CHEUNG Wai Ming, Fanny 

Dr. CHEUNG Wen Ling 

Dr. CHEUNG Yan Kit 

Dr. CHIANG Chay Kung 

Dr. CHIANG Lap Kin 

Dr. CHIM Shiu Cheung, Michael 

Dr. CHIN Weng Yee 

Dr. CHING Chi Sau 

Dr. CHING Ho Yan 

Dr. CHIU Kong Ngai, George 

Dr. CHIU Kun Ming 

Dr. CHIU Sung Kwan 

Dr. CHO Hing Sang, Kenneth 

Dr. CHO Yin Fan 

Dr. CHOI Chuen Ming, Clarence 

Dr. CHOI Kwok Kam 

Dr. CHOI Man Kei 

Dr. CHOI Siu Chuen, Raphael 

Dr. CHOI Wai Hung 

Dr. CHONG Nga Yee 

Dr. CHOU Chun Wing, Stephen 

Dr. CHOW Hon Kwun 

Dr. CHOW Kim Yue 

Dr. CHOW Tung Fai 

Dr. CHOW Wai Hung, Willie 

Dr. CHOY Yuk Lun, Frederick 

Dr. CHU Henson 

Dr. CHU Kee Leong 

Dr. CHU Lai Shan 

Dr. CHU Lun Piu, Ronald 

Dr. CHU Man Yee, Candy 

Dr. CHU Wan Wing, Vivian 

Dr. CHUA Tec Sang, Susannah 

Dr. CHUK Pui Chun 

Dr. CHUNG Kwai Shek 

Dr. CHUNG Ming Tim 

Dr. CHUNG Sze Pok 

Dr. CHUNG Wai Ho 

Dr. CHUNG Wing Yee 

Dr. FOK Chun Man 

Dr. FONG Francois Yeung 

Dr. FOO Bong Yin Kevin 

Dr. FOSTER Jonathan Charles 

Dr. FU Siu Fung 

Dr. FU Siu Saap, Michelle 

Dr. FUNG Ka Hang, Timothy 

Dr. FUNG Tat Biu, Albert 

Dr. FUNG To Wa 

Dr. HAU Sin Ying, Cindy 

Dr. HEATH Robert Barrie 

Dr. HO Chak Sing, Michael 

Dr. HO Chi Sun, Jason 

Dr. HO Chu Sek 

Dr. HO Chun 

Dr. HO Chung Yu 

Dr. HO Hon Ming 

Dr. HO Hsiao Chien 

Dr. HO Ka Kei, Edward 

Dr. HO Ka Ying 

Dr. HO Kee Tung 

Dr. HO Kin Chung 

Dr. HO Mei Lin 

Dr. HO Ock Ling 

Dr. HO Pui Gi 

Dr. HO Sai Hang 

Dr. HO Sai Hea 

Dr. HO Shu Wan 

Dr. HO Tsz Bun 

Dr. HO Wing Man 

Dr. HO Yiu Keung, Steven 

Dr. HSU Kwok Fai, David 

Dr. HUI Ka Fung 

Dr. HUI Kim Ping 

Dr. HUI Suk Yin, Mandy 

Dr. HUNG Cheung Fat, Haratio 

Dr. HUNG Lok Lam, Susanna 

Dr. HUNG Wai Shan, Sandra 

Dr. IP Sui Wah 

Dr. KAM Cheuk Wai 

Dr. KAN Kwong Tin 

Dr. KARK Man Fong 
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Dr. KENNELLY Sophia Kwan Mei 

Dr. KENT Samuel 

Dr. KEUNG Man Fung 

Dr. KI Chi Wing, Samuel 

Dr. KO Chi Fai, William 

Dr. KONG Wing Ming 

Dr. KOO Hok Tin, Hilton 

Dr. KU Chi Sing, Hilary 

Dr. KUM Chung Hang 

Dr. KWAN Chun Man 

Dr. KWAN Po Yuen 

Dr. KWAN Sze Sing 

Dr. KWAN Wing Kai, William 

Dr. KWOK Chi Ming 

Dr. KWOK Ka Cheong 

Dr. KWOK Lam Chow, Tony 

Dr. KWOK Lok Wai, William 

Dr. KWOK Tsz Tik 

Dr. KWONG Kam Tim, William 

Dr. KWONG Lok See 

Dr. KWONG Ngar Ming, Henry 

Dr. KWONG Sheung Li 

Dr. KWONG Siu Kee 

Dr. KWONG Wai Yan, Wayne 

Dr. LAI Chiu Fai 

Dr. LAI Pong Shing, Eric 

Dr. LAI Pui Yan 

Dr. LAI Sum Yin 

Dr. LAM Chi Yui 

Dr. LAM Chiu Ki, Alexander 

Dr. LAM Kei Chiu, Tony 

Prof. LAM Lo Kuen, Cindy 

Dr. LAM Man Man 

Dr. LAM Siu Ming 

Dr. LAM Tai Kwan 

Prof. LAM Tai Pong 

Dr. LAM Wai Kit 

Dr. LAM Wai Kwong 

Dr. LAM Wai Ming 

Dr. LAM Wai Sing 

Dr. LAM Yuen 

Dr. LAU Ka Kin 

Dr. LAU Ka Man, Angela 

Dr. LAU Kim Sing 

Dr. LAU Kin Wai 

Dr. LAU Kwan Chung, Jonathan 

Dr. LAU Wai Hung 

Dr. LAU Wai Yee, Aster 

Dr. LAU Wing Man 

Dr. LAU Wing Sze, Mandy 

Dr. LAU Ying Kit 

Dr. LAW Siu Hang 

Dr. LAW Wai Man 

Dr. LEE Big Kau, Judy 

Dr. LEE Chi Leung 

Dr. LEE Fook Kay 

Dr. LEE Ho Ming 

Dr. LEE Hung Fai 

Dr. LEE Kam Ha 

Dr. LEE Kam Pui 

Dr. LEE See Mei 

Dr. LEE Shek Kwong 

Dr. LEE Sing Chark, Jack 

Dr. LEE Wing Po 

Dr. LEE Yan Chi, Vivien 

Dr. LEUNG Chi Fai 

Dr. LEUNG Fung Ming, Angela 

Dr. LEUNG Hau Yee 

Dr. LEUNG Hoi Lik, Eric 

Dr. LEUNG Hor Yee 

Dr. LEUNG Hung Cho 

Dr. LEUNG Kin Nin, Kenneth 

Dr. LEUNG Kwai Chiu, Lawrence 

Dr. LEUNG Man Chung, Jack 

Dr. LEUNG Man Yin 

Dr. LEUNG Mei Tak 

Dr. LEUNG Nai Yip, Paul 

Dr. LEUNG Nim No, Deborah 

Dr. LEUNG Sai Wing, Michael 

Dr. LEUNG Shuk Yun 

Dr. LEUNG Sze King 

Dr. LEUNG Wai Kay 

Dr. LEUNG Wai Yin 

Dr. LEUNG Wing Hing, William 

Dr. LEUNG Wing Mun 

Dr. LEUNG Yin Ching 

Dr. LEUNG Yuen Kin, Kenneth 

Dr. LEVY Sally Joan 

Dr. LI Chee Lan 

Dr. LI Hei Lim 

Dr. LI Ming Yin 

Dr. LI Ping Chit 

Dr. LI Shun Hoi 

Dr. LIANG Jun 

Dr. LIE Siu Fen 

Dr. LIU Kwei Hing 

Dr. LIU Wai Ling 

Dr. LIU Yuk Ping, Louisa 

Dr. LO Cheuk Wai 

Dr. LO Hui Ying, Edmund 

Dr. LO Kwok Man 

Dr. LO Pik Har 

Dr. LO Ping Wo 

Dr. LO See See 

Dr. LO Shang Lai, Roderick 

Dr. LO Shiu Bong 

Dr. LO Tsz Yan 

Dr. LO Wing Sze 

Dr. LO Ying Keung 

Dr. LO(WONG) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr. LOY Tien En, Grace 

Dr. LUI Rupert Yau Han 

Dr. LUK Chi To 

Dr. LUK Wai Kwok 

Dr. LUK Wing Kun, Leona 

Dr. LUKE King Kai, Kenneth 

Dr. MA Chung Yee, Arisina 

Dr. MA King Wing 

Dr. MA Ping Kwan, Danny 

Dr. MAH Peng Yew, Arthur 

Dr. MAK Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr. MAK Wing Hang 

Dr. MAN Fung Yi 

Dr. MARA Helen Kit Man (Formerly Li) 

Dr. MCBRIDE Andrea Evelyn 

Dr. MING Shiu Kow 

Dr. MO Chun Hung, Eric 

Dr. MOK Kwan Yeung 
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Dr. MOY Man Cho 

Dr. MYA Khin 

Dr. NAING Win Tun Thomas Nelson 

Dr. NG Chi Alan 

Dr. NG Chi Yin, Charles 

Dr. NG Chin Wang, Peter 

Dr. NG Hung Pan 

Dr. NG Kit Leung 

Dr. NG Man Hon, George 

Dr. NG Shak Hong 

Dr. NG Shuk Wa, Anna 

Dr. NG Shuk Wa, Aries 

Dr. NG Tin Chue, Helmut 

Dr. NG Yue Chun, John 

Dr. NGAI Bernard 

Dr. NGAI Ming, Leon 

Dr. NGAN Yuen Fat 

Dr. O Sun Yin 

Dr. OH Aik Soon 

Dr. O'TREMBA Francis Martin 

Dr. PANG Ching Wai 

Dr. PANG Kwok Ching 

Dr. PON Wai Pi 

Dr. POON Ka Yin 

Dr. POON Man Kay 

Dr. POON Wai Cho 

Dr. POON Yung Yin 

Dr. RODRIGUES Albert Edward 

Dr. SAKHRANI Ponam 

Dr. SHAM Shiu Kow 

Dr. SHIK Cheng Fong 

Dr. SHIU Wing Ho 

Dr. SIN Ho Fai, Edmond 

Dr. SIT Pui Ki, Lolita 

Dr. SIU Chi Ming 

Dr. SIU Lok Man 

Dr. SIU Ping Cheong 

Dr. SIU Sheung Yan, Patty 

Dr. SIU Yuk Kiu 

Dr. SO Chi Kin 

Dr. SO Chun Kit 

Dr. SO Kwong Lung 

Dr. SO Yung Pak 

Dr. SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 

Dr. SUNG Man Ling 

Dr. SZE Hon Ming 

Dr. SZE Siu Lam, Jason 

Dr. TAI Chun Tai, Bernard 

Dr. TAM Kin Kwok 

Dr. TAM Wing Pik, Eliza 

Dr. TAM Wing Yi, Cherry 

Dr. TAM Yick Sin, Denise 

Dr. TAM Yiu Pun 

Dr. TAN Shu Kwan 

Dr. TANG Man Leung, Thomas 

Dr. TANG Po Lau 

Dr. TANG Pui Yee 

Dr. TANG Shao Fen, Joyce 

Dr. TANG Siu Man, Simon 

Dr. TAY Wee Kok, Jordan 

Dr. THIN Kyi 

Dr. TIN Lat ( Ng Kwok Hing ) 

Dr. TING Fu Lam 

Dr. TIU Chi Tiong 

Dr. TONG Leon George 

Dr. TONG Man Chiu 

Dr. TONG Wai Shuen, Catherine 

Dr. TONG Ying Kau 

Dr. TONG Yue Wai, Paul 

Dr. TRODD Timothy David Partick 

Dr. TSANG Chiu Yee, Luke 

Dr. TSANG Chun Au 

Dr. TSANG Ming Lam 

Dr. TSANG Sheung Yin, Stanley 

Dr. TSANG Wai Kong, William 

Dr. TSANG Woo Kay 

Dr. TSE Mei Kuen, Queenie 

Dr. TSE Sut Yee 

Dr. TSOI Wing Yin, Winnie 

Dr. TSUI Ka Chun 

Dr. TSUI Wing Hang 

Dr. TUET On Sang 

Dr. TUNG Po Yin 

Dr. WAI Heung On 

Dr. WAN Pui Chu, Christina 

Dr. WANG Kin Fong, Teresa 

Dr. WAT Chi Kai 

Dr. WONG Che Hing 

Dr. WONG Cheuk Fai, Francis 

Dr. WONG Cheuk Kwan 

Dr. WONG Chi Chiu, Albert 

Dr. WONG Chi Wai William 

Dr. WONG Ching Chuen 

Dr. WONG Chun Bong 

Dr. WONG Chun Fai 

Dr. WONG Chun Pong 

Dr. WONG Chung 

Dr. WONG Gee Kong 

Dr. WONG Hing Lam 

Dr. WONG Hiu Lap 

Dr. WONG Hor Yung 

Dr. WONG Ka Ki, David 

Dr. WONG Kai Wah 

Dr. WONG Kuo Jui 

Dr. WONG Kwai Sheung 

Dr. WONG Kyaw Lwin Simeon @ Huang Hsin Yang 

Dr. WONG Kyin Lin, Peter 

Dr. WONG Lai Cheung, Virginia 

Dr. WONG Lai Koon, Magdalene 

Dr. WONG Ling Ling 

Dr. WONG Loi Foon 

Dr. WONG Ming Shun 

Dr. WONG Pak Kin 

Dr. WONG Sau Yee 

Dr. WONG Shui Kuen 

Dr. WONG Sum Lok 

Dr. WONG To Chuen 

Dr. WONG Wai On 

Dr. WONG Yan Biu 

Prof. WONG Yeung Shan, Samuel 

Dr. WONG Ying Sau 

Dr. WOO Chung Ming 

Dr. WU Ming Wai Thomas 

Dr. WU Wai 

Dr. WU Xiao Qing 

Dr. XU Shao Wei 

Dr. XU Song Ci, Alice 

Dr. YANG Jung Mai 
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Dr. YAP Chean Lee 

Dr. YAP Pek Gan 

Dr. YAU Chi Fai 

Dr. YAU Ching Tsz 

Dr. YAU Chiu Ming 

Dr. YAU Kin Chung 

Dr. YAU Kwok Ho 

Dr. YAU Shui Wah, Carol 

Dr. YEUNG Hoi Pun 

Dr. YEUNG Kai Ming, Tony 

Dr. YEUNG Man Chow 

Dr. YEUNG Po Kwan, Irene 

Dr. YEUNG Sze Wai 

Dr. YIO Shing 

Dr. YIP Pui Chuen 

Dr. YIP Wan Ha, Ruby 

Dr. YIP Wing Yi 

Dr. YIP Yuk Pang, Kenneth 

Dr. YIU Kam Yi 

Dr. YIU Kwan 

Dr. YIU Yee Ki 

Dr. YOUNG Ying Nam, Dominic 

Dr. YU Chung Kwan, Cellina 

Dr. YU Kwun Man 

Dr. YU Man Sun 

Dr. YU Wai Cho, Michael 

Dr. YU Yee Cheung, John 

Dr. YU Yee Tak, Esther 

Dr. YUE Shu Hoi, Andrew 

Dr. YUE Wing Shun, Vincent 

Dr. YUEN Ching Yi 

Dr. YUEN Chung Cheong 

Dr. YUEN Ka Wai 

Dr. YUEN Natalie Yuk Kwun 

Dr. YUEN Yeuk Ying 

Dr. YUNG ( YEE ) Sui Yin, Ruth 

Dr. YUNG Yin Ying 

Dr. ZHU Gui Xia 

 

List of Active Fellow who obtained QA Certificate for the 2008 - 2010 triennium  

Dr. AU Chi Lap, Simon 

Dr. AU Chui Kwan 

Dr. AU-YEUNG Shiu Hing 

Dr. BIEN Tse Fang, Barry 

Dr. CHAN Chi Wai, Edmond 

Dr. CHAN Chi Wing 

Dr. CHAN Chin Ping 

Dr. CHAN Chung Yuk, Alvin 

Dr. CHAN Henry 

Dr. CHAN Hung Chiu, Peter 

Dr. CHAN Hung Wai, Patrick 

Dr. CHAN Ka Lok, Carroll 

Dr. CHAN Ka Man 

Dr. CHAN Kin Wai 

Dr. CHAN Kit Chi, Kitty 

Dr. CHAN Kit Ling, Amy 

Dr. CHAN Kwok Wai, Keith 

Dr. CHAN Laam 

Dr. CHAN Lit Ping 

Dr. CHAN Man Li 

Dr. CHAN Pang Fai 

Dr. CHAN Pui Wai 

Dr. CHAN Shan Ching 

Dr. CHAN Shui Ling 

Dr. CHAN Siu Cheung 

Dr. CHAN Suen Ho, Mark 

Dr. CHAN Sze Luen, David 

Dr. CHAN Tat, Eddie 

Dr. CHAN Ting Bong 

Dr. CHAN Wan Ki 

Dr. CHAN Wan Wai 

Dr. CHAN Wing Yan 

Dr. CHAN Yam Lai, Thomas 

Dr. CHAN Yeuk Kei 

Dr. CHAN Yin Chiu 

Dr. CHAN Yin Hang 

Dr. CHAN Ying Ho 

Dr. CHAN Yu 

Dr. CHAN Yu Sang, Dickson 

Dr. CHAN Yuen Yan 

Dr. CHAN Yuk Ying, Angela 

Dr. CHANG Ka Fai 

Dr. CHAU Kai Man 

Dr. CHE Ka Seng 

Dr. CHEN Xiao Rui, Catherine 

Dr. CHENG BALDWIN Susan Eleanor 

Dr. CHENG Cheuk Hong 

Dr. CHENG Ghar Yee, Judy 

Dr. CHENG Sai Yip, Ronald 

Dr. CHENG Sian Chun 

Dr. CHEUK Man Cheong, Eric 

Dr. CHEUK Wing Ngar 

Dr. CHEUNG Hard King 

Dr. CHEUNG Helen 

Dr. CHEUNG Kwok Leung, Sydney 

Dr. CHEUNG Man Ha 

Dr. CHEUNG Man Kuen 

Dr. CHEUNG Mei Yee 

Dr. CHEUNG Ngai Fung 

Dr. CHEUNG Pui Shan, Cindy 

Dr. CHEUNG Sze Man 

Dr. CHEUNG Wai Keung, Paul 

Dr. CHEUNG Wang Chung 

Dr. CHEUNG Wing Wo 

Dr. CHEUNG Yau Ling, Florence 

Dr. CHEUNG Ying Man 

Dr. CHEUNG Yu 

Dr. CHING Kam Wing 

Dr. CHIU Chi Fai, Billy 

Dr. CHOI Kin, Gabriel 

Dr. CHOI Yue Kwan 

Dr. CHOW Chong Kwan 

Dr. CHOW Kai Lim 

Dr. CHOW Kam Fai 

Dr. CHOW Kar Kin, Peter 

Dr. CHOW Wai Hung 

Dr. CHOW Wai Man, Rudolph 

Dr. CHOY Pui Sang, Ignatius 

Dr. CHU Tsun Kit 

Dr. CHU Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr. CHU Wai Ting, Becky 

Dr. CHUA Kam Ling 

Dr. CHUANG Yuk Shan 

Dr. CHUH An Tung, Antonio 

Dr. CHUI Siu Hang, Billy 

Dr. CHUNG Chak Cheong 
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Dr. CHUNG Kin Wing 

Dr. CHUNG Yat Ki, Benedict 

Dr. FAN Wai Man, Anita 

Dr. FAN Yuen Man, Cecilia 

Dr. FOK Siu Wing, Dominic 

Dr. FOO Kam So, Stephen 

Dr. FU Sau Nga 

Dr. FUNG Hoi Tik 

Dr. FUNG Kai Chiu 

Dr. FUNG Pak Kei 

Dr. FUNG Siu Cheung, Colman 

Dr. FUNG Yuk Kwan 

Dr. HA Kwok Leung 

Dr. HO Ka Ming 

Dr. HO Kam Wai 

Dr. HO Kin Sang 

Dr. HO King Yip, Anthony 

Dr. HONG Tin Chak 

Dr. HUI Ah Ni 

Dr. HUI King Wai 

Dr. HUI Lai Chi 

Dr. HUI Ming Tung, Eric 

Dr. HUNG Chi Bun 

Dr. HUNG Wai Yin, Winson 

Dr. IP Chung Ho, Ronald 

Dr. IP Kit Kuen, Andrew 

Dr. IP Pang Fei 

Dr. IP Sai Yin 

Dr. IP Yan Yan 

Dr. KAM Hing Wah, Anthony 

Dr. KAM Sze Man, Silvia 

Dr. KO Siu Hin 

Dr. KO Wai Kit 

Dr. KOK Kwok Yee 

Dr. KONG Che Wan 

Dr. KONG Yim Fai, Albert 

Dr. KUNG Kenny 

Dr. KWAN Man Woo 

Dr. KWAN Shu To 

Dr. KWAN Wing Yan, Wendy 

Dr. KWOK Chi Sum 

Dr. KWOK Chung Hon, Michael 

Dr. KWOK Hon Chu, Kenneth 

Dr. KWOK Lai Ping, Steffi 

Dr. KWOK Pik Ki 

Dr. KWOK Vincci 

Dr. KWOK Yuk Lun, Alan 

Dr. KWONG Bi Lok, Mary 

Dr. KWONG Hon Kei 

Dr. KWONG Siu Kei 

Dr. KWONG Wing Hun 

Dr. LAI Kit Ping, Loretta 

Dr. LAI Ming Wah, Alexander 

Dr. LAI Sheung Siu 

Dr. LAI Siu Wai 

Dr. LAI Suk Yi, Irene 

Dr. LAI Wai Wah 

Dr. LAI Wing Yiu 

Dr. LAM Chi Yuen, Johnny 

Dr. LAM Hiu Lam 

Dr. LAM Hon Man 

Dr. LAM King Hei, Stanley 

Dr. LAM Kun Yuen 

Dr. LAM Man Chun 

Dr. LAM Man, Jansen 

Dr. LAM Pui 

Dr. LAM Tsan, Augustine 

Dr. LAM Wai Chi, Rocky 

Dr. LAM Wai Hang, Eddie 

Dr. LAM Wing Kwun 

Dr. LAM Wing Wo, Edmund 

Dr. LAU Chi Hang 

Dr. LAU Chun Hung, Gavin 

Dr. LAU Chun Yin, Victor 

Dr. LAU Ho Lim 

Dr. LAU Kam Tong 

Dr. LAU Kin Sang, Kinson 

Dr. LAU Man Wai, Dominic 

Dr. LAU Po Shan 

Dr. LAU Wai Keung, Timothy 

Dr. LAU Yue Young, Geoffrey 

Dr. LAU Yuk Tong, Freddie 

Dr. LAW Tung Chi 

Prof. LEE Albert 

Dr. LEE Cheuk Pong 

Dr. LEE Chiang Tee, Frederick 

Dr. LEE Chik Pui 

Dr. LEE Hoi Ying 

Dr. LEE Ka Pik 

Dr. LEE Kai Yuen 

Dr. LEE Kar Fai 

Dr. LEE Kar Yun, Peter 

Dr. LEE Kit Yan 

Dr. LEE Man Kei 

Dr. LEE Pui Wai 

Dr. LEE Sik Kwan, Jenny 

Dr. LEE Siu Yin, Ruby 

Dr. LEE Wan Tsi, Francis 

Dr. LEE Wing Yi, Monica 

Dr. LEE Yee Lam 

Dr. LEUNG Cheuk Wing 

Dr. LEUNG Chun Yin, Daniel 

Dr. LEUNG Gin Pang 

Dr. LEUNG Kin Kay 

Dr. LEUNG Kwan Wa, Maria 

Dr. LEUNG Lai Kuen 

Dr. LEUNG Pui Sha, Crystal 

Dr. LEUNG Sze Wan, Selina 

Dr. LEUNG To Fung 

Dr. LEUNG Tsi Mei, Violet 

Dr. LEUNG Wai Man 

Dr. LEUNG Wan Chiu 

Dr. LEUNG Wing Kit 

Dr. LI Heung Wing 

Prof. LI Kwok Tung, Donald 

Dr. LIM Mo Kin 

Dr. LO Ling 

Dr. LO Sze Mon, Dana 

Dr. LO Wai Hon 

Dr. LO Yuen Chung, Yvonne 

Dr. LUI Luen Pun, Benny 

Dr. LUK Kam Hung 

Dr. LUK Man Hei, Matthew 

Dr. LUK Wan 

Dr. MAK Kam Lun 

Dr. MO Kam Chuen 

Dr. NG Cham Chi 

Dr. NG Ching Luen 
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Dr. NG Chiu Lap 

Dr. NG Kwok Keung 

Dr. NG Mei Po, Jackie 

Dr. NG Mei Yee 

Dr. NG Ming Shing 

Dr. NG Pak Him 

Dr. NG Pui Yam 

Dr. NG Sze Wing, Catherine 

Dr. NG Tze King, Peter 

Dr. NG VENTURA Lorna 

Dr. NG Wai 

Dr. NG Yeung Shing 

Dr. NGAI Ho Yin, Allen 

Dr. NGAI Ka Ho 

Dr. NGAN Hung Kin, Henry 

Dr. NGAN Ka Lai, Raymond 

Dr. NGAN Po Lun 

Dr. PONG Pong 

Dr. POON Ming Wai 

Dr. POON Ting Kong 

Dr. PUN Lai Yin 

Dr. SHEK Chun Chiu 

Dr. SHEK Hon Wing 

Dr. SHUEN Chuen Kwok, Mariana 

Dr. SIN Ka Ling 

Dr. SIN Ming Chuen 

Dr. SIT Wing Shan 

Dr. SIU Pui Yi, Natalie 

Dr. SO Ching Yee, Gloria 

Dr. SO Fong Tat 

Dr. SO Mei Ho, Doris 

Dr. SO Ping, Roger 

Dr. SO Siu Hei 

Dr. SUN Yiu Kwong 

Dr. SY Wing Man 

Dr. SZE Chung Fai 

Dr. SZE Hon Ho 

Dr. SZE Lung Yam 

Dr. SZE Pui Ka 

Dr. TAM Chung Yin, Janet 

Dr. TAM Ho Shan 

Dr. TAM John Hugh 

Dr. TAM Ka Wae, Tammy 

Dr. TAM Kit Ping 

Dr. TAM Sze Man 

Dr. TAM Wah Kit 

Dr. TANG Hiu Wai 

Dr. TANG Kin Sze 

Dr. TING Fei Yin 

Dr. TO Kit Yuk, Dorothy 

Dr. TONG Siu Man 

Dr. TOO Lai Chong 

Dr. TSANG Hing Fai 

Dr. TSANG Hing Kwong, Stephen 

Dr. TSE Hing Choi 

Dr. TSE Keith K K 

Dr. TSE Peggy 

Dr. TSE Tsui Yee, Emily 

Dr. TSIM Koon Lan, Kathy 

Dr. TSOI Lai To, Sammy 

Dr. TSOI Wai Wang, Gene 

Dr. TSUI Hoi Yee 

Dr. TSUI Pun Nang 

Dr. TSUI Wing Sze, Wendy 

Dr. WAN Kwong Yu 

Dr. WAN Wing Fai 

Dr. WANG Hua Li 

Dr. WAT Pui Kwan, Judy 

Dr. WONG Chak Tong 

Dr. WONG Chi Lung 

Prof. WONG Chi Sang, Martin 

Dr. WONG Chung Tao 

Dr. WONG Fai Ying 

Dr. WONG Hei Man, Emily 

Dr. WONG Ho Cheong 

Dr. WONG Ka Wah 

Dr. WONG Kwai Wing 

Dr. WONG Kwok Hoi 

Dr. WONG Kwok, Kitty 

Dr. WONG Man Kin 

Dr. WONG Man Ying, Michelle 

Dr. WONG Mong Sze, Marcus 

Dr. WONG Nai Ming 

Dr. WONG Pak Hoi 

Dr. WONG Suk Ching 

Dr. WONG Sze Man, Loretta 

Dr. WONG Sze Nga 

Dr. WONG Tak Lung 

Dr. WONG Tseng Kwong 

Dr. WONG Tsz Kau, Carl 

Dr. WONG Wai Ying, Jeannie 

Dr. WONG Wing Sze 

Dr. WONG Yat Wah, Alfred 

Dr. WONG Yeuk Ka, Harry 

Dr. WONG Yu Fai 

Dr. WU Ching Ping 

Dr. WU Kwok Keung 

Dr. WU Tsz Yuen Tom 

Dr. WU Wing Keung, Ricky 

Dr. WUN Yuk Tsan 

Dr. YAU Lai Mo 

Dr. YEUNG To Ling, Solomon 

Dr. YEUNG Wai Man 

Dr. YIM Chi Ling 

Dr. YIP Chun Kong, Sam 

Dr. YIP Tze Hung 

Dr. YIU Ming Pong 

Dr. YIU Yiu Kee, Kelvin 

Dr. YIU Yuk Kwan 

Dr. YOUNG Sui Wah 

Dr. YOUNG Suk Ching 

Dr. YOUNG Yiu Fai 

Dr. YU Ching Ching 

Dr. YU Pui Hang 

Dr. YU Sze Kai, Frances 

Dr. YUEN Chung Lau, Natalis 

Dr. YUEN Fu Lam 

 

 

List of Active Member who obtained QA Certificate for the 2008 - 2010 triennium 
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Dr. AU Wah Cheong, Eric Dr. LAM Wai Kit 

Dr. AUNG Than (Liang Hung Kuang) Dr. LAM Wai Ming 

Dr. CHAN Angela Shuk Yan Dr. LAM Yuen 

Dr. CHAN Ching, Teresa Dr. LAU Ka Man, Angela 

Dr. CHAN Chun Tin Dr. LAU Kin Wai 

Dr. CHAN Chung Mok, Samuel Dr. LAU Kwan Chung, Jonathan 

Dr. CHAN Hau Ting Dr. LEE Chi Leung 

Dr. CHAN Hoi Chung, Samuel Dr. LEE Fook Kay 

Dr. CHAN Hoi Ying, Linda Dr. LEE Ho Ming 

Dr. CHAN King Hong Dr. LEE Hung Fai 

Dr. CHAN Lok Wai, Thomas Dr. LEUNG Chi Fai 

Dr. CHAN Man Hung, Jeff Dr. LEUNG Man Yin 

Dr. CHAN Min Chung, Peter Dr. LEUNG Mei Tak 

Dr. CHAN Ming Wai, Angus Dr. LEUNG Nim No, Deborah 

Dr. CHAN Nang Fong Dr. LEUNG Sai Wing, Michael 

Dr. CHAN Shiu Yee, Cynthia Dr. LEUNG Yin Ching 

Dr. CHAN Suk Yin Dr. LEUNG Yuen Kin, Kenneth 

Dr. CHAN Tin Wing, Tom Dr. LI Chee Lan 

Dr. CHAN Wan Yee, Winnie Dr. LI Ming Yin 

Dr. CHAN Yuen Kwan, Mario Dr. LIANG Jun 

Dr. CHAU Hoi Ki, Samantha Dr. LO See See 

Dr. CHEN Kim Loong Dr. LO Tsz Yan 

Dr. CHENG Chun Sing, David Dr. LO Wing Sze 

Dr. CHENG Pui Sum, Cupid Dr. LO(WONG) Wan Ching, Wendy 

Dr. CHENG Ying Wai Dr. LUI Rupert Yau Han 

Dr. CHEUK Christina Dr. LUK Chi To 

Dr. CHEUK Tat Sang Dr. LUK Wai Kwok 

Dr. CHEUNG Chi Hong, David Dr. MA Ping Kwan, Danny 

Dr. CHEUNG Lo Ki, Charmaine Dr. MAK Chin Sing, Dennis 

Dr. CHEUNG Po Yi, Polly Dr. MAN Fung Yi 

Dr. CHEUNG Yan Kit Dr. MCBRIDE Andrea Evelyn 

Dr. CHIM Shiu Cheung, Michael Dr. MING Shiu Kow 

Dr. CHING Chi Sau Dr. MOK Kwan Yeung 

Dr. CHO Hing Sang, Kenneth Dr. NG Kit Leung 

Dr. CHOI Chuen Ming, Clarence Dr. NGAI Bernard 

Dr. CHOW Hon Kwun Dr. PON Wai Pi 

Dr. CHOW Kim Yue Dr. POON Man Kay 

Dr. CHU Henson Dr. SIN Ho Fai, Edmond 

Dr. CHU Lai Shan Dr. SIU Lok Man 

Dr. CHUA Tec Sang, Susannah Dr. SIU Ping Cheong 

Dr. CHUNG Sze Pok Dr. SO Chi Kin 

Dr. FOSTER Jonathan, Charles Dr. SO Yung Pak 

Dr. FU Siu Saap, Michelle Dr. SUEN Victoria Gee Kwang 

Dr. HAU Sin Ying, Cindy Dr. TAM Kin Kwok 

Dr. HO Chak Sing, Michael Dr. TAM Wing Yi, Cherry 

Dr. HO Chu Sek Dr. TANG Shao Fen, Joyce 

Dr. HO Chun Dr. TIN Lat ( Ng Kwok Hing ) 

Dr. HO Chung Yu Dr. TONG Man Chiu 

Dr. HO Hon Ming Dr. TONG Yue Wai, Paul 

Dr. HO Kee Tung Dr. TSANG Chun Au 

Dr. HO Pui Gi Dr. TSANG Ming Lam 

Dr. HUNG Wai Shan, Sandra Dr. TSANG Wai Kong, William 

Dr. IP Sui Wah Dr. TSANG Woo Kay 

Dr. KWAN Chun Man Dr. TSE Sut Yee 

Dr. KWAN Sze Sing Dr. TSUI Wing Hang 

Dr. KWOK Chi Ming Dr. TUET On Sang 

Dr. KWOK Tsz Tik Dr. TUNG Po Yin 

Dr. KWONG Kam Tim, William Dr. WAN Pui Chu, Christina 

Dr. KWONG Lok See Dr. WONG Chi Wai, William 

Dr. KWONG Sheung Li Dr. WONG Ching Chuen 

Dr. LAM Chi Yui Dr. WONG Chun Fai 

Dr. LAM Chiu Ki, Alexander Dr. WONG Hing Lam 

Prof. LAM Lo Kuen, Cindy Dr. WONG Hiu Lap 

Dr. LAM Tai Kwan Dr. WONG Ka Ki, David 

Prof. LAM Tai Pong Dr. WONG Lai Cheung, Virginia 
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Dr. WONG Pak Kin Dr. YIU Kwan 

Dr. WONG To Chuen Dr. YIU Yee Ki 

Dr. WONG Wai On Dr. YU Chung Kwan, Cellina 

Prof. WONG Yeung Shan, Samuel Dr. YU Yee Tak, Esther 

Dr. YAU Ching Tsz Dr. YUE Wing Shun, Vincent 

Dr. YAU Kin Chung Dr. YUEN Ching Yi 

Dr. YEUNG Hoi Pun Dr. YUEN Natalie Yuk Kwun 

Dr. YEUNG Sze Wai Dr. YUEN Yeuk Ying 

Dr. YIP Wing Yi Dr. YUNG Yin Ying 

Dr. YIP Yuk Pang, Kenneth Dr. ZHU Gui Xia 

 

 

 

RESEARCH COMMITTEE 

Chairman         :  Prof. Samuel Y. S. Wong 

Honorary Advisors    :  Prof. Cindy L. K. Lam 

Committee Members:  Dr. Amy K. L. Chan  Dr. Fu Sau Nga  

   Dr. Judy G. Y. Cheng Dr. Kenny Kung 

   Dr. Cheung Man Kuen Dr. Liang Jun 

   Dr. Chin Weng Yee  Dr. Yvonne Y. C. Lo 

   Dr. Billy C. F. Chiu  Prof. Martin C. S. Wong 

   Dr. Antonio A. T. Chuh Dr. Wun Yuk Tsan 

 

Ex-officio        :  Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

   Dr. Angus M. W. Chan 

   Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

   Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

   Dr. Law Tung Chi 

       

Staff         : Ms. Winniea W. Y. Lee (Administrative Executive, from April 2011 onwards) 

   Ms. Teresa S. K. Lee (Administrative Executive, to July 2011) 

 

Five submissions were received for the Annual Research Award 2010 and the selection panel consisted of two internal 

assessors and one external assessor. The winning project was “Usefulness in using portable overnight pulse oximeter for 

screening obstructive sleep apnea in adult patients in primary health care setting” by Dr. Chiang Lap Kin. 

 

The 2011 HKCFP Research Fellowship has received four applications this year, all of good quality. The selection panel which 

consisted of one internal assessor and two external assessors has selected the winner to be Dr. Chen Xiao Rui, Catherine. Her 

research project is “Secondary prevention of stroke: knowledge and perception of stroke risk factors among primary care HK 

Chinese patients with previous history of stroke or TIA”. 

 

Finally, I wish to thank all who have provided assistance to the Research Committee and look forward to closer collaborations in 

the future. 

 

 

WEB AND COMPUTER COMMITTEE 

Chairman  :       Dr. Mark S. H. Chan 

Vice-Chairman :         Dr. Simon So  

Members :         Dr. Alvin C. Y. Chan 

Dr. Lau Tai Wai 

Dr. Peter K. Y. Lee     

Dr. Alfred K. Y. Tang 

Dr. Peter K. T. Wan 

Dr. David K. K. Wong 

 

Ex-officio  :          Dr. Ruby S. Y. Lee 

Dr. Angus M. W. Chan  

Dr. Mary B. L. Kwong 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Dr. Law Tung Chi    
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Staff  :         Ms. Erica M. So   (Executive Manager) 

Ms. Crystal W. Y. Yung   (Executive Officer) 

 

We see the year of 2010-2011 with smooth service to the College and our members in general. The web page was well 

received and suggestions mainly on downloading improvements were attended to.  The Web and Computer committee has 

been very concerned about the costing. We are lucky to have several committee members with exceptional interest in IT 

matters, which I felt indebt to (perhaps on behalf of the College.) In addition to the existing functions, we have added a section 

on obituary, in memories of our members and associates. A history section will store important events of the College. 

 

Looking forward, a new membership list is being planned which would be open for public access. We hope members and the 

public will find this useful. 

 

I would like to welcome any new members from the College with interest in web and computer to join us. We would also like to 

thank Ms. Erica So, Ms. Crystal Yung and the rest of the Secretarial team, for delivering the high quality assistance as usual. 

 

We look forward to another year of service.  
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Honorary Treasurer 

 

Honorary Treasurer    :   Dr. Lau Ho Lim 

Staff                            :    Ms. Angel Cheung  (Administrative Executive) 

The financial situation of our College remains stable for the financial year 2010-2011, with a current reserve 

valued in excess of HK$15.7 million, thanks to the conservative investment strategy of the Finance Committee.  

Equity shares, bought when they were first issued, account for approximately 7.1% of our portfolio (as at 31 Mar 

2011), and the great majority of our funds are in the form of cash savings in the Bank of East Asia, HSBC and 

Wing Hang Bank. 

Our College is operated under four companies, as detailed in the Auditor‟s reports. 

In this financial year, our main income sources were from, in descending order, the Membership Committee, 

Board of Conjoint Examination, Board of Vocational Training and Standards, and Specialty Board. Membership 

subscriptions generated an income of HK$1.21 million (a 2.4% reduction compared with 2010). From the Board 

of Conjoint Examination we obtained a surplus of HK$970k (a 30.2% increase). However, we expect a reduction 

in this source of income because of fewer candidates in the coming years as the number of basic trainees has 

dropped. The Board of Vocational Training and Standards recorded a surplus of HK$668k (an 81.4% increase). 

The Specialty Board welcomed a surplus of HK$223k (a 2.9% decrease), and this figure is expected to increase 

when more trainees are to complete their Higher Training and sit the Exit Examination.  

On the side of expenditure, our single most significant spending is still in staff salaries and allowances, which 

amounted to HK$3.01 million (a 4.4% reduction). The Board of Education saw a deficit of HK$536k (a 425% 

increase). The total cumulative expenses were carefully controlled and had reduced by 7.5%. 

The consolidated net deficit before tax computation for the financial year was HK$373,981 which saw a 62.9% 

reduction compared to the previous financial year.  
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL  

The Council has pleasure in submitting its report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2011. 
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the College are provision of continuing medical education in relation to family medicine. 
 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the College for the year are set out on page 4 of the financial statements. 
 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 5 to the financial statements. 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

The council members during the year were: 

Dr. Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene  

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter  

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary (Vice-president) 

Dr. Law Tung Chi (Hon. Secretary) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Hon. Treasurer) 

Dr. Chan Kin Ling  

Dr. Chu Wai Sing, Daniel 

Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby (President) 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus (Vice-President) 

Dr. Chan Suen Ho, Mark 

Dr. Cheung Man Kuen  

Dr. Liang Jun  

Dr. Tsui Wing Sze, Wendy  

Dr. Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel  

Dr. Au Chi Lap  

Dr. Chiu Chi Fai, Billy  

Dr. Lee Chun Kit, Tony  

Dr. Yuen Shiu Man  

Dr. Lam Wing Wo  

Dr. Chao Vai Kiong, David                      (Appointed on 4 December 2010) 

Dr. Hui Yin Fun, Linda (Appointed on 4 December 2010) 

Dr. Ip Kit Kuen (Resigned on 4 December 2010) 
  

In accordance with Article 34 of the College's Articles of Association, the President, Vice-President, Hon. Secretary and Hon. 

Treasurer and not exceeding one-third of the other members, shall retire from office and being eligible offer themselves for re-

election. 
 

INTERESTS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS 

No contracts of significance to which the College was a party and in which a council member had a material interest, whether 
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the College a party to any arrangements to enable the council members of the College to 
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of the College or any other body corporate. 
 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the College were entered into or existed during the 
year. 
 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs C. F. Cheung who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment. 
 
On behalf of the board 
 

 
Chairman 
HONG KONG, 26 October 2011 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

 
I have audited the financial statements Hong Kong College of Family Physicians set out on pages 4 to 11 which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011 and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

Council’s responsibility for the financial statements 

 
The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong 
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong 
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s responsibility 

 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit and to report my opinion solely to 
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.  I do not 
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.  
 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity‟s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity‟s 
internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 

 
In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company‟s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of 
its results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have 
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 
 
 

 
C. F. Cheung 

Certified Public Accountant 

Hong Kong,  
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

   2010 
 
 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Membership subscription fees   1,211,350 1,241,200 

Entrance fees from members  42,500 68,100 

Bank interest income  127 66 

Other income   25,050  20,800 

 

 2(c) 1,279,027 1,330,166 

  ------------ ------------ 

 

Less: Expenses 

Audit fee  7,000 7,000 

Bank charges   950 841 

Building management fee  108,000 108,000 

Business registration fee  450 2,450 

Depreciation  92,869 97,130 

Legal and professional fee  60,900 56,005 

Management fee  1,200,000 1,200,000 

Membership fee  -  3,748 

Sundry expenses   7,506  7,788 

 

  1,477,675 1,482,962 
  ------------ ------------ 
 
Deficit before taxation   (198,648) (152,796) 
 
Taxation 3  5,363  6,054 
 
Net deficit for the year  (204,011) (158,850) 
  ====== ====== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011 

 

   2010 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 5 169,925 262,794 

 

Current assets 

Accounts receivable  204,100 336,100 

Cash at bank   2,484,298 1,730,415  

Tax recoverable   -   50,783  

 

  2,688,398 2,117,298  

  ------------ ------------ 

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  27,000 27,000  

Deposit received  36,500 36,500  

Temporary receipts  8,500 6,100  

Amount due to related companies 6 1,163,456 488,977  

 
  1,235,456 558,577  
  ------------ ---------- 
 
Net current assets   1,452,942 1,558,721  
 
  1,622,867 1,821,515  

Non-current liabilities  

Deferred tax 7  569,446  564,083 

 
  1,053,421 1,257,432  
  ======= ======= 
FUNDS                                                                                                                                           
 
Premises fund   785,274 785,274  
 
General fund  268,147 472,158  
 

_________              _________ 
  
  1,053,421 1,257,432  
  ======= ======= 
 
 
 

                            
_____________________ ____________________ 
Chairman                                           Hon. Treasurer 



83 

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

 
  2010 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 
Premises Fund 
 
At 1 April and 31 March  785,274 785,274 
 ---------- ---------- 
 
General Fund 
 
At 1 April 472,158 631,008  
 
Net deficit for the year (204,011) (158,850)  
 
At 31 March  268,147 472,158  
 ---------- ---------- 
 
Total equity 
 
At 1 April  1,257,432 1,416,282 
 ======= ======= 
 
At 31 March  1,053,421 1,257,432 
 ======= ======= 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

  2010 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year  (198,648) (152,796) 

Adjustments for: 

Bank interest received                                                                    (127)                          (66) 

Depreciation   92,869  97,130  

 

Operating results before working capital changes  (105,906) (55,732) 

Decrease in accounts receivable   132,000 63,100  

Increase in accruals  -  10,000  

Increase/(Decrease) in temporary receipts    2,400 (348,120) 

 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations  28,494 (330,752) 

Bank interest received  127 66  

Tax (paid)/refunded  50,783  (50,783) 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES  79,404 (381,469) 

 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment   -  (3,158)  

    

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance from related companies  674,479 846,070 

 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  753,883 461,443  
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL   1,730,415 1,268,972 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 2,484,298 1,730,415  
 ======= ======= 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 

1 LEGAL STATUS 

The College is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.  The liability of each of its members, in 
the event of its being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceased to be a member for payment 
of the debts and liabilities of the College contracted before he ceases to be a member, and costs, charges and 
expenses of winding up, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is limited to an 
amount not exceeding HK$10. 

 
  

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its 
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, 
such as repairs and maintenance costs, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is 
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the 
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an 
additional cost of the asset. 

 
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the income statement is the difference between 
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. 

 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method at the following rates to write off the costs of the assets over 
their estimated useful lives. 

 
 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% p.a. 
 
(b) Related company 

A related company is a company in which one or more of the directors of the company have a beneficial interest or is 
in a position to exercise significant influence over the company. 

 
(c) Revenue recognition 
 Entrance fees from members are recognised in the financial year of receipt. 
 
 Annual subscription fee is recognised on a time proportion basis. 
 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the 
effective rate of interest applicable. 
 

 (d) Foreign currencies 

Transaction in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets 

and liabilities in foreign currencies at the year end are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  

All exchange differences are dealt with in the income statement. 
 
(e)  Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in 
the income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, 
and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable and deductible. 

 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, 
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such assets and liabilities are 
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition 
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit 
nor the accounting profit. 

 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the 
asset realised.  Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to item charged or 
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 
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3 TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements in view of the excess of allowable 
loss brought forward over the estimated assessable profits for the year.  (2010:Nil) 

   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 The taxation charge is made up as follows: 
 
 Deferred tax 
 Current year 5,363 6,054 
  ==== ==== 

 
The taxation on the company‟s deficit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the 
taxation rate in Hong Kong for the company as follows: 

 
 Deficit before taxation (198,648) (152,796) 
  ====== ====== 
 
 Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2010:16.5%) (32,777) (25,211)  
 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 20,686 22,080  
 Tax effect of non-chargeable income (5,363) (6,054)  
 Additions to unrecognized tax losses 22,817 15,239  
 Taxation charge 5,363 6,054  
  ==== ==== 
 

4 COUNCIL MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the Council members received any remuneration for their services rendered to the College during the year.  
(2010:Nil) 

 

 

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
   Furniture 
  College fixtures & 
  premises equipment Total 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 
 Cost 
 At 1.4.2010 and 31.3.2011 500,000 3,798,691 4,298,691 
  ---------- ------------ ------------ 
 
 Accumulated depreciation 
 At 1.4.2010 500,000 3,535,897 4,035,897 
 Charge for the year  -   92,869  92,869 
 At 31.3.2011 500,000 3,628,766 4,128,766 
  ---------- ------------ ------------ 
 
 Net book value 
 At 31.3.2011 -  169,925 169,925 
  ===== ======  ====== 
 At 31.3.2010 -  262,794 262,794 
  ===== ======  ====== 
 

The College premises is held in Hong Kong under a medium term lease from the Federation of Medical Societies of 
Hong Kong. 

 
 

6 AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 

 The advance is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 
 
 

7 DEFERRED TAX  

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal taxation 
rate of 16.5%  (2010:16.5%). 

 
 The movement on the deferred tax liabilities account is as follows: 
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   2010 
  
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 At 1 April 564,083 558,029 
 
 Charge to income statement during the year  5,363  6,054  
 
 At 31 March  569,446 564,083  
  ====== ====== 
 

At the balance sheet date, the company has unused tax losses of HK$326,925 (2010:HK$188,640) available for 
offset against future profits.  No deferred tax asset has been recognized due to the unpredictability of future profit 
streams.  The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 

 
 

8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm‟s 
length basis, are summarised as follows: 

  
   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 Management fee paid 1,200,000 1,200,000 
  ======= ======= 
 
 

9 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the Council on 26 October 2011. 
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File No. 24/05368560 
 

THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2010/2011 

 

  HK$ 
  
Loss per accounts 198,648 
 
Less: Depreciation  92,869 
  
  105,779 
 
Add: Depreciation allowance 8,719 
 Commercial building allowance  23,787 
 
Adjusted loss 138,285 
  ====== 
 
Statement of loss 
  HK$ 
 
Balance b/f 188,640 
 
Add: Loss for the year  138,285 
 
Balance c/f 326,925 
  ====== 
 
Depreciation allowance 
 
    Total 
 10% pool 20% pool 30% pool allowance 
 HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 
W.D.V. b/f 209 40,367 2,082 
 
A.A.  21  8,073  625 8,719 
    ==== 
W.D.V. c/f 188 32,294 1,457 
 === ===== ====  
     
 
 
 
  File No. 24/05368560 
 Sch. 1 
 
Commercial building allowance 
 
   HK$ 
 
Deemed cost of construction  594,675 
  ====== 
    
Residue value b/f 337,349 
 
A.A. (4%)  23,787 
 
Residue value c/f 313,562 
  ====== 
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THE HONG KONG COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 
26 October 2011 
 
C. F. Cheung, CPA 
19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 
468 Hennessy Road, 
Causeway Bay, 
Hong Kong. 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other Council members and 
officials of the College, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the College‟s financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. 
 
1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the College and of the results and cash flows of the College for the year.  In 
preparing these financial statements, we have: 

 a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 
 b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 
 c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  
 d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 
 e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with sections 161 and 

161B of the Companies Ordinance. 
 
2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the 

preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the 
financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 
3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 

financial position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 
Companies Ordinance.  We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 
4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All 
other relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have 
been made available to you. 

 
5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 
6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with 

the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  
 
7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 
 
8. We confirm that none of the Council members received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to 

S161 of the Company Ordinance during the year. 

 
 
For and on behalf  
of the Council 
 
 
 
 

                        
______________________                  ______________________ 
Chairman                                               Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2011. 
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The principal activity of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of family medicine. 
 
 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the company for the year are set out on page 4 of the financial statements. 
 
 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 
 
 

DIRECTORS 

The directors during the year were: 
 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Law Tung Chi (Hon. Secretary) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Hon. Treasurer) 

Dr. Lee Siu Yin (Elected on 4 December 2010) (Chairman) 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus (Elected on 4 December 2010) (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene (Resign on 4 December 2010) 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter (Resign on 4 December 2010)  

 
In accordance with Articles 38 and 39 of the company's Articles of Association, Dr. Lee Siu Yin shall retire from the Board and, 
being eligible, offer herself for re-election. 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

No contracts of significance to which the company was a party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly 

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 
 

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the company to acquire 

benefits by means of the acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of the company or any other body corporate. 
 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the company were entered into or existed during 
the year. 
 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs C. F. Cheung who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment. 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 

 
 
Chairman 
HONG KONG, 26 October 2011 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

 

I have audited the financial statements HKCFP Education Limited (Limited by guarantee) set out on pages 4 to 10 which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, the income statement and statement of cash flow for the year 

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong 

Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong 

Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditor’s responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit and to report my opinion solely to 

you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.  I do not 

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.  

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity‟s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity‟s 

internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company‟s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of 

its results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have 

been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 
 
 
 

 
C. F. Cheung 
Certified Public Accountant 
Hong Kong,  
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

   2010 
    
   HK$ HK$ 
 
Surplus on Board of Conjoint Examination  969,831 744,873  
Surplus on Board of Vocational Training  668,457 368,450  
Surplus on Speciality Board  222,697 229,382 
Surplus on Editorial Board  113,118 12,961  
Management fee income  1,400,000 1,400,000 
Bank interest income  54 321 
Surplus on exchange difference  588 16,456 
Surplus on Wonca fund  -  1,350,771 
Sundry income   57,980  41,311 
 
  3,432,725 4,164,525 
  ------------ ------------ 
Less: Expenses 
 
Audit fee  7,000 7,000 
Bank charges and interest  900 3,023 
Business registration fee  450 450 
Cleaning expenses  8,596 13,779 
Committee expenses  1,094,685 1,057,557 
Deficit on Board of Education  536,250 102,099 
Insurance  61,948 66,573 
Legal and professional fees  -  10,000 
Postage  1,238 1,130 
Printing and stationery  43,641 37,582 
Provident fund contribution  147,821 166,397 
Rent and rates  6,720 6,240 
Repairs and maintenance  14,143 3,564 
Salaries and allowances  3,014,589 3,153,681 
Sundry expenses  37,393 7,897 
Telephone and fax  23,230 28,217 
Travelling expenses  16,967 12,111 
Newspapers   5,444  3,952 
 
  5,021,015 4,681,252 
  ------------ ------------ 
 
Deficit for the year  (1,588,290) (516,727) 
  ======= ====== 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011 

 

   2010 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Interest in a subsidiary 5 2,730,853 1,466,766  
 
Current assets 
Account receivable  67,379 -  
Deposits paid and prepayments  38,985 199,910  
Cash at bank and in hand  277,930 279,721  
 
  384,294 479,631  
  ---------- ---------- 
 
Less: Current liabilities 
Accruals  477,398 39,911  
Receipts in advance  93,850 276,492  
Amount due to related companies 6 6,464,256 3,903,065  
Bank overdraft   -   58,996  
 
  7,035,504 4,278,464  
  ------------ ------------ 
 
Net current liabilities  (6,651,210) (3,798,833)  
  ________ ________ 
 
  (3,920,357) (2,332,067)  
  ======= ======= 
 
GENERAL FUND                                                                                                                           
 
Balance brought forward   (2,332,067) (1,815,340)  
 
Deficit for the year   (1,588,290)  (516,727)  
 
  (3,920,357) (2,332,067)  
  ======= ======= 
 
 
 

                                
___________________ __________________ 
Chairman Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

  2010 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating results for the year  (1,588,290) (516,727)  
Bank interest received  (54)  (321) 
 
Operating results before working capital changes (1,588,344) (517,048)  
Increase in accounts receivable  (67,379) -   
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits paid and prepayments 160,925 (185,930)  
Increase in accruals 437,487 31,611  
Increase/(Decrease) in receipts in advance   (182,642) 263,892 
 
Cash used in operations (1,239,953) (407,475)  
Bank interest received  54  321  
 
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,239,899) (407,154)  
 ------------ ---------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net advance from related companies 2,561,191 823,125 
Net advance to a subsidiary (1,264,087) (326,441)  
Net advance from Wonca fund 2009  -  (929,550)  
 
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,297,104 (432,866)  
 ------------ ---------- 
 
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH 
 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 57,205 (840,020) 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL  220,725 1,060,745  
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 277,930 220,725 
 ====== ====== 
 
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and bank balances 277,930 279,721 
Bank overdraft  -   (58,996) 
 
 277,930 220,725  
 ====== ====== 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. LEGAL STATUS 

 The company is limited by guarantee and without a share capital.  The liability of each of its membership in the event 

of its being wound up while he is a member, or within one year after he ceased to be a member for the payment of 

the debts and liabilities of the company contracted before he ceases to be a member and of the costs, charges and 

expenses of winding up the company, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among themselves, is 

limited to an amount not exceeding HK$10. 
 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Subsidiaries 

A subsidiary is a company in which the company, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the board of 

directors, controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital.  The 

company‟s interest in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in value.  Results of the 

subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends received and receivable. 

 
(b) Related companies 

A related company is a company in which one or more of the directors has a beneficial interest or is in a position to 
exercise significant influence over the company. 

 
(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue arising from activities is recognised when the activities are completed. 
 
Management fee received is recognised when management services are rendered. 
 
Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the 
effective rate of interest applicable. 

 
(d)  Taxation 
 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in 

the income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, 
and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable and deductible. 

 
 Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, 
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such assets and liabilities are 
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition 
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit 
nor the accounting profit. 

 
 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except 

where the company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary 
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 
 The carrying amount of any deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.  
 
 Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the 

asset realised.  Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged 
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 

 

3. TAXATION 

 No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as there is no estimated 

assessable profits for the year.  (2010:Nil). 
 
 The company had no significant unprovided deferred taxation at 31 March 2011 and 2010 and for the years then 

ended. 
 

At the balance sheet date, the company has unused tax losses of HK$4,319,329 (2010:HK$2,734,039) available for 

offset against future profits.  No deferred tax assets has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit 

streams.  The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 
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4. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

 None of the directors received any remuneration for their services rendered to the company during the year.  
(2010:Nil) 

  

5. INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY 

   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 Unlisted ordinary shares, at cost 10,000 10,000 
 Amount due from subsidiary 2,720,853 1,456,766 
  2,730,853 1,466,766 
  ======= ======= 
 
 Name of Principal Description Country of Percentage 
 subsidiary activity of shares held incorporation of equity held 
 
 HKCFP Holdings Education Ordinary Hong Kong 100% 
  and Development  shares 
  Limited 
 
 Statement pursuant to Paragraph 18(4) of the Tenth Schedule of the Companies Ordinance. 
 

No group financial statements are prepared as the directors are of opinion that it would involve expense and delay 
out of proportion to the value to the members. 

 
 The following net aggregate amounts of loss of the subsidiary has not been dealt with in the company‟s accounts: 
  
   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 

 The net aggregate amount of the subsidiary's 

 loss for the year (431,921) (196,635) 

 Add: Post-acquisition profits brought forward (1,360,782) (1,164,147) 

 Net aggregate amount retained by the subsidiary (1,792,703) (1,360,782) 
  ======= ======= 
 
 

6. AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED COMPANIES 

 
  Amount outstanding Maximum amount outstanding 
  At 31.3.2010 At 31.3.2011 during the year 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 

 The Hong Kong College of 

 Family Physicians (138,543) (811,122) (811,122) 

 HKCFP Foundation Fund 4,041,608 7,275,378 7,275,378 
 
  3,903,065 6,464,256 6,464,256 
  ======= ======= ======= 
 
 The advances are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. 
 

7. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FROM FUNCTIONS AND ACTIVITIES 

 
     2010 
 
  Income Expenses 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 

 Deficit on Education Board 378,050 914,300 (536,250) (102,099)  

 Surplus on Editorial Board 276,366 163,248 113,118 12,961  

 Surplus on Board of Conjoint  

 Examination 1,438,400 468,569 969,831 744,873  

 Surplus on Board of Vocational                         

 Training 722,792 54,335 668,457 368,450  

 Surplus on Specialty Board  1,048,600  825,903  222,697  229,382 
 
  3,864,208 2,426,355 1,437,853 1,253,567  
   ======= ======= ======= ======= 
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8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm‟s 

length basis, are summarised as follows: 

 
   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 Management fee income 1,400,000 1,400,000 
  ======= ======= 
 
 

9. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 26 October 2011. 
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File No. 24/14876267 
 

HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2010/2011 

 
 HK$ 
 
Loss per accounts 1,588,290 
 
Less: Entertainment  3,000 
 
Adjusted loss 1,585,290 
 ======= 
 
Statement of loss 
 
Loss brought forward 2,734,039 
 
Add: Loss for the year 1,585,290 
 
Loss carried forward 4,319,329 
 ======= 
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HKCFP EDUCATION LIMITED 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

26 October 2011 
  

C. F. Cheung, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other committee members and 

officials of the Association, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the company‟s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year.  In 

preparing these financial statements, we have: 

 a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

 b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

 c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

 d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

 e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with sections 161 and 

161B of the Companies Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the 

preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the 

financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 

financial position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 

Companies Ordinance.  We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking 

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All 

other relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have 

been made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with 

the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the directors received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S161 of the 

Company Ordinance during the year. 

 
 

For and on behalf  

of the Board of Directors 
 

   
______________________ ______________________ 
Chairman  Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

The Executive Board has pleasure in submitting its report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2011. 
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the Foundation is to promote, encourage and assist, for the public benefit, research and education on 
family medicine. 
 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the Foundation for the year are set out on page 4 of the financial statements. 
 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 
 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

The Executive Board members during the year were: 
 
Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary (Vice-Chairman) 
Dr. Law Tung Chi (Hon. Secretary) 
Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Hon. Treasurer) 
Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus (Vice-Chairman) 
Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter (Resigned on 4 December 2010) 
Dr. Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene (Resigned on 4 December 2010) 
Dr. Wong Yeung Shan, Samuel (Resigned on 4 December 2010) 
Dr. Lee Siu Yin, Ruby (Elected on 4 December 2010) (Chairman) 
Dr. Yuen Shiu Man (Elected on 4 December 2010) 
Dr. Au Chi Lap        (Elected on 4 December 2010) 
 
In accordance with Article 52 of the Foundation's Articles of Association, all Executive Board members shall retire from the 
Board and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. 
 

INTERESTS OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

No contracts of significance to which the Foundation was a party and in which a member of the Executive Board had a material 
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 
 

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the Foundation a party to any arrangements to enable the members of the Executive Board of 
the Foundation to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of debt securities (including debentures) of, the Foundation or 
any other body corporate. 
 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the Foundation were entered into or existed during 
the year. 
 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs C. F. Cheung who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 

 
 
Chairman 
HONG KONG, 26 October 2011  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

 

I have audited the financial statements HKCFP Foundation Fund (Limited by guarantee) set out on pages 4 to 9 which 

comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, the income statement and statement of cash flow for the year 

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

Executive Board’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong 

Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Executive Board determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit and to report my opinion solely to 

you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.  I do not 

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.  

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity‟s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity‟s 

internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by the Executive Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company‟s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of 

its results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have 

been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 
 
 

 
C. F. Cheung 
Certified Public Accountant 
Hong Kong,  
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

   2010 
 
 Note HK$ HK$ 
 

Donation received    1,481,846 779,000  

Bank interest income  45,747 5,547  

Investment income  37,068 80,555  

Surplus on exchange difference   289,569  -  

 

 2 (c) 1,854,230 865,102 

  ------------ ---------- 

 

Less: Expenses  

 

Audit fee  5,000 5,000 

Bank charges   1,352 1,174 

Legal and professional fee  3,000 105 

Prize and sponsorship   -  1,000,000 

 

  9,352 1,006,279 
  ------- ------------ 
 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  1,844,878 (141,177) 
  ======= ====== 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011 

 

    2010 
 
 Note  HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Available-for-sale investments 5 1,111,123 901,267 

  ------------ ---------- 

Current assets  

Interest receivable  2,770 134 

Amount due from related companies 6 7,765,236 4,531,466 

Cash at bank   11,624,544 13,050,130  

 

  19,392,550 17,581,730  

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals   5,000  5,000  

 

Net current assets  19,387,550 17,576,730  

  ------------- -------------- 
 
  20,498,673 18,477,997  
  ======== ======== 
 
FOUNDATION‟S FUND 
 
Balance brought forward  18,043,757 18,184,934 
 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  1,844,878 (141,177)  
 
Investment revaluation reserve 7  610,038  434,240  
 
  20,498,673 18,477,997  
  ======== ======== 
 
 
 

  
___________________ __________________ 
Chairman Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

  2010 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results for the year 1,844,878 (141,177)  

Bank interest received  (45,764)  (5,547)  

 

Operating results before working capital changes 1,799,114 (146,724)  

Decrease in deposit and temporary payment -  1,000,000  

(Increase)/Decrease in interest receivable  (2,636)  1,443  

 

Cash generated from operations 1,796,478 854,719  

Bank interest received  45,764  5,547  

 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,842,242 860,266  

 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Increase in available-for-sale investments (34,058) (82,622) 

 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advances to related companies (3,233,770) (1,657,065)  

 ________ ________ 

 

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,425,586) (879,421)  

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL 13,050,130 13,929,551 

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 11,624,544 13,050,130

 ======== ======== 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. LEGAL STATUS 

The Foundation is a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital.  The liability of each of its 

members, in the event of its being wound up while he is a member or within one year after he ceased to be a 

member for payment of the debts and liabilities of the Foundation  contracted before he ceases to be a member, and 

costs, charges and expenses of winding up and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among 

themselves, is limited to an amount not exceeding HK$50. 

 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Available-for-sale investments 

 

 Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets in listed equity securities that are designated as 

available for sale.  After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value, with gains or 

losses recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is 

determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the 

income statement. 

 

(b) Related company 

A related company is a company in which one or more of the directors of the company have a beneficial interest or is 

in a position to exercise significant influence over the company. 

 

(c) Revenue recognition 

 Donation received is recognised on receipt basis. 

 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the 

effective rate of interest applicable. 

 

(d) Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.  Monetary assets 

and liabilities in foreign currencies at the year end are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  

All exchange differences are dealt with in the income statement. 

 

3. TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as the Foundation is exempt from 

tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. 

 

4. EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the Executive Board members received any remuneration for their services rendered to the Foundation 

during the year.  (2010:Nil) 

 

5. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 

   2010 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Listed equity securities, at market value  

 At 1 April 901,267 603,550 

 Increase in investment 34,058 82,622 

 Surplus on changes in fair value credited to equity  175,798 215,095 

 At 31 March 1,111,123 901,267 

  ======= ====== 

 

The available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value which is determined by reference to the bid price 

quoted in an active market. 
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6. AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 

 

  Amount outstanding Maximum amount outstanding 

  At 31.3.2010 At 31.3.2011 during the year 

  HK$  HK$ HK$ 

 

 The Hong Kong College of 

 Family Physicians 489,858 489,858 489,858 

 HKCFP Education Limited 4,041,608 7,275,378 7,275,378 

  

  4,531,466 7,765,236 7,765,236 

   ======= ======= ======= 

 

 The advances are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 

 

7. INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE 

   2010 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 

 Balance at April 1 434,240 219,145  

 

 Add: Surplus on changes in fair value of investment 175,798 215,095  

 

 Balance at March 31 610,038 434,240  

  ====== ====== 

 

 

8. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

These financial statements were approved by the Executive Board Members on 26 October 2011. 
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HKCFP FOUNDATION FUND 

(Limited by guarantee) 

 
26 October 2011 
 

C. F. Cheung, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other board members and 

officials of the Foundation, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the Foundation‟s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Foundation and of the results and cash flows of the Foundation for the year.  In 

preparing these financial statements, we have: 

 a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

 b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

 d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

 e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with sections 161 and 

161B of the Companies Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the 

preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the 

financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 

financial position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 

Companies Ordinance.  We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking 

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All 

other relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have 

been made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with 

the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the Executive Board members received any remuneration which should be disclosed 

pursuant to S161 of the Company Ordinance during the year. 

 

9. We confirm that the market value of the investment securities held by the company as at the balance sheet date 

amounted to HK$1,111,123. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Executive Board  

  
_______________________ _______________________ 
Chairman  Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2011. 
 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The principal activity of the company is to act as an Educational Organization in respect of the development of family medicine. 
 

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The results of the company for the year are set out on page 4 of the financial statements. 
 

DONATIONS 

No donation, whether charitable or otherwise, was made during the year. 
 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 4 to the financial statements. 
 

DIRECTORS 

The directors during the year were: 
 

Dr. Kwong Bi Lok, Mary (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Lau Ho Lim (Hon. Treasurer) 

Dr. Lee Siu Yin (Appointed on 4 December 2010) (Chairman) 

Dr. Chan Ming Wai, Angus (Appointed on 4 December 2010) (Vice-Chairman) 

Dr. Tsoi Wai Wang, Gene (Resigned on 4 December 2010) 

Dr. Chan Hung Chiu, Peter (Resigned on 4 December 2010) 

 
In accordance with Article 9 of the company's Articles of Association, all directors shall retire and, being eligible, offer 
themselves for re-election. 
 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS 

No contracts of significance to which the company was a party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly 
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. 
 

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE DEBT SECURITIES 

At no time during the year was the company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the company to acquire 
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or any other body corporate. 
 

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS 

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the company were entered into or existed during 
the year. 
 

AUDITOR 

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs C. F. Cheung who retires and, being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 
 
 

 
 
Chairman  

HONG KONG, 26 October 2011 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) 

 

 

I have audited the financial statements HKCFP Holdings And Development Limited set out on pages 4 to 11 which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011 and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong 

Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong 

Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit and to report my opinion solely to 

you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.  I do not 

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.  

 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity‟s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity‟s 

internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company‟s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of 

its results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have 

been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. 

 
 

 
C. F. Cheung 

Certified Public Accountant 

Hong Kong  
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

 

   2010 

 

 Note HK$ HK$ 

 

Course income   1(b) 116,116 263,436  

Bank interest income  28 17 

Other income   19,900  22,800 

 

  136,044 286,253 

  ---------- ---------- 

 

Less: Expenses 

 

Audit fee  5,000 5,000 

Bank charges  300 300 

Business registration fee  -  450  

Cleaning expenses  17,020 20,384 

Depreciation  169,899 65,261 

Insurance  800 - 

Legal and professional fee  1,505 1,505  

Management fee  200,000 200,000 

Office consumable  9,160 9,201 

Printing and stationery  45,215 66,008 

Rates and building management fee  55,872 53,550 

Repairs and maintenance  4,197 5,919 

Sundry expenses  10,888 4,057 

Telephone and fax  25,772 17,744 

Utilities   22,337  33,509 

 

  567,965 482,888 

  ---------- ---------- 

 

Loss before taxation  (431,921) (196,635) 

 

Taxation 2  28,585  2,972  

 

Net loss for the year  (460,506) (199,607)  

  ====== ====== 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2011 

 

   2010 
 
 Note HK$ HK$ 
ASSETS 
 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 4 788,673 140,271 

 

Current assets 

Prepayment and deposit paid    1,950  3,053 

Cash at bank   315,726 254,343  

 

  317,676 257,396  

  ---------- ---------- 

 

Less: Current liabilities 

Accruals  8,475 9,059  

Accounts payable  -  143,200  

Amount due to holding company  2,720,853 1,456,766  

Amount due to a related company 5 137,524 139,424  

Receipt in advance  22,200 -  

Provision for taxation   6,698  6,698  

 

  2,895,750 1,755,147  

  ------------ ------------ 

 

Net current liabilities  (2,578,074) (1,497,751) 

  ________ ________ 

 

Total assets less current liabilities  (1,789,401) (1,357,480) 

 

Non-current liabilities 

Deferred tax 6  96,705  68,120 

 

  (1,886,106) (1,425,600) 
  ======= ======= 
 
CAPITAL AND RESERVES                                                                                                           
 
Share capital  7 10,000 10,000 
 
Accumulated losses   (1,896,106) (1,435,600) 
 
  (1,886,106) (1,425,600) 
  ======= ======= 
 
 

                              
________________  ___________________ 
Chairman Hon. Treasurer 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

 
  2010 
 
 HK$ HK$ 
 
Share capital 
 
At 1 April and 31 March 10,000 10,000 
 -------- -------- 
 
Accumulated losses                                                                    
 
At 1 April (1,435,600) (1,235,993) 
  
Net loss for the year  (460,506)  (199,607) 
 
At 31 March  (1,896,106) (1,435,600) 
 ------------ ------------  
 
Total equity 
 
At 1 April (1,425,600) (1,225,993) 
 ======= =======  
 
At 31 March (1,886,106) (1,425,600)
 ======= ======= 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 

 

 

   2010 

 

 HK$ HK$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating results before taxation  (431,921) (196,635) 

Depreciation  169,899 65,261  

Bank interest received   (28)  (17) 

 

Operating results before working capital changes  (262,050) (131,391) 

(Increase)/Decrease in prepayment and deposit paid  1,103 (1,850)  

Decrease in accounts payable  (143,200) (4,600)  

Increase/(Decrease) in accruals   (584) 4,059  

Increase in receipt in advance   22,200  -  

 

Cash used in operations  (382,531) (133,782) 

Bank interest received   28  17  

 

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  (382,503) (133,765) 

  ---------- ----------  

 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (818,301) (10,680) 

  ---------- --------- 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net advance from holding company  1,264,087 326,441  

Net advance to a related company   (1,900)  (12,130) 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  1,262,187 314,311  

  ------------ ---------- 

 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  61,383 169,866  

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 APRIL   254,343  84,477  

 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH 315,726 254,343  

 ====== ====== 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.   

 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working 

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as 

repairs and maintenance costs, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In 

situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic 

benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the 

asset. 

 

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the income statement is the difference between 

the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. 

 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis at the following rates to write off the costs of the assets over their 

estimated useful lives : 

 

 Furniture, fixture and equipment 15% p.a. 

 Leasehold improvement 15% p.a. 

 

(b) Turnover 

Turnover represents course fees received. 

 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue arising from professional courses is recognised when received. 

 

Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the 

effective rate of interest applicable. 

 

(d)  Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.  Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the 

income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and 

it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable and deductible. 

 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, 

and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.  Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all 

taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such assets and liabilities are 

not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition 

(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit 

nor the accounting profit. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is 

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the 

asset realised.  Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or 

credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 

 

 

2. TAXATION 

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the financial statements as there is no estimated assessable 

profits for the year.  (2010:Nil) 

 

 The taxation charges is made up as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 



115 

   2010 

 

  HK$ HK$ 

 Deferred tax 

 Current year 28,585 2,972 

  ===== ==== 

The taxation on the company‟s loss before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the 

taxation rate in Hong Kong for the company as follows: 
 
 Loss before taxation (431,921) (196,635) 
  ====== ====== 
 
 Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% (2010:16.5%) (71,267) (32,445)  
 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 56,619 13,740  
 Tax effect of non-chargeable income (28,585) (2,972)  
 Additions of unrecognised tax losses 71,818 24,649  
 Taxation charge 28,585 2,972  
  ===== ==== 
 

3. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

None of the directors received any remuneration for their services rendered to the company during the year.  
(2010:Nil)  

 

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

 
  Furniture,  
  fixture and Leasehold  
  equipment improvement Total 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 
 Cost  
 At 1.4.2010 432,442 61,890 494,332 
 Additions 168,846 649,455  818,301 
 At 31.3.2011 601,288 711,345 1,312,633 
  ---------- ---------- ------------ 
 Accumulated depreciation 
 At 1.4.2010 292,171 61,890 354,061 
 Charge for the year  72,483  97,416  169,899 
 At 31.3.2011 364,654 159,306 523,960 
  ---------- ---------- ---------- 
 Net book value 
 At 31.3.2011 236,634 552,039 788,673 
  ====== ====== ====== 
 
 At 31.3.2010 140,271 -  140,271 
  ====== ==== ====== 
 
 

5. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 

   

  Amount outstanding Maximum amount   
  At 31.3.2010 At 31.3.2011 outstanding during the year 
  HK$ HK$ HK$ 
 
 The Hong Kong College of 
 Family Physicians 139,424 137,524 139,424 
  ====== ====== ====== 
 
 The advance is unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. 
 

6. DEFERRED TAX  

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a principal taxation 

rate of 16.5%. (2010:16.5%) 
 
 The deferred tax liabilities account is as follows: 
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   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 At 1 April 68,120 65,148 
 Charge to income statement for the year 28,585  2,972 
 At 31 March 96,705 68,120 
  ===== ===== 
 

At the balance sheet date, the company has unused tax losses of HK$1,898,065 (2010:HK$1,462,803) available for 
offset against future profits.  No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to unpredictability of future profit 
streams.  
 

7. SHARE CAPITAL 

   2010 
 
  HK$ HK$ 
 
 Authorised, issued and fully paid: 
 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 10,000 10,000 
    =====       ===== 
 

 

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 Material transactions with a related company, which were conducted in the normal course of business and on arm‟s 
length basis, are summarised as follows: 

    2010 
 
   HK$  HK$ 
 
 Management fee paid   200,000 200,000 
   ====== ====== 
 
 

9. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY  

The company is a subsidiary of HKCFP Education Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, which is also 
regarded by the directors as being the company‟s ultimate holding company. 

 
 

10. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 These financial statements were approved by the Directors on 26 October 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 

 File No. 22/33523051  
 
 
 

HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

COMPUTATION OF LIABILITIES TO PROFITS TAX 

 

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 2010/2011 

 

 HK$ 
 
Loss per accounts 431,921 
 
Less: Depreciation   169,899 
 
 262,022 
 
Add: Depreciation allowance 73,956 
 Commercial building allowance (Sch.1) 28,454 
 Prescribed assets deduction  70,830 
 
Adjusted loss 435,262 
 ====== 
 
Statement of loss 
  HK$ 
 
Loss b/f  1,462,803 
 
Loss for the year  435,262 
 
Loss c/f  1,898,065 
  ======= 
 
Depreciation allowance 
 
  Total 
  20% Pool allowance 
          HK$ HK$ 
 
W.D.V. b/f 36,522  
 
Additions (Sch. 1) 98,016 
 
I.A.  58,810 58,810 
 
  75,728 
 
A.A.  15,146 15,146 
 
W.D.V. c/f 60,582 
  ===== 73,956 
   ===== 
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File No. 22/33523051  
  Sch. 1  
 
Commercial building allowance 
  HK$ 
 
Deemed cost of construction 61,890 
 
Additions  649,455 
 
Deemed cost of construction 711,345 
  ====== 
 
Residue value b/f 44,558 
 
Additions  649,455 
 
A.A. (4%)   28,454 
 
Residue value c/f 665,559 
  ====== 
 
Location : 8

th
 Floor of Duke of Windsor Social Service Building, 

 No. 15 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong 
 
Decoration  649,455 # 
  ====== 
 
Additions to furniture, fixture and equipment 
 
  HK$ 
 

1 unit of projector 12,000 

1 unit of Vacuum cleaner 798 

13 units of cabinet 25,136 

51 units of chair 32,730 

1 unit of electric screen 4,450 

1 unit of CCTV system 7,800 

1 set of wireless microphone 2,200 

1 unit of desk 2,950 

2 sets of speaker 4,200 

4 units of table 5,752 

11 units of monitor 12,078 * 

16 units of desktop computer  58,752 * 

 
  168,846 
  ====== 
 
* 100% deduction 
Other ranking for 20% pool 
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HKCFP HOLDINGS AND DEVELOPMENT LIMITED 

 

26 October 2011 

 

C. F. Cheung, CPA 

19/F, Cameron Commercial Centre, 

468 Hennessy Road, 

Causeway Bay, 

Hong Kong. 

Dear Sir, 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other committee members and 

officials of the Association, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the company‟s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

 

1. We acknowledge that the Companies Ordinance requires us to prepare financial statements which give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flows of the Company for the year.  In preparing 

these financial statements, we have: 

 a. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; 

 b. made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

 c. stated the reasons for any significant departure from applicable accounting standards in Hong Kong;  

 d. prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis; and 

 e. all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that the financial statements comply with sections 161 and 161B of 

the Companies Ordinance. 

 

2. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 16 August 2011, for the 

preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the 

financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith. 

 

3. We are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the 

financial position of the company and which enable us to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 

Companies Ordinance.  We are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking 

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 

4. All the books of account and related data have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the company have been properly reflected and recorded in the books of account.  All other 

relevant records and related information including minutes of all management and shareholders' meeting, have been 

made available to you. 

 

5. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 

require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

 

6. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with 

the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

7. We have disclosed all actual, hidden and contingent liabilities in the financial statements. 

 

8. We confirm that none of the directors received any remuneration which should be disclosed pursuant to S161 of the 

Company Ordinance during the year. 

 

For and on behalf  

of the Board of Directors 

                                   

______________________                            _______________________ 

Chairman                                                           Hon. Treasurer 
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